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In the opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Bonds will be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes under
existing law, subject to the matters described under "TAX MATTERS" herein,
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510,765,000
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS
(Dallas, Tarrant and Ellis Counties)
WATER AND WASTEWATER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, NEW SERIES 2022

Dated Date: November 1, 2022 Due: January 15, as shown on page 2
Interest to accrue fram the Delivery Date

PaymENT TERMS . , , Interest on the $10,765,000 City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, New
Series 2022 (the "Bonds™) will accrue from the "Delivery Date” (as defined below), estimated to be December 14, 2022, will be payable
January 15 and July 15 of each year, until maturity or prior redemption, commencing July 15, 2023, and will be calculated on the basis
of a 360-day vear consisting of twelve 30-day months. The definitive Bonds will be initially registered and delivered only to Cede &
Co., the inee of The Depository Trust Comp New York, Mew York ("DTC") pursuant to the Book-Entry-Only System
described herein, Beneficial ownership of the Bonds may be acquired in denominations of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof within
a stated maturity, No physical delivery of the Bonds will be made to the beneficial owners thereof, Principal of, premium, if any,
and interest on the Bonds will be payable by the Paying Agent/Registrar to Cede & Co,, which will make distribution of the amounts
50 paid to the participating members of DTC for subsequent payment to the beneficial owners of the Bonds (see "THE BONDS - Book-
Entry-Only System” herein). The initial Paying Agent/Registrar is Zions B poration, National Association, Houston, Texas (see
"THE BONDS - Paying Agent/Registrar"}.

AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE . ., The Bonds are autharized and issued pursuant to the Constitution and general laws of the State of Texas
(the "State"), particularly Texas Govemment Code, Chapters 1371 and 1502, as amended, and an ordinance (the "Bond Ordinance")
adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas (the “City"), on October 11, 2022. In the Bond Ordinance the City
delegated to an authorized officer of the City (the “Pricing Officer”) the authority to effect the sale of the Bonds and to establish certain
terms related to the issuance of the Bonds. The terms of sale are included in a "Pricing Certificate” which Pricing Certificate was executed
on November 16, 2022. The Bond Ordinance and the Pricing Certificate are sometimes collectively referred to herein as the "Ordinance”.
The Bonds, together with the Outstanding Bonds Similarly Secured (defined herein), are special obligations of the City, payable, both as
o principal and interest, solely from and secured by a lien onand pledge of the Net Revenues of the City's Water and Wastewnter System
(the "System"), 'The City has not covenanted nor obligated itself to pay the Bonds from monies raised or to be raised from taxation
(see "THE BONDS - Authority for Issuance” and "THE BONDS — Security and Source of Payment”).

PURPOSE . . . Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used for (i) improving, extending,
paying the costs associated with the issuance of the Bonds (see "PLAN OF FINANCING").

Juipping and repairing the System, and (if)

CUSIP PREFIX: 386168
MATURITY SCHEDULE & 9 DIGIT CUSIP
See Schedule on Page 2

LEGALITY . . . The Bonds are offered for delivery when, as and if issued and reccived by the initial purchaser of the Bonds (the "Initial
Purchaser”) and subject to the approving opinion of the Attorey General of Texas and the opinion of Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP,
Dallas, Texas, Bond Counsel (see Appendix C, "Form of Bond Counsel's Opinion®). Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the
City by West & Associates, L.L.P., Dallas, Texas, Disclosure Counsel.

DELIVERY ... It is expected that the Bonds will be available for delivery through the facilities of DTC on December 14, 2022 (the
“Delivery Date”).



MATURITY SCHEDULE
CUSIP Prefix: 386168

$10,765,000
WATER AND WASTEWATER SYSTEM
REVENUE BONDS, NEW SERIES 2022

Principal 15-Jan Interest CUsip Principal 15-Jan [nterest Custp

Amount Maturity Rate Yield Suffix" Amount Maturity Rate Yield Suffix!"!
360,000 2025 4.000% 2.980% XZ6 § 585,000 035 5.000% 3450% "' YKS
375,000 2026 5.000% 3.030% YAD 615,000 2036 4.000%, 3,900% W YL6
395,000 2027 5.000% 3.040% YBE 640,000 2037 4.000% 4.000% Y4
415,000 2028 5.000% 3.050% YCa 665,000 2038 4.000% 4.030% YN2
435,000 2029 5.000% 3.080% YD4 690,000 2039 4.000% 4.060% YP7?
455,000 2030 5.000%% 3110% YEZ 720,000 2040 4.000% 4.120% YOQs5
480,000 2031 5.000% 3.150% ' YFY 750,000 2041 4.000% 4.180% YR3
505,000 2032 5.000%: 3190% @ YGT 780,000 2042 4.000% 4,200% Y51
530,000 2033 5.000%  3230% % YHS 310,000 2043 4.125% 4.230% YT9

560,000 2034 5.000% 3350% M Y
(Interest to acerue from Delivery Date.)

(1} CUSIP® is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Association, CUSIP data herein is provided by CUSIP Global
Services, managed by FactSet Research Systems Inc. on behalf of the American Bankers Association. This data is not
intended to create a database and does not serve in any way as a substitute for the CUSIP Services, CUSIP numbers are
provided for convenience of reference only. Neither the City, the Financial Advisor, nor the Initial Purchaser is responsible
for the selection or correctness of the CUSIP numbers set forth herein.

(2} Yield shown is yield to first call date January 15, 2030,

OFT10NAL REDEMPTION . . . The City reserves the right, at its option, to redeem Bonds having stated maturities on and after January

15,2031, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, on January 15, 2030, or any date thereafter,
at the par value thereof plus acerued interest to the date of redemption (see "THE BONDS - Optional Redemption of the Bonds™).

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY)



This Officiod Sigtement, which includes the cover page, meanirity schedule and the Appendices hereto, does not constitule an affer 1o sell or e
solicitation of an offer to buy in any jurisdiction 1o any person o swhem it is unlaufil to meke such affer, solfeitation o sele.

Na dealer, braker, salesperson or ather person has been antharized fo give nformation or fo make aiy representation ather than those contaimed in
this Gifficial Statement, and, if given or sniade, such otfer information or representations nust aof be retied upon.

The infarmation set forth herein has been abtatned fiom the City and other sources believed to be reliable, bui sueh information is not guaranteed as
to accuracy oF completeness and is nof to be construed s the promise o guaraniee of the Finaneial Advisor or the Initial Purchaser, This Official
Stavement contains, in part, estimeares and naiters af opinion which ave nof intended as stafements of fict, and no representalion is mede ds o the
correctess af such estimates and apinions, or that they will be realized.

The informatian end expressions af opinion contained herein are subject fo change witheou notice, and neither the delivery of this Qfficial Statement
o any sale wade heveunder shall, wnder iy create ey inpli that there has been no change in the affairs of the City or other
mailters described,

THE AGREEMENTS OF THE CITY AND OTHERS RELATED TO THE BONDS ARE CONTAINED SOLELY IN THE CONTRACTS DESCRIBED
HEREIN. NEITHER THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT NOR ANY OTHER STATEMENT MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFER OR SALE OF
THE BONDS IS TO BE CONSTRUED AS CONSTITUTING AN AGREEMENT WITH THE PURCHASERS OF THE BONDS. INVESTORS SHOULD
READ THE ENTIRE OFFICIAL STATEMENT, INCLUDING THE MATURITY SCHEDULE AND ALL APPENDICES ATTACHED HERETO, TG

OBTAIN INFORMATION ESSENTIAL TO MAKING AN INFORMED INVESTMENT DECISION.

THE BONDS ARE EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION WITH THE SEC AND CONSEQUENTLY HAVE NOT BEEN REGIS

REGISTRATION, QUALIFICATION, OR EXEMPTION OF THE BONDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAW PROVISIONS
OF THE JURISDICTIONS IN WHICH THE BONDS HAVE BEEN REGISTERED, QUALIFIED, OR EXEMPTED SHOULD NOT BE REGARDED AS

A RECOMMENDATION THEREGF.

Al infarmatian contained in this Official Statement is subject, in all respeets, to the complete body of information contained in the orfginal sources
it e af il i i i1l

thereof and 1o g 7, W n ar other

wiether ar wat expressly idenvified as such, should
not be considered siatenents of fact.

Nawe af the City, the Financial Advisor, or the Initial Purcheser make any ey
regarding DTC or its Book-Enmtry-Only: Systen, as st infernration has been
CUSIP Glabal Services, and are included solely for the convenience af the owtiers af the Boy

7 i made concerning the aecuracy or
Ho apiion oF represerfation is rendered as to whether any projection will approximate actual resi

TERED THEREWITH. THE

hevein. fn p
Its, and all opinions, estimales and assumprions,

fon reg
Sevnished by IY

fing the inf i d in this Offtcial Statement
TC. CUSIP imtbers lgve heen assigned to these [ssnes by
reds, Nowe of the City, the Financial Advisor, or thae frvivial

Purchasers shall be responsible for the selection or correctness af the CUSIP pumbers shown on the inside cover page.

THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT CONTAINS "FORWARD-LOOKING”
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED. SUCH STATEMENTS MAY
UNCERTAINTIES AND OTHER FACTORS WHICH MAY CAUSE THE ACTUAL
DIFFERENT FROM FUTURE RESULTS, PERFORMANCE AND ACHIEVEMENTS EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED B
STATEMENTS. INVESTORS ARE CAUTIONED THAT THE ACTUAL RESULTS COULD DIFFER MATERIALLY

THE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

ta website aded P

{ herein are for tyformational purposes only

STATEMENTS WITHIN THE MEANING OF SECTION 21E OF THE

INVOLVE KNOWN AND UNKNOWN RISKS,

and wray b in the form of a lyperlink solely for the reader's

comenience. Unfess specified otherwise, sl websites and the information or fyperlinks contained therein are mol fncarporated inta, anel ave nol a

part of, this Official Statemem far any purposes.
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A
NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT
Page 2 of Legal Opinion of Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP
Re: 'City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, New
Series 2022"

2. Pursuant to section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to the
date hereof (the "Code”), and existing regulations, published rulings, and court decisions
thereunder, and assuming continuing compliance after the date hereof by the City with the
provisions of the Ordinance relating to sections 141 through 150 of the Code, interest on the
Bonds for federal income tax purposes (a) will be excludable from the gross income, as defined
in section 61 of the Code, of the owners thereof, and (b) will not be included in computing the
alternative minimum taxable income of the owners thereof who are individuals.

WE EXPRESS NO OPINION with respect to any other federal, state, or local tax consequences
under present law or any proposed legislation resulting from the receipt or accrual of interest on,
or the acquisition or disposition of, the Bonds, Ownership of tax-exempt obligations such as the
Bonds may result in collateral federal tax consequences to, among others, financial institutions,
life insurance companies, property and casualty insurance companies, certain foreign
corporations doing business in the United States, S corporations with subchapter C earnings and
profits, corporations subject fo the alternative minimum tax on adjusted financial statement
income, owners of an interest in a financial asset securitization investment trust, individual
recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits, individuals otherwise qualifying for
the earned income tax credit, and taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred or continued
indebtedness to purchase or carry, or who have paid or incurred certain expenses allocable to,
tax-exempt obligations.

OUR OPINIONS ARE BASED on existing law, which is subject to change. Such opinions are
further based on our knowledge of facts as of the date herecf. \We assume no duty to update or
supplement our opinions to reflect any facts or circumstances that may thereafter come fo our
attention or to reflect any changes in any law that may thereafter occur or become effective.
Moreover, our opinions are not a guarantee of result and are not binding on the Internal Revenue
Service: rather, such opinions represent our legal judgment based upon our review of existing law
that we deem relevant to such opinions and in reliance upon the representations and covenants
referenced above.

133174350.311001189147

OFFICIAL STATEMENT SUMMARY

This summary is subject in all respects to the more complete information and definitions contained or incerporated in this Official
Statement. The offering of the Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of this entire Official Statement. No person is
authorized to detach this summary from this Official Statement or to otherwise use it without the entire Official Statement.

THE CITV cvvossscvsvecessssissseeenennss The City of Grand Prairie, Texas (the "City") is a political subdivision and home rule municipal
corparation of the State of Texas, located in Dallas, Tarrant and Ellis Counties, Texas. The City
covers approximately 81 square miles (see "INTRODUCTION - Description of the City"),

THE BONDS..ccoroesssscississsnsesssie: The $10,765,000 City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds,
New Series 2022 (the "Bonds”) arc issued as serial bonds maturing on January 15 in each of the
years 2025 through 2043 (see "THE BONDS - Deseription of the Bonds"),

PAYMENT OF INTEREST ... . Interest on the Bonds accrues from the "Delivery Date” estimated to be December 14,2022, and
is payable July 15, 2023, and each January 15 and July 15 thereafter until maturity or prior
redemption (see "THE BONDS - Description of the Bonds" and "THE BONDS — Optional
Redemption of the Bonds"}.

AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE ........ The Bonds are authorized and issued pursuant to the Constitution and general laws of the State,
particulacly Texas Government Code, Chapters 1371 and 1502, as amended, and an ordinance
(the "Bond Ordinance”) adopted by the City Council of the City on October 11, 2022. In the Bond
Ordi the City delegated 1o an authorized officer of the City (the “Pricing Officer™) the
authority to effect the sale of the Bonds and to establish certain terms related to the issuance of the
Bonds, The terms of sale arc included in a “Pricing Certificate” which Pricing Certificate was
executed on Navember 16, 2022, The Bond Ordinance and the Pricing Certificate are sometimes
collectively referred to herein as the "Ordinance” (see "THE BONDS - Authority for Issuance™).

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS ......... The Bonds canstitute special obligations of the City, and, together with the Outstanding Bonds
Similarly Secured, are payable, both as 1o principal and interest, solely from and secured by a lien
on and pledge of the Net Revenues (as defined in the Ordinance) of the City's Water and
Wastewater System {the "System"). The City has not covenanted nor obligated itself to pay
the Bonds from monies raised or to be raised from taxation (see "THE BONDS - Security
and Source of Payment").

REDEMPTION OF THE BONDS....... The City reserves the right, at its option, 1o redeem Bonds having stated maturities on and after
January 15, 2031, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof, on January 15, 2030 ot any date thereafter, at the par value thereof plus accrued interest
ta the date of redemption (see "The BONDS - Optional Redemption of the Bonds").

TAX EXEMPTION oo In the opinion of Bond Counsel, the interest on the Bonds will be excludable from gross income
for federal income tax purposes under existing law, subject to the matters described under the
caption "TAX MATTERS" herein.

USE OF PROCEEDS. .. vrvevenrnr Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used for (i} imp ing, ding, equipping and
repuiring the System and (i) paying the costs associated with the issuance of the Bonds (see
"PLAN OF FINANCING).

RATING woooroososmsessssssmssseeeeesresnee The Bonds have been rated "AAA" with a stable outlaok by S&P Global Ratings, a division of

S&P Global Ine. ("S&P") (see "OTHER INFORMATION — Rating").

Book-ENTRY-0ONLY SYSTEM...... The definitive Bonds will be initially registered and delivered only to Cede & Co,, the nominee
of DTC pursuant to the Book-Entry-Only System described herein. B ficial hip of the
Bonds may be acquired in denominations of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof within a stated
maturity. Mo physical delivery of the Bonds will be made to the beneficial owners thereof.
Principal of, premium, if any, and intercst on the Bonds will be payable by the Paying
Agent/Registrar to Cede & Co., which will make distribution of the amounts so paid 1o the
participating members of DTC for subsequent payment to the beneficial owners of the Bonds
(see "THE BONDS - Book-Entry-Only System").

PAYMENT RECORD ....vvovoreeeovcennne. Thet City has never defaulted on the payments of iis revenue bonds.



Water Usﬂ(ﬂ‘n‘s‘) Net Averape
Fiscal Year Estimated Average Peak Revenues Annual Debi Coverage
Ended City Day Day Total Available For Serviee of
30-5ep ngulationm Usagpe Usage Usape Debt Service Requirements Debt
2007 184,620 25613487 36,316,452 9,348,922 755 17493311 $3,544,373 4,94
2018 187,050 26,064,236 39935407  9,513,445970 21,269,129 3,580,166 5.93
2019 189,430 25695470 40,241,470  9,378,845,231 17,859,985 3,049,314 5.86
2020 196,100 ' 25309444 30,398,631  9237,947,193 22,188,710 2,840,480 7.81
2021 197,347 @ 26820923 51,820,977  9,655,532,244 15,967,044 2,636,692 6.06
m“Sm.ute: City Staff.
(2) Source: 2020 Census.
For additional information regarding the City, please contact:
Cathy Patrick, CPA Brady Olsen Jim §, Sahonis Andre Ayala
Chiefl Financial Officer Assistant Finance Director b anaging Director M anaging Director
iPTX.om bolen@GPTX org fim, sabonis @il s com andre gy @ illlop segiiritics com
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NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT

Morton Rose Fulbright US LLP
2200 Ross Avenue, Suite 3600
Dallas, Texas 75201-7832
United States

Tel +1 214 855 8000
Fax +1 214 855 8200
nortonrosefulbright.com

December 14, 2022

IN REGARD to the authorization and issuance of the “City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Water and
Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, New Series 2022," dated November 1 , 2022, in the principal
amount of $10,765,000 (the "Bonds”), we have examined into their issuance by the City of Grand
Prairie, Texas (the "City"), solely to express legal opinions as fo the validity of the Bonds and the
exclusion of the interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and
for no other purpose. We have not been requested to investigate or verify, and we neither
expressly nor by implication render herein any opinion concerning, the financial condition or
capabilities of the City, the disclosure of any financial or statistical information or data pertaining
to the City and used in the sale of the Bonds, or the sufficiency of the security for or the value or
marketability of the Bonds.

THE BONDS are issued in fully registered form only and in denominations of $5,000 or any
integral multiple thereof (within a maturity). The Bonds mature on January 15 in each of the years
specified in the pricing certificate (the “Pricing Certificate”) executed pursuant to an ordinance
adopted by the City Council of the City authorizing the issuance of the Bonds (the “Bond
Ordinance” and, jointly with the Pricing Certificate, the “Ordinance”), unless redeemed prior to
maturity in accordance with the terms stated on the Bonds. The Bonds accrue interest from the
date, at the rates, and in the manner and interest is payable on the dates, all as provided in the
Ordinance.

IN RENDERING THE OPINIONS herein we have examined and rely upon (i) original or certified
copies of the proceedings relating to the issuance of the Bonds, including the Ordinance, and an
examination of the initial Bond executed and delivered by the City (which we found to be in due
form and properly executed); (ii) certifications of officers of the City relating to the expected use
and investment of proceeds of the sale of the Bonds and certain other funds of the City and
(iii) other documentation and such matters of law as we deem relevant. In the examination of the
proceedings relating to the issuance of the Bonds, we have assumed the authenticity of all
documents submitted to us as originals, the conformity to original copies of all documents
submitted to us as certified copies, and the accuracy of the statements contained in such
documents and certifications.

BASED ON OUR EXAMINATIONS, IT IS OUR OPINION that, under the applicable laws of the
United States of America and the State of Texas in force and effect on the date hereof:

1. The Bonds have been duly authorized by the City and, when Issued in compliance
with the provisions of the Ordinance, are valid, legally binding and enforceable obligations of the
City and, together with the outstanding and unpaid "Previously Issued Bonds" (identified and
defined in the Ordinance), are payable solely from and equally and ratably secured by a lien on
and pledge of the Net Revenues (as defined in the Ordinance) of the City's combined Water and
Wastewater System, except to the extent that the enforceability thereof may be affected by
bankruptey, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, or other similar laws affecting creditors' rights
or the exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with the general principles of equity.

Horton Rose Fulbright US LLP & & limited iability partnership registered undier the laws of Texas. 133174350.311001189147
Morton Rese Fulbright US LLP, Norton Rose Fulbright LLP; Morton Rose Fulbright Ausiralia, Norlon Rose Fulbright Canada LLP and Nerten Rose
Fulbright South Africa Inc are separale legal enfities and all of them are members of Morton Rese Fulbright Vareln, a Swiss verein. Norton Rose Fulbright
Verein helps coordinate the activities of the members but does not itesif provide legal senvices to clients. Details of each entily, with certain regufaiory
Infarmation, are available at nortonrosedulbright. com.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT
RELATING TO
$10,765,000
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS
WATER AND WASETWATER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, NEW SERIES 2022

INTRODUCTION

This Official § which includes the Appendices hereto, provides certain infi ion ing the i af $10,765,000
City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, New Series 2022 (the "Bonds"). Capitalized terms
used in this Official Statement have the same meanings assigned to such terms in the ordinance adopted by the City Council on
October 11, 2022 (the "Bond Ordinance"), which delegated the final pricing of the Bonds to a "Pricing Officer” pursuant 1o a
"Pricing Certificate,” that was executed on Movember 16, 2022 and contains the final sales terms of the Bonds, which Bond
Ordinance and the Pricing Cerlificate are jointly herein referred to as the “Ordinance.”

There follows in this Official Statement descriptions of the Bonds and certain information regarding the City of Grand Prairie,
Texas (the "City") and its finances, All descriptions of documents contained herein are only summaries and are qualified in their
entirety by reference to each such document. Copies of such documents may be obtained from the City’s Financial Advisor, Hilltop
Securities Inc. ("HilltopSecurities"), Dallas, Texas.

DESCRIFTION OF THE CITY . . . The City is a political subdivision and home rule municipal corporation of the State of Texas (the
"State"), duly organized and existing under the laws of the State, including the City’s home rule charter (the "Home Rule Charter™).
The City first adopled its Home Rule Charter in 1948, The City operates under a Council/M ager form of with a
City Council comprised of the Mayor and eight Council members who are elected for staggered three-year terms. The City Manager
is the chief administrative officer for the City. Some of the services that the City provides are: public safety (police and fire
protection), streets, water and sanitary sewer utilities, environmental health services, parks and ion, public | i
public facilities, planning and zoning, and general administrative services. The 2010 population was 175,396 while the 2020
Census population was 191,720, The estimated population for 2022 is 200,640, The City covers approximately 81 square miles,

INFECTIOUS DISEASE QUTBREAK ~ COVID-19 ., In March 2020, the World Health Organization and the President of the United
States sep y declared the outbreak of a respiratory disesse caused by a novel coronavirus ("COVID-19"} to be a public health
emergency. On March 13, 2020, the Govemor of Texas (the "Govemor") declared a state of disaster for all counties in the State
because of the effects of COVID-19. Subsequently, in response to a rise in COVID-19 infections in the State and pursuant to

Chapter 418 of the Texas G Code, the G issued a number of executive orders intended to help limit the spread
of COVID-19 and mitigate injury and the loss of life, including limitations imposed on busi operations, social gatherings and
other activities.

Over the ensuing year, COVID-19 negatively affected , travel and busi locally and globally, and negatively
affected economic growth worldwide and within the U.S., the State and the City. Following widespread release and distribution
of various COVID-19 vaccines beginning in D ber 2020 and a d in active COVID-19 cases generally in the United

States, state governments (including Texas) began lifting business and social limitations associated with COVID-19.  Under
executive orders in effect as of the date of this Official Statement, there are no State-imposed COVID-19 related operating limits
for any busi or other establisk in the State and no State-imposed requirement 1o wesr a face covering. The Governor
retains the right to impose future restrictions on activities if needed in order to mitigate the effects of COVID-19, Additional
information regarding exccutive orders issued by the Governor is accessible on the website of the Governor at
hitps:/fgov texas gov/, Neither the information on, nor accessed through, such website of the Governor is incorporated by reference,
either expressly or by implication, into this Official Statement,

COVID-19 negatively affected commerce, travel and businesses loeally and globally, and negatively affected economic growth
worldwide and within the U.S., the State and the City, With the easing or removal of associated governmental restrictions,
economic activity has increased. However, there are no assurances that economic activity will continue or increase at the same rate
a3 before the COVID-19 pandemic or following the easing or 1 af jcti pecially if there are future outbreaks of
COVID-19 or variants of COVID-19. The COVID-19 pandemic may result in lasting changes in some businesses and social
practices, which could affect business activity and limit the growth of or reduce the City's ad valorem and sales tax collections. In
addition, further or extended reductions in the value of stocks and ather investments could impact employee retirement plans or
other funds and could require actions by the State, The City cannot predict the long-term economic effeet of COVID-19 or the
effect of any future outbreak of COVID-19, or variants of COVID-19, or & similar virus on the City's operations or financial
condition, Some of the fi ial and operating data ined herein are as of dates and for periods prior to the economic impact
of COVID-19 and instituted to slow it. A lingly, such infc jon is not ily indicative of the current financial
condition or future prospects of the City, The City continues to monitor the spread of COVID-19 and is warking with local, State,
and national agencies to address the potential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic upon the City. While the full extent of the impact
of COVID-19 on the City cannot be fully quantified at this time, the continued outbresk of COVID-19 could have an adverse effect
on the City's operations and financial condition, and the effect could be material,

DIX C
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

0. Tax Abatements and Economic Incentive Agreements

The City has incentive agreements with companies which may refund or rebate certain amounts of taxes
based on performance indicators. These agreements are governed by Chapter 312 of the Texas Local
Govemnment Code. Recipients may be eligible based on their impact to the City's economy, as usually
measured by job creation. Agreements may also contain recapture or ‘clawback’ provisions in the event
of non-performance of the agreement standards. The City's Management Services division reviews the
performance of the companies under these agreements for their compliance with stated standards. As
of the 2020 certified rall {used for 2021 fiscal year] the City's abatement agreements with four companies
resulted in $38,040,542 in appraised values, totaling $255,005 in taxes abated on the 2020 cerfified tax roll
[used for the 2021 fiscal year).

P. Subsequent Events

On February 9, 2022, the City issued $26,000,000 in Cerfificates of Obligation, Series 2022, The proceeds of
the issuance are intended for use on street projects and some repairs and updates on existing police, fire,
and municipal facilities.

On February 16, 2022, the City issued $17,136,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 20224,
The proceeds refunded $7.700,000 of Combination Tax and Revenue Cerlificates of Obligation Series
2013A, $1,410,000 of General Obligation Bonds, Series 20134, $5,065,000 of Combination Tax and Revenue
Certificates of Obligaficn Series 2013, and $2.360,000 of General Obligation Refunding and Improvement
Bond Series 2013. The refunding resuited in present value savings of $1,51 4,347,

On February 16, 2022, the City issued $8,215,000in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 20228, The
proceeds refunded $7,790,000 of Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2014
resulting in present value savings of $396,110.

Finally, on February 16, 2022, the City Issued $19,023,000 in General Obligafion Refunding Bonds, Series
2022C. The proceeds refunded $15,195,000 of Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation,
Series 2015, and $2,110,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bond Series 2015. The refunding resulted in
present value savings of $1 B0B,452.

On February 24, 2022 the City issued $61,550,000 in Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022. The
proceeds refunded $55,345,000 of Sales Tax Revenue Bond Series 2015 resulting in present value savings
of $5,848,825.

The City has evaluated all other events or transactions that occurred after September 30, 2021 up through
March 29, 2022, the date the financial statements were available to be issued,
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PLAN OF FINANCING

PURPOSE . . . Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used for (7) improving, di juipping and repairing the System, and
(if) paying the costs associated with the issuance of the Bonds.

Ust oF Boxn PROCEEDS, .. Proceeds fram the sale of the Bonds are expected to be expended as follows:

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

Par Amount of Bonds $10,765,000.00
Cash Premium Bid 366,318.97
TOTAL SOURCES: $11,131,318.97

USES OF FUNDS:

Deposit te Project Fund £ 11,000,000.00

Costs of Issuance 131,318.97

TOTAL USES: $11,131318.97
THE BONDS

DESCRIFTION OF THE BONDS . . . The Bonds are dated November 1, 2022, and mature on January 15 in each of the years and in the
amounts shown on page 2 heveof. Interest on the unpaid principal amounts of the Bonds acerues from the Delivery Date, estimated
to be December 14, 2022, will be computed on the basis of a 360-day yeat consisting of twelve 30-day months, and will be payable
on July 15, 2023 and each January 15 and July 15 thereafier until maturity or prior redemption, The definitive Bonds will be issued
only in fully registered form in any integral multiple of $5,000 for any one maturity and will be initially registered and delivered
only to Cede & Co., the nominee of The Depository Trust Company New York, New York ("DTC") pursuant to the Book-Entry-
Only System described herein. No physical delivery of the Bonds will be made to the beneficial owners thereof. Principal of,
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds will be payable by the Paying Agent/Registrar to Cede & Co., which will make
distribution of the amounts so paid to the participating members of DTC for subsequent payment fo the beneficial owners of the
Bonds (see "THE BONDS - Book-Entry-Only System" herein).

AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE . . . The Bonds are authorized and issued pursuant to the Constitution and general laws of the State,
icularly Texas G Code, Chapters 1371 and 1502, as amended, and the Ordinance.

SECURITY AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT . . . The Bonds are special obligations of the City, and, together with the Outstanding Bonds
Similarly Secured (defined below), are payable, both as to principal and interest, from a lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues of
the System after the payment of maintenance and operating expenses. Maintenance and operating expenses include contractual
payments which under State laws and their provisions are established as operating expenses. The City has reserved the right to
issue additional obligations (the "Additional Bonds") payable on a parity with the Bonds from a lien on and pledge of the Net
Revenues (see "SELECTED PROVISIONS OF THE BOND ORDINANCE"). The Bonds, the Previously Issued Bonds and any
Additional Bonds are collectively referred 1o as the "Bonds Similary Secured”,

The Bonds are ot & charge upon any other income or revenues of the City and shall never constitute an indebtedness or pledge of
the general eredit or taxing powers of the City. The Ordinance does not create a lien or mortgage on the System, except the Net
Revenues, and any judgment against the City may not be enforced by levy and execution against any property owned by the City.

ReSERVE FUND . . . As additional security for the payment of the Bonds Similarly Sccured, in the Ordinance, the City covenants
16y maintain a reserve fund (the "Reserve Fund"”) to pay the principal and interest on the Bonds Similarly Secured when and to the
extent other funds are insufficient for such purpose. By reason of the issuance of the Bonds, the total amount required to be
accumulated and maintained in the Reserve Fund is $2,736,567.46 (the "Required Reserve") which amounl equals or exceeds the
average annual debt service requirements on all Bonds Similarly Secured then Outstanding (caleulated on a fiscal vear basis as off
the date the Bands are to be delivered). The current balance in the Reserve Fund is $2,728,822.68. Thercfore, to fund the Required
Reserve, beginning on or before the first day of each month following the month of delivery of the Bonds, the City will make
monthly deposits to the Reserve Fund of not lest 160 of the additional amount to be maintained in the Reserve Fund by reason of
the issuance of the Bonds. (see "SELECTED PROVISIONS OF THE BOND ORDINANCE"- herein for additional details
regarding the Reserve Fund).

PLEDGED REVENUES . . - Subject only ta the prior lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues of the System to the payment and security
of the Prior Lien Bonds (including the establish and mai of the special funds created for the payment and security of
thereof) under the terms and provisions of the ordinances and proceedings pertaining to their authorization and issuance, the Net
Reventes of the System, with the exception of those in excess of the amounts required for the payment and security of the Bonds
Similarly Secured, are irrevocably pledged to the payment and security of the Bonds Similarly Secured, including the establishment
and maintenance of the Interest and Sinking Fund and the Reserve Fund created and established for the payment and security
thereaf, The Bonds Similarly Secured, and the interest thereon, constitute a lien on the Net Revenues of the System in accordance
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with the terms and provisions of the Ordinance (see "SELECTED PROVISIONS OF THE BOND GRDINANCE" herein for a CHY Of Grand Prairie, Texas
further description of the security for the Bonds). G

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
RATES . ... The City has covenanted in the Ordinance that it will at all times charge and collect rates for services rendered by the September 30, 2021
System to produce gross revenues in each Fiscal Year sufficient to: (i) pay for all maintenance, operation, debt service, depreciation,
replacement and betterment charges of the System; (i) pay the interest on and principal of the Bonds Similarly Secured and the

amauats required to be deposited inta the special Funds ereated and established for the payment and security of the Bands Similarly N. Segment Information for Enterprise Funds
Secured; (iii) produce Net Revenues each year in an amount reasonably estimated to be not less than 1,25 times the average annual
principal and interest requi of the Outstanding Bonds Similarly Secured; and (iv) pay all outstanding, legally incurred The City mainfains five enferprise funds - water and wastewater, solid waste, golf, airport, and storm water
indebtedness against the System, as and when the same become due. util o g 2 . 0

ility activities, At Septermnber 30, 2021, the Municipal Airpert Fund had outstanding revenue-backed
For more detailed information on the System rates and charges, see "SELECTED PROVISIONS OF THE BOND ORDINANCE cerfificates of obligations. Segment information for this Fund is as follows:
— Rates and Charges". Municipal

Alrport

OFTIONAL REDEMPTION OF THE BONDS . ., The City reserves the right, at its option, 1o redeem Bonds having stated maturities on

" )
and after Januaty 15, 2031, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, an January 15, 2030, Condensed staterment of net position:

or any date thereafler, at the par value thereof plus accrued interest 1o the date of redemption, If less than all of the Bonds are (o Current assets $ 878,750
be redeemed, the City may select the matwrities of the Bonds 1o be redeemed. I less than all of the Bonds of any maturity are to Capital assefs 15,549,467
be redeemed, the Paying Agent/Registrar (or DTC while the Bonds are in Boak-Entry-Only form) shall determine by lot the Bonds, Detfared outliows of resources 40,484
or portions thereof, within such maturity to be redecmed. e —
Tolol assets and deferred outflows of resources 16,488,701
NOTICE OF REDEMPTION . . . Not Jess than 30 days prior to a redemption date for the Bonds, the City shall cause a notice of
redemption to be sent by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the registered owners of the Bonds to be redeemed, in Current abilifies 451,142
whole or in part, at the address of each registered owner appearing on the registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the Lorig-term liabilifies 795,531
close of busi on the busi day next p ling the date of mailing such notice. ANY NOTICE $0 MAILED SHALL BE . 3
CONCLUSIVELY PRESUMED TO HAVE BEEN DULY GIVEN, WHETHER OR NOT THE REGISTERED OWNER Deferred inflows of resources T
RECEIVES SUCH NOTICE. NOTICE HAVING BEEN S0 GIVEN, THE BONDS CALLED FOR REDEMPTION SHALL o .
BECOME DUE AND PAYABLE ON THE SPECIFIED REDEMPTION DATE, AND NOTWITHSTANDING THAT ANY Total fiabilfies and deferred inflows of rasaurces 117,748
Eg:ﬁgé{TpﬁgﬂggyQEHAESE(?E&%%%S?&,EEE}E SURRENDERED FOR PAYMENT, INTEREST ON SUCH BOND OR Net pos_it_ion: Net in\f_estmen! in copital assels 14,994,467
Net pasition: Unrestricted 4,194

With respect to any optional redemption of the Bonds, unless moneys sufficient to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and Total net posi ;
interest on the Bonds to be redeemed shall have been received by the Paying Agent/Regisirar prior to the giving of such notice of olalnstpesition $ l4smmes)
redemption, such notice may state that said redemption is conditional upon the receipt of such moneys by the Paying

Agent/Registrar on or prior 1o the date fixed for such redemption, or upon the satisf: of any prereg set forth in such Condensed statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position:
notice of redemption; and, if sufficient moneys are not received, such notice shall be of no force and effect, the City shall not Sales to customers $ 1,309,133
redeem such Bonds and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice, in the manner in which the notice of redemption was given, Intergovernmental revenue 45,197
to the effect that the Bonds have not been redeemed. Miscelaneous 734,348
DEFEASANCE . , . The Ordi provides for the defl of the Bonds when the payment of the principal of and premium, if Total operating revenues 2,108,498
any, on the Bonds, plus interest thereon to the due date thereof (whether such due date he by reason of maturity or otherwise), is
provided by imevocably depositing with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow agent, in tru]s( (1) money sufficient Depreciation 932730
to make such payment or (2) Government Obligations (defined below), which Government Obli ations shall mature as to principal i
and interest in such amounts and at such times to insure the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money o make such Ofther operaling expenses —’Zjﬁ'ﬂ
payment, and all necessary and proper fees, compensation and expenses of the paying agent for the Bonds, In the cvent of a Tolal operating expenses 2,950,089
defeasance of the Bonds, the City shall deliver a certificate from its financial advisor, the Paying Agent/Registrar, an independent
certified public accountant, or another qualified third party concerning the sufficiency of the deposit of cash and/or Government Interest expernse 130,810)
Obligations to pay, when due, the principal of, redemption premium (if any), and interest due on any defessed Bonds. The e
Ordinance provides thal "Government Obligations® means (a) dircct, noncallable obligations of the United States of America, Tolal nonoperafing revenues (expenses) [30,810)
including obligations that are litionally 1 by the United States of America, (b) llable obligations of an agency I—
or instrumentality of the United States of Ameriea, including obligations that are litionally gl 1 or insured by the Loss before transfers (872,201}
agency o instrumentality and that, on the date of their aequisition or purchase by the City, are rated as fo investment quality by a
nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than AAA or its equivalent, (¢) noncallable obligations of a state or an agency Transfers out {48,000
or a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of a state that have been refunded and that, on the date of their acquisition .
or purchase by the City, are rated as to in quality by a nationally recognized i ment rating firm not less than AAA or Change In net position (920,201)
its equivalent, and (d) any cther then authorized securities or obligations that may be used 1o defease obligations such as the Bonds . }
under applicable laws of the State of Texas. The City has the right, subject to satisfying the requirements of (1) and {2) above, to Net position at the beginning of the year 15,900,907
substitute other Government Obligations for the Government Obligations originally deposited, to reinvest the uninvested moneys Net position at the end of the year 3 14,980,704
on deposit for such defeasance and to withdraw for the benefit of the City moneys in excess of the amount required for such i ——
defeasance, Condensed staterment of cash Hows:
= hat 1 | " —_— 3 i - ooy Met cash provided [used) by:

ere is no assurance that the current law will not anged in a manner which would permit investments other than those - e
described above to be made with amounts deposited to defease the Bonds, B the Ordi does not Iy limit such Opercmrjg OChVIfI?S o a0
investments, registered owners may be deemed 1o have consented to defeasance with such other investments, notwithstanding the Noncapital financing activities (48,000)
fact that such investments may not be of the same investment quality as those currently permitted under State law. There is no Capital and related financing activities {157,517]
assurance that the ratings for 1S, Treasury securities used as Government Obligations or that for any other Government Obligation Investing activifies .
will be maintained at any particular rating category. Baginning cash and cash equivalent balonces 347,271

Ending cash and cash equivalent balances $ 175,644

95



City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

untain Creek Regional Wastewater System fract [Sysh
The City entered info a coniract in 2002 which is in effect for the entire useful life of the System. Although
the City does not yet deliver flows to this System, the City is obligated to pay annual minimum fees
equivalent to 21.9 milion galions of flow. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021, the City paid
$56,082 to the System,

Master and Other Agreements

The City and Texas NextStage, LP (NexiStage) entered into agreements [development agreements, lease
agreements and other ancillary agreements) on January 10, 2001, to design, develop and consiruct a
performance hall [Performance Hall). Construction of the Performance Hall began in July 2000 and was
completed in February 2001. Under the agreements, the City purchased the Performance Hall from
NexiStage for §15 million with the proceeds from the §17.9 million TIF tax and tax increment cerfificate of
obligation bond issue in fiscal year 2001. NexiStage initially leased the Performance Hall frem the City
under a twenty one-year lease, Effective September 18, 2002, Anschutz Texas, L. P. assumed the lecse
obligations of NextStage and became lessee and operator of the Performance Hall. The lease between
the City and Anschutz Texas, L. P, expires January 23, 2023. Monthly lease payments from the lessee of the
Performance Hall are used to pay debt service on bonds issued by the City for the purchase of the
Performance Hall.

stadium Lease - On December 1, 2020, the City entered into a fifteen-year lecse agreement with MLC
Dallas Stadium Co., LLC (the Tenant) for their use of the City-owned baseball stadium. The Tenant has
unfimited use of the Stadium to hold sporting ond entertainment events. Nextel pays the City, in advance,
a monthly lecse payment of $20,000 which includes $10,000 in consfruction rent opplicable o only the
first eighty months of the agreement. In addition to rent, the tenant pays 5% of their gross revenues from
the immediately preceding six-month period on January and July 15" of each year. The Tenant is
responsible for all utility services, maintenance of the building, landscaping, imgation, arf, and
playgrounds, and for maintaining @ maintenance and repair reserve fund, The City is obligated to depaosit
$200,000 to this reserve fund to benefit the Stadium every five years.

Construction Commitments
The City has several approved outstanding major capital projects as of September 30, 2021. The City's
total committed but unexpended expenditures for such outhorized capital projects at year-end
approximates $121,406,523. Funding for these contracts will be received through various capital projects
funds and enterprise funds.
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Upon such deposit as described above, such Bonds shall no longer be regarded to be outstanding or unpaid and will cease to be
outstanding obligations secured by the Ordinance or treated as debt of the City or applying any limitation on the City’s ability o
issue debt or for any other purpose. Furthermore, all rights of the City to initiate proceedings to call the Bonds that have been
defeased 1o maturity for redemption or take any other action amending the terms of the Bonds that have been defeased to maturity
are extinguished; provided, | . that the right 1o call the Bonds that have been defeased to maturity for redemption is not
extinguished if the City: (i) in the proceedings providing for the firm banking and financial arrangements, expressly reserves the
right to call the Bonds for redemption; (i) gives notice of the reservation of that right to the owners of the Bonds immediately
following the making of the firm banking and financial arrangements; and (iii} directs that notice of the reservation be included in
any redemption notices that it autherizes.

AMENDMENTS . . . The City may, without the consent of or notice 1o any registered owners, from time to time and at any time,
amend the Ordinance in any manner not detrimental to the i of the regi d owners, including the curing of any ambiguity,
inconsistency, ot formal defect or omission therein. In addition, the City may, with the written consent of holders of a majority in
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, amend, add lo, or rescind any of the provisions of the Ordinance;
provided that, without the consent of the regjstered owners of all af the Outstanding Bonds, no such amendment, addition, or
rescission shall (1) extend the time or times of payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, reduce the
principal amount thereof, the redemption price, or the rate of interest thereon, or in any other way modify the terms of payment of
the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds, (2) give any preference to any Bond over any other Bond, or (3) reduce
the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds required to be held by the owners of the Bonds for consent to any such amendment,
addition, or rescission.

BoOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM . . . This section deseribes how ownership of the Bonds is to be transferred and how the principal of,
premium, if any, interest and redemption payments on the Bonds are to be paid to and credited by DTC while the Bonds are
registered in its nominee name. The information in this section concerning DTC and the Book-Entry-Only System has been
provided by DTC for use in disclosure documents such as this Official Statement. The City and the Finaneial Advisor believe the
source of such information to be reliable, but take no responsibility for the or compl thereof.

The City, the Financial Advisor and the Initial Purchaser cannol and do not give any assurance that (1) DTC will distribute payments
of debt service on the Bonds, or redemption or other notices, to DTC Participants, (2) DTC Participants or others will distribute
debt service payments paid to DTC or its nominee (as the registered owner of the Bonds), o redemption or other notices, to the
Beneficial Owners, or that they will do so on a timely basis, or (3) DTC will serve and act in the manner described in this Official
Statement. The current rules applicable to DTC are cn file with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and the current
procedures of DTC to be followed in dealing with DTC Participants are on file with DTC.

DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds, The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name
of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee), One fully-registered certificate will be issued for each stated maturity of the Bonds
in the aggregate principal amount of each such maturity and will be deposited with DTC.

DITC, the world"s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, &
"hanking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing

P " within the ing of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency” registered pursuant to the
provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million
issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money markel instruments {from over 100
countries) that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants"} deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among
Direet Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited ities, through el i puterized book-entry
transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities
certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-LLS, securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, cleating
corporations, and certain other organizations, DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation
("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Carporation and Fixed Income Clearing
Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access 1o the
DTC system is also available to others such as both L15. and non-U. 8, securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and
clearing cotporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly
("Indirect Participants”). DTC has a rating of AA+ from S&P Global Ratings. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on
file with the Securities and Exch C ission. More inft jon about DTC can be found at www.dtec.com and www.dic.org.

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through DTC Participants, which will receive a credit for such
purchases on DTC's records, The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Obligation {"Beneficial Owner") is in tum
1o be recorded on the Direct or Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC
of their purct but Beneficial Owners are expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well
as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direet or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into
the transaction, Transfers of ownership interest in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Participants
acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests
in the Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-eniry system described herein is discontinued.

To facilitate subseq fers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of DTC's
partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit
of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not affect any change in
beneficial ownership, DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity



of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are eredited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct
and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behaif of their customers,

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect Parlicipants,

and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject

to any statutery or regulatory requitements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take

certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respeet to the Bonds, such as redemptions,
o Eon

tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments 1o the Bond d . For P ial Owners of Bonds may wish to
ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In
the alternative, Beneficial Cwners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices

be provided directly to them.

Redemption natices shall be sent to DTC. 1f less than a1l of the Bonds within a maturity are being redeemed, DTC's practice is to
determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such maturity 1o be redeemed.

Neither DT( nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Bonds, unless authorized by a
Direct Participant in dance with DTC's Proced Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the City as
soon as possible after the Record Date (hereinafter defined). The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights
to thase Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the Record Date (identificd in a listing attached to the
Omnibus Proxy).

All payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co, or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative
of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’ aceounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and ponding detail infi i
from the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records.
Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case
with securities held for the accounts of eustomers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of
such Participant and not of DTC nor its nominee, the Paying Agent/Registrar or the City, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect fiom time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds and principal and interest to Cede & Co, (or
such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the City or the Paying
Agent/Registrar, disbursement of such payments to Direct Parlicipants shall be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of
such payments to the Beneficial Owners shall be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants,

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving reasonable
notice to the City or Paying Agent/Registrar. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor securities depositery is not
obtained, Bonds are required to be printed and delivered.

The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry tansfers through DTC {or a successor securities depository).
In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered,

Effect of Termination of Book-Entry-Only System. In the event that the Book-Entry-Only System is discontinued, printed Bond
certificates will be issued to the halders and the Bonds will be subject to transfer, exchange and registration provisions as set forth
in the Ordinance and summarized under "THE BONDS - Transfer, Exchange and Registration” herein.

Lise af Certain Terms in Other Sections of this Official Statement. In reading this Official § it should be und d that
while the Bonds are in the Book-Entry-Only System, references in other seclions of this Official Statement to registered owners
should be read to include the person for which the Participant acquires an interest in the Bonds, but (i) all rights of ownership must
be exercised through DTC and the Book-Entry-Only System, and (ii) except as deseribed above, notices that are to be given to
registered owners under the Ordinance will be given only to DTC.

Information concerning DTC and the Book-Entry-Only System has been obtained from DTC and is not guaranteed as to accuracy
or completeness by, and is not to be construed as a representation by the City, the Financial Advisor or the Initial Purchaser (defined
herein).

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR. . . The initial Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds is Zions Bancorporation, National Association,
Houston, Texas. In the Ordinance, the City retains the right to replace the Paying Agent/Registrar, The City ants to maintai
and provide a Paying Agent/Registrar at all times until the Bonds are duly paid, and any successor Paying Agent/Registrar shall be
a ial bank, trust company, financial i or other entity duly qualified and legally authorized to serve as and perform
the duties and services of Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds. Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds,
the City agrees to promptly cause a written notice thereof to be sent to each registered owner of the Bonds by United States mail,
first class, postage prepaid, which notice shall also give the address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar.

Interest on the Bonds shall be paid to the registered owners appearing on the registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar al
the close of business on the Record Date (hereinafter defined), and such interest shall be paid (i) by check sent United States mail,
first class, postage prepaid, to the address of the regi i owner led in the registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar
or (ii) by such other method, aceeptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar requested by, and af the risk and expense of, the registered
owner. Principal of the Bonds will be paid to the registered owner at the stated maturity orupon early redemption, upon presentation
to the designated paymentitransfer office of the Paying Agent/Registrar; provided, however, that so long as Cede & Co, (or other
DTC nominee) is the registered owner of the Bonds, all payments will be made as deseribed under "THE BONDS - Book-Entry-
Only System" herein, IT the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds shall be # Saturday, Sunday, a Jegal
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

M. Contracts, Commitments, and Contingent Liabilities

Federal and State Grants

The City participates in a number of state and federally assisted grant programs. These programs are
subject to program complionce audits by the grantors or their representatives, Any liability for
reimbursement which may arise as the result of these audits is not believed to be material.

The City and Sports Corporation are confingently liable in respect of lawsuits and claims in the ordinary
course of operations which, in the opinion of management, will not have material adverse effect on the
combined financial staterments,

Water intake Facility Contract

The City entered info a confract with the Trinity River Authority [TRA) whereby TRA agreed to sell revenue
bonds, and, to construct and operate water treatment, fransmission and storage facilities necessary to
supply freated water fo several area cifies. The City has aiso agreed confractually fo pay TRA annually
anamount sufficient to pay it's pro rata share of the operation and maintenance expenses of the facllities
and related debt service of its bonds. The project is not treated as a joint venture by the City since the
project is managed and unilaterally controlled by TRA, the City has no equity inferest in the project, and
the City is not obligated for the repayment of TRA bonds,

Wi urchase Con 1s

The City has a 30-year contract with the City of Dallas, which expires in 2042, for the purchase of water.
Grand Praiiie currently takes up fo 37.8 million gallons a day (MGD), and pays a fixed demand charge
plus a volume charge. The demand charge is based on curent maximum demand or the highest
demand established during the five preceding years, whichever is greater. Thus, even if the City were to
stop purchasing water from Dallas, its obligation to pay the dermand charge ($291,422) would extend for
five years. The maximum may be increased in future years as needed, Grand Pralrie has two intake points
for City of Dallas water with a contractual right obligating the City of Dallas to meet Grand Prairie's needs.
Existing pipelines will provide up to 55 MGD.

A contract with the City of Fort Worth, effective until the year 2031, permits the City to purchase up to
2.5 MGD.

A confract with the City of Midlothian, executed in 2014 fora 30-year term, permits the City to purchase
up to an average of 4.5 MGD during the ferm of the confract. Beginning in January 2014, the City began
purchasing water from the City of Midlothian at an average rate of 0.478 MGD,

A contract with the City of Arlington, executed in 2011 for a 20-year term, allows the City to purchase up
to 2.5 MGD maximum flow unless otherwise agreed to in writing. As of Septernber 30, 2021, no water has
been purchased through this contract.

Wastewater Treatment Confracts

The City has a 50 year confract with TRA, which will expire in 2023, for wastewater freatrent. The City is
billed for its prorated share of total wastewater costs, which was 16.69% during fiscal year 2021, The City
must pay its prorated share of the debt service related to wastewater treatrment facilities until the debt
matures whether it confributes to flow or not,
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L. Fund Balance

At September 30, 2021, fund balances were classified as follows:

Honmajor
Sheeti Dt Govemmental
Ganeral Sectiond clp Cronls Sevice Funcs Tobo
Fund bolances
Honspendable:
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Al Bhi Youlls Hes? e
Sreet Plon Review Fal tkd . A1
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SaclionB b 2,440,325 A 24807325
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Pouk Venue Copliol Projects - * . £ g 1996518 1776518
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Commitied he
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Poit Vanue = s o . 1.77%,553 1,779,553
Cabie Operaliar - - = . 505,285 05,265
Verisan Thaotre £ - 2 - 2 LAbD B ]
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Assigred Yo
Home satch Cosh et et li]
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Firee- Shata Supplenental Funds 1444850 = - 148850
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Fitby Cresk Accesibily Goicen 4778 . * = = 38774
U3 Maeshals Sarvice Agreamant 27768 Framl
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holiday or a day when banking institutions in the city where the designated paymenttransfer office of the Paying Agent/Registrar
is localed are authorized to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not such a day, and
payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the date payment was due,

TRANSFER, EXCHANGE AND REGISTRATION. . . In the event the Book-Entry-Only System should be discontinued, printed Bond
centificates will be delivered 1o the registered owners of the Bonds and thereafter the Bonds may be transferred and exchanged on
the registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar only upon presentation and surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar, and such
transfer or exchange shall be without expense or service charge to the registered owner, except for any tax or other governmental
charges required to be paid with respect to such registration, exchange and transfer. Bonds may be assigned by the execution of
an assignment form on the respective Bonds or by other instrument of transfer and assignment acceptable to the Paying
Agent/Registrar. New Bonds will be defivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar, in liew of the Bonds being transferred or exchanged,
at the designated office of ihe Paying Agent/Registrar, o sent by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the new
registered awner or his designee, To the extent possible, new Bonds issued in an exchange or transfer of Bonds will be delivered

to the regi | owner or assignee of the regi d awner in tiot more than three business days after the receipt of the Bonds to be
canceled, and the written instrument of transfer or request for exch duly d by the regi 1 owner or his duly authorized
agent, in form satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, New Bonds regi d and deli | in an exchange or transfer shall be

in any integral multiple of $5,000 for any one maturity and for a like aggregate principal amount as the Bonds surrendered for
exchange or transfer. See "THE BONDS - Book-Entry-Only System" herein for a description of the system to be utilized initially
in regard to ownership and transferability of the Banis, Neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to transfer
ar exchange any Bond called for redemption, in whale or in part, within 45 days of the date fixed for redemption; provided,
however, such [imitation on transfer shall ot be applicable to an h by the regi d owner of the fled balance of a
Bond called for redemption in parl.

RECORD DATE FOR INTEREST PAYMENT. . . The record date ("Record Date”) for the interest payable on the Bonds on any interest
payment date means the close of business on the last business day of the preceding month.

In the event of a non-payment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for 30 days thereafier, a new record date for such
interest payment (a "Special Record Date”) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment
oF such interest have been received from the City. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past
due interest ("Special Payment Date”, which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five business days
prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of each registered owner of a
Bond appearing on the registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business an the last business day next
preceding the date of mailing of such notice.

REGISTERED OWNERS® REMEDIES. , . The Ordinance provides that in the event the City {a) defaults in payments to be made to the
Interest and Sinking Fund or the Reserve Fund as required by the Ordinance or (b) defaults in the observance or performance of
any other of the ts, conditions or obligations set forth in the Ordinance, the Holder or Holders of any Bond shall be entitled
10 writ of mandamus issued by a court of proper jurisdiction compelling and requiting the governing body of the City and other
officers of the City to observe and perform any 1, condition or obligation prescribed in the Ordinance. The issuance of &
writ of i is lled by equitable principles and rests with the diseretion of the eourt, but may not be arbitrarily refused.
The enforcement of such remedy may be difficult and time consuming and a registered owner could be required to enforce such
remedy on a periodic basis, There is no acceleration of maturity of the Bonds in the event of default and, consequently, the remedy
of mandamus may have to be relied upon from year (o year. The Ordinance does not provide for the appointment of 4 trustee to

the i of the bondholders upon any failure of the City to perform in aceordance with the terms of the Ordinance, or
upon any other condition and, accordingly, all legal actions to enforce such remedies would have to be undertaken at the initiative
of, and financed by, the registered owners. On April 1, 2016, the Texas Supreme Cowrt ruled in Wasson Interests, Led. v, City af
Jacksonville, 489 8.W. 3d 427 (Tex. 2016) (" Wasson”) that sovereign immunity does not imbue a city with derivative immunity
when it performs proprietary, as opposed to governmental, funetions in respeet to contracts exceuted by a city. The Texas Supreme
Court reviewed Wasson again in June 2018 and clarified that to determine whether governmental immunity applies to a breach of
contract claim, the proper inquiry is whether the municipality was engaged in a governmental or proprietary function when it

entered into the contract, not at the time of the alleged breach. Therefore in regard 1o icipal contract cases (as in tort claims) it
is incumbent on the courts to determine whether a function was proprietary or governmental based upon the statutory guidance at
the time of the contractual relationship. Texas jurisprudence has 11y held that proprietary functions are those fucted by a

city in its private capacity, for the benefit only of those within its corporate limits, and not as an arm of the government or under
the authority or for the benefit of the state. If ign i ity is d ined by a court to exist, then the Texas Supreme Court
has rued in Tooke v. City of Mexia, 197 5.W. 3d 325 (Tex. 2006), that a waiver of soversign immunity in a contractual dispute
st be provided for by statute in “clear and unambiguous” janguage. Chapter 1371, Texas Government Code (“Chapter 1371")
which pertains to the issuance of public securities by certain issuers such as the City, permits the City to waive sovereign immunity
in the p di horizing its debt obligations. The City has relied upon Chapter 1371 in connection with the issuance of the
Bonds, but the City has not waived sovereign immunity in the manner provided by Chapter 1371, Because it is unclear whether the
Texas legislature has effectively waived the City’s sovereign immunity from a suit for money damages, holders of the Bonds may
ot be able to bring such a suit against the City for breach of the Bonds or Ordinance covenants. Even if a judgment against the
City could be obiained, it could not be enforced by direct levy and execution against the City’s property. Furthermore, the City is
cligible to seek relief from its creditors under Chapter 9 of the U.§. Bankruptey Code ("Chapter 9"}. Although Chapter 9 provides
for the recognition of a security interest represented by 4 specifically pledged source of revenues, such es the pledged Net Revenues,
such provisions are subject to construction. Chapier 9 also includes an automatic stay provision that would prohibit, without
Bankruptcy Court approval, the prosecution of any other legal action by creditors or holders of the Bonds of an entity which has
sought protection under Chapter 9. Therefore, should the City avail itself of Chapter 9 protection from creditors, the ability to
enforce creditors’ rights would be subject to the approval of the Bankruptey Court {which could require that the action be heard in
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Bankruptey Court instead of other federal or state court); and the Bankruptcy Code provides for broad discretionary powers of a
Bankruptey Court in administering any proceeding brought before it. The opinion of Bond Counsel will note that all opinions
relative to the enfi bility of the Ordi and Bonds are qualified with respect to the customary rights of debtors relative to
their creditors,

THE SYSTEM

WATER SYSTEM ., The City's water supply is obtained from City-owned wells, from Dallas Water Utilities ("DWU"} and from
the Cities of Fort Worth, Mansfield and Midlothian. The City has also entered into a contract with the City of Arlington for
additional water supply, as needed. During the year ended September 30, 2022 approximately 0% of the supply came from the
City’s wells, 90.8% from DWLU, 5.6% from Fort Worth, and 3.5% from the City of Midlothian.

The City has a renewable 30-year contact with the City of Dallas, which expires in 2042, for the purchase of water. The City may
take up to any amount, but is tly itted to a mini amount of 37.8 million gallons a day, and pays a fixed demand
charge plus a variable charge. The gallons per day (GPD) demand charge is based on current maximum demand or the highest
demand established during the five preceding years, Thus, if the City were to stop purchasing water from Dallas, its obligation 1o
pay the demand charge ($312,607 per million GPD In 2022) would extend for five years. The maximum amount of water the City
may take may be increased in future years as needed.

A contract with the city of Fort Worth, effective until the year 2031, provides the City with 2.5 million gallons per day for the
balance of the term of the contract,

A contract with the City of Midlothian, executed in 2014 for a thirty-year term, permits the City to purchase up to an average 4.5
MGD during the term of the contract, Beginning in January 2016, the Cily began purchasing water from the City of Midlothian at
an average rate of 0,478 MGD.

A contract with the City of Arlington, executed in 2011 for a twenty-year term, allows the City to purchase up to 2.5 MGD
maximum flow unless otherwise agreed 10 in writing, As of September 30, 2022, no water has been purchased through this contract,

The amounts paid to cutside agencies during the last five fiscal vears are as follows:

Fiscal
Year City of Cedar City of Total Cost
Ended Dallas Water Utilities City of Ft.Worth _HillM idlothian M ans field of Water

930 Yolume Charges  Demand Charges Volume Charges ~ Volume Charges  Volume Charges Purchased

208 5 3624469 § 9479477 5 1,984,800 5 2,051,049 5 - $ 17,139,795
2019 2,096,198 7,556,649 1,764,335 2,046,677 - 13,463,850
2020 3518313 10,108,439 1,722,731 1,845,048 57,287 17,194,531
2021 2,747,196 10,337,927 1,772,039 1,892,366 BB, 490 16,749,528
2022 3,518,556 10,999 481 1,858,406 1,858,406 532,902 18,234,849

The City operates wells in 4 locations, with a total pumping capacity of 3,686,400 GPD. In addition, the City operates 14 pumps
in nine locations with a production capacity of 64,728,000 GPD, Storage capacily consists of 34.0 million gallons of elevated
storage and 15.9 million gallons of ground and underground storage.

The water distribution system consists of approximately 844 miles of water lines and 7,200 fire hydrants. DWU provides two water
distribution locations, the Morth Connection, with a maximum allotment of 20.0 million GPD, and the South Connection, with a
maximum allotment of 35 million GPD, Based on current pipeline capacity, the total is 55 million GPD.

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Naotes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

MRS lemental Death

Difference In expected and octudl experience
Difference in assumptions

Difference in projected and actual earnings
on OPES plan investments

Employer's contributions to the OPEB plan
subsequent fo the measurement date

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB

measurement date of $30,535 wil be recognized as a red
City's financial statements Septermber 30, 2022. Other amounts
of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in pension exp

Retiree Health Insurance

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

3 336,699  § {612.182)
1,189,992 (144,508

30,535 -
$ 1,557,226 § |756,690)

resulting from confributions subsequent to the

Measurement MNet deferred
Period Ended outflows (inflows)
September 31, of resources
2022 $ (453,955
2023 [453,955)
2024 408,482
2021 408,482
2024 -
Total $ {90.548)
————
TMRS Suj mental th
Measurement MNet deferred
Year Endad outflows {inflows)
December 31, of resources
20 } 167.926
2022 167,924
2023 160,848
2024 117.758
2025 79,582
Thereafter 75,961
Total b1 770,001
—
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
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The following presents the fotal OPEB figbility of the City's TMRS supplernental plan calculated using the
discount rate of 2.00%, as well as what the City's total OPEB lictbility would be If it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (1.00%) or 1 percentage point higher (3.00%) than the
current discount rafe:

Sensitivity of the OPEB Liability to
Changes in the Discount Rate

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rale 1% Increase
$ 6435476 % 5288290 % 4,398,326

Sensitivity of the Tolol OPEB Liabilify to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

The following presents the fofal OPEB liability of the City's retiree health insurance, as well as what the
City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healtheare cost trend rates that are one
percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rate:

Sensitivity of the CPEB Liabllity 1o
Changes in the Healthcare Cost Rale
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

$ 56,434,600 § 65,656,336 % 74,380,016

OPER Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
Far the year ended September 30, 2021, the City recognized fotal OPEB expense of $6,000,782 which
included $5,518,041 relafed to Retfiree Health Insurance and 3482741 related to TMRS Supplemental
Death.

At September 30, 2021, the City reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB from
the following resources:

Retiree Health Insurance
Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Difference in expected and actual experience 3 - $ (2,087.798)
Cifference in assumptions 2,651 496 (654,244)
Difference in projected and actual earnings
on OPER plan inv estments - -
Employer’s confributions to the OPER plan
subsequent to the measurement date - -

$ 2651496 b 12,742,042}
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FUTURE WATER SUPPLY

The City entered into a contract with the Trinity River Authority {the "TRA") and the cities of Cedar Hill and Duncanville to finance
the construction of a water intake fucility at Joe Pool Lake. The project, now completed, is not treated #s a joint venture by the City
since the asset is owned and managed by TRA. TRA provides financing, management, and operations and the cities reimburse it for
total costs as fallows:

Grand Prairie 33.22%
Duncanville 19.22%
Cedar Hill 47.56%
Total 100.00%

According to the terms of a contract between the City and TRA, the City is entitled to 10.56% of the raw water yield of Joe Pool Lake,
which is now filled, The reservoir yields 15.1 million GPD. The City has retired all debt relating to Joe Pool Lake.

The City has also entered into a contract with TRA and the cities of Duncanville and Cedar Hill for the lease of a site for, and the
v | cr ion of, 4 water plant at Joe Pool Lake. No construction on the plant is currently scheduled. The City’s
share of the plant will be 33.22%.

(The REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY)



TAbLE 1 - WATER AND WASTEWATER RATES City Of Grand Prairie, Texas

The City"s palicy provides for a 2.00 times coverage ratio of all debt service requirements of the System, compared to a 1.25 times Noftes to the Basic Financial Statements

coverage ratio for Bonds Similarly Secured, which is required by the Bond Ordinance. In addition, the policy states that the City September 30, 2021
will strive to maintain working capital at 25% of budgeted expenditures. It is the City's goal to set water and wastewater rates to
achieve compliance with these policios. (See “TABLE 6~ Coverage and Fund Balances), The discount rate was based on the Fidelity index’s "20-Year Municipal GO AA Index” rate as of
Water Rates (Per 1,000 Gallons) 1012022 100172021 Dcamber3l. 2000;
Classification
Residential . wied i
Per 1,000 gallons, total usage 3,000 gallons or less § 02 § 012 Ch:]:lﬂgeHln O;E;B Liability TDI‘Gi OPEB
Per 1,000 gallons, total usage more than 3,000 gallons, Reliree Health Insurance Licbility
and up to and including 20,000 gallons 4.87 4.62 Belance atf Septermber 30, 2020 $ 62543755
Per 1,000 gallons, all quantities over 20,000 gallons 874 8329 Changes for the year:
Commercial 542 504 Seriibe ool ! 4393970
Industrial 542 504 . i .5?8r?28
Governmental 4.56 4.33 o
Fire Hydrant 1047 9.69 Difference between expected

and actual experience =

Minimum M onthly Charge (Based on Meter Size): Changes In assumptions
Benefit poyments* {2.859.417)

S/8" or 344" 3 1696 5 1696
" 21.82 2].82

114" 26,00 26.09 Net changes _ﬂ’_@ﬂ
en 833 2833 Balance at Septermber 30, 2021 § 6565633
2 4923 46.66 —_—
3" 152,62 144,66 ’ s
2 189.20 179.33 Change in OPEB Liability 10tlcl (_L‘l_F'EB

& 283,66 268.87 TMRS Supplemental Death Licibility

¥ 3473 37420 Balance af December 31, 2019 $  4419,808
10" :;;92 j?g;i Changes for the year:

2 A ’ Service cost 191,195
Wastewater Rates (Per 1,000 Gallons) Inferast 123.620
Classification Difference between expecied

Residential § 502 $ 47 and actual experience (93,363)
Commercial 6,49 6,09 Changes in assumptions 687,282
Industrial 649 6.09 Benefit payments* (40,252}

39 J

Governmental 5 5.06 N&TERGHGes 848,482
Wastewater M inimum charges based on metel size Balance at December 31, 2020 b 1 5,288,290
S/8" or 34" $ 1542 % 1542 T ————
L5y 16,70 16.70 *Due fo the Plan being considered an unfunded OPEB plan under GASE 75, beneflif payments are treated as being equal to the
114" 19.47 1947 employer's yearly confributions for refirees,

11 20,30 20.30
2r 2578 24.20 Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City's retiree hedlth insurance calculated using the

3 38.17 3584
4 30,68 47.59 discount rate of 2.41%, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using o
P 18,64 23,84 discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (1.41%) or 1 percentage point higher (3.41%) than the
g 111.25 104.46 current discount rafe:
" 142.43 133.74
12n 159.56 149.83 Sensltivity of the OPEB Liability to
Changes in the Discount Rate
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
16 3 72474347 % 65,656,336 $ 57,702,264
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas

Naotes to the Basic Financial Statements

September 30, 2021

The City of Grand Prairie TMRS supplemental death total OPEB fiabiiity of $5,288,290 measured as of
December 31, 2020, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date,

Actuarial Assumptions

The refiree healih insurance total OPEB liablity in the September 30 2021 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumpfions:

Inflation

Salary Increases
Discount Rate

Mortality rates - refirees

2.50%
3.50%
241%
RP-2014 Cornbined Table projected using MP-2019

The discount rate was selected by City of Grand Prairie based on the Bond Buyer 20-Bond General
Obligation Index to reflect yields on long-term rmunicipal bonds as of the measurement dafe.

The TMRS supplemental death total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation

Salary Increases
Discount Rate
Adrinistrative expenses

Mortdlity rates - service refirees

Mortality rates - disabled refirees

2.50%

3.50% to 11.5% including inflation

2.00%

All adrrinistrative expenses are paid through the Pension Trust and
accounted for under reporting requirements under GASB Statement No.
68,

2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables, The rates are
projected on afully generational basis with scale UMP.

2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables with a 4 year set forward
for males and a 3 year sel-forward for females, In addiiion, a 3.5% and 3%
rrinirmum moridlity rote will be applied to reflect the impairment for
younger members who become disabled for males and females,
respectively. The rates are projected on o fully generational basis by Scale
UMP to account for future mortality improvemenis subject to the floor.
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TABLE 2 — AVERAGE DAILY WATER USAGE (GALLONS)

Fiscal Year Average M aximum Total

Ended 9/30 Daily Usape ~ _Day's Use Pumped In
2018 26,064,236 39,935,407 9,513,445,970
2019 25,695,470 40,241,588 9,378,845,231
2020 25,309,444 39,398,631 £,237,947,193
2021 26,820,923 51,820.977 9,655,532,244
2022 27,431,983 44,240,436 10,012,673,826

WASTEWATER SYSTEM

“The City does not operate any wastewater ireatment facilities. The City operates its own collection system with 771 miles of sewer
lines, which consists of gravily-flow sewer mains which collect in sub-mains, flow into lift stations, and pump into high elevation
farce mains and truck mains, which conmects to TRA interceptors. The City operates and maintains one lift station with 3,000
gallons per minute (GPM) capacity which pumps into a 12" force main, two lift stations with 1,800 GPM of total capacity which
pump into a 6" force main, one lift station with 120 GPM capacity which pumps inta a 2" force main and one Jift station with 90
GPM of total capacity which pumps to a TRA interceptor. All of the City’s wastewater is treated by TRA.

The City entered into a contract in 2002 which is in effect for the entire useful life of the Mountain Creek Regional Wastewater
System. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022, the City paid $388,200 to the System.

The City has a contract with TRA, which will expire in 2023, for wastewater treatment. The City is billed for its provated share of
TRA's total wastewater treatment costs, which was $20,534,004 in 202142022, The City must pay its prorated share of the debt
service related to wastewater treatment facilities until the debt matures whether it contributes to flow or not.

TARLE 3 — AVERAGE DAILY WASTEWATER FLOW (GALLONS)

Fiscal Year Average

Ended 930 _Daily Usage
2018 17,758,618
2019 19,182,600
2020 18,386,940
2021 17,769,071
022 W @

{13 Final report from the Trinity River Authority not vet available.

The amounts paid to TRA during the last five fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal Year ‘Wastewater Treatment Joe Pool Joe Panl

Ended 9/30 M aintenance Debt Service Subtotal Intake Corp of Engineers Total
2018 $ 5612671 0 10,134974 S 15,747,645 $ 534 b = $ 15,752,969
2019 7.054,098 11,646,796 18,700,894 14,105 - 18,714,992
2020 6,275,525 12,078,406 18,353,931 19,791 - 18,373,722
2021 6,870,003 14,732,121 21,602,214 24,529 - 21,626,744
2022 6,025,051 14,500,043 20,534,004 22,707 - 20,556,801

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY)



TABLE 4~ TEN LARGEST SYSTEM CUSTOMERS c“y Of Grand Prairie, Texas
MNotes to the Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended Scptember 30, 2022
p A
Total Amount Billed September 30, 2021
Customer Consumption ‘" Billed Water W . . s e
e The City offers medical, dental, and visi overage to eli refirees,
Bell Helicopter 115,058 §1,128,029 $ 591,398 ¥ 536,631 b o sen & 9 cighle &
Coca-Cola North America 67,690 691,999 322,09 369,908 EAEIS Sversa i Shi farns
Fresh Express 62,631 BOE,660 322,386 286,274 For refiree hedlth insurance at the September 30, 2021 valuation and measurement date, the following
Bigelow Colorado DBA Budget Suites 54,281 549,068 282,791 266,277 employees were covered by the benefit terms:
North Texas Healthcare Laundry 46,385 431,808 238,419 193,389
Lockheed-Martin 3BATH 384,635 198,327 186,308 Inactive employses or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 226
Canyon Grove LP DBA Canyon Grove Apts 36,991 336,690 190,134 146,556 Active employees 1,328
Poly America Inc, 30,148 353,919 249,046 104,873 Tolal 1,654
Bigelow Arizona DBA Budget Suites 20,999 379,719 256,171 123,548 —
M ountain Creek Homeowners 28,073 326,918 232,372 94,546 For TMRS supplemental death at the December 31, 2020 valuation and measurement date, the following
Totals 509,732 $5,191,445 $2,883,135 §2,308,310 employees were covered by the benefit terms:
TSI Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 662
(0 1 LU0 gallens, Incciive employees enfifled te but not yet receiving benefits 133
TABLE 5— WATER AND WASTEWATER CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS Aclive employees 1,372
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, Total - 2167
1 2019 18 i
_— 202 2020 1 20 017 ; Confrbiions
For retiree health insurance, refirees and thelr spouses currently receiving benefits are required to
Sales to Customers §48,486,361 B47,152407  $42337,949  S4d.893468  $40,565,531 o : : .
i sy o ” g niribute speci amounts mon oward th | A
er Charges to C 30,735,699 20,819,236 28,616,537 28,328,868 26,663,505 co peciied TN S e cost of heclin g rance prerniunms
Wastewater Surcharge/M onitoring 29,791 64,008 224,590 846,222 70,104 MOI’\TNY retiree contribution rates are as follows:
Impact Fees 2,103,858 2411,560 2,757,880 2,743,483 2,652,051
ther 293,455 S48 418,505 203254 3273,191 Refiree Monihly Health Care Premiums for Grandfathered Refirees under 85 (Employee Pays Porfion)
Total Revenues $82449,078  $80.576,747  $74,955 461 $T7717,295  §$73.004,382 Monthly
e Health Care
Expenses A
Premium
Salaries & Personnel Benefits $12,662,732  F B9B0138 § B724260 § BO072II9 § R,149.266 s
Professional Services 6,254,924 5,361,752 6,501,575 6,236,044 9,637,701 Over 65 Retiree
Franchise Fees 3,408,287 3,085,068 2,840,985 2,927,443 2,691,080 (Grandfathered by oge)
Water Purchase 16,749,528 17,194,531 13,463,858 16,917,148 14,780,509 Employee only 3 241
Wastewater Treatment 20,926,676 17,778,836 18,689,151 15,644,623 14,988,513
Other ™ 6,479,987 5,987,712 6,875,638 6,650,580 5,264,002 Employee plus spouse 238
Total Expenses B66,482,134  $SBIRE0IT  $57.095476 $S6448166  $555310M1
Availshle for Debt Service FI5.967.044  $22UBBTIO  $I7.859.985  $21269,0120  $17.493311 Retiree Month Ith Care Premiums Retirees under 65 (Employee Pays Portion)
Monthly
(1) Includes operating and non perating revenue. igch _Ccre
(2) Excludes depreciation and debt service expense. M
(3} Includes payments with respect to TRA Water Contract Bonds secured by surplus revenues and, if needed, by an ad valorem
a0 Group EPO HOHP
Retiree Only $ 284 3 170
Retiree + Spouse 539 404
Refiree + Children 562 324
Farrily 757 569
Total Liabili
The City of Grand Prairie retiree health insurance total OPEB liability of $45,656,336 was measured as of
18 September 30, 2021, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas TABLE 6 - COVERAGE AND FUND BavancES "
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Average Annual Principal and Interest Requirements, All Water and Wastewater

System Revenue Bonds, Fiscal Year Ended 9/30/2023 £2,736,567
Coverage of Average Annual Requirements based on 9/30/2021 Revenue Available
The death benefit for active employees provides @ lump-sum payment approximately equal to the for Debt Service 583 x

employee's onnual salary (calculated based on the employee's actual earnings, for the 12-month period
preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an "other

t | b it OPEB Total Principal and Interest Requirements of all debt obligations paid from Water
post-employment benefit," or i

and Wastewater Treatment Fund, Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bond,
Conteact and Tax Obligations issued for System lmprovements, Fiscal Year Ended

Retiree Heglth Benefits 9/30/2023 $6,786,927
Current employees who retire from the City of Grand Praifie under a TMRS Retirement / Plan option may Coverage of Total Requirements based on 93012021 Revenue Available for Debt
elect to remain on the City's medical, dental, and vision insurance plars as long as they meet the Service 235 x

following criteria:
(1) Includes the Bonds.
« Underage of 65 ; T .
. . _ § A Note: There are some differences between the way revenue and expenses are reported for coverage caleulation purposes and GAAP.
«  Curently working for the City immediately prior to refirement, and Therefore, the revenue and expense amounts listed above are not in compliance with GAAP, but ate in compliance with bond

« Payment of required monthly premiums by due date, or within grace period ardinance requirements for coverage calculation purposes. These differences include:
. 7 . . D jation is idered an o i for financial GAA i t i
TMRS Retirement / Plan oplion may include: 1 puf-—poses, is an of ¥ or JAAP teporting purposes but not for coverage calculation
i are included in other ¢

Won
2. Non-op

« Service refirement, 25 years of TMRS creditable service at any age, of
« Age 60 and 5 years of TMRS creditable service TABLRT - VALUE OF THE SYSTEM
« Disability/medical refirement af any age, if approved by TMRS For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Eligibility requirements do not vary by type of retirement, The retiree health care plan is a single-employer Water and Sewer System $3I60001,615  $343830008  $333806006  $355110305  $334,067,330
defined benefit plan. No frust is setup for the plan; therefore, there is no separale audit report available. Building and Equipment 17,393,238 17,203,148 16,177,629 28,519,085 27,331,777
Land 2,597,138 2,597,138 2323,249 2,208,926 1,968,211
Rretirees pay a portion of their retiree health care premium based on their years of service with the City of Total Value $379.991901  $363.630384 _$352.306974 _$38B5.838316  $363,367,318
Grand Prairie, the plan selected, and dependent coverage when they retire. The base refiree health care o
premium is based on the accrual rate, claims costs, and budget for the prior fiscal year. Less: Accumulsted Dep 213,251,250 200,549,272 189,374,030 219,509.383 205,947,622
S166,740.741 5163000112 S162,932884 5166328933 $157,419.696
Medical coverage for refiree benefits extends only fo age 65. Once a refiree reaches age 5. they will be Ph‘*'-f""‘"““‘*‘" b Frogess 32,966,015 30,907,973 257220178 2315 23,526,601
dropped from medical coverage at the beginning of the month in which they tumn 65. If a retiree cancels Net Property, Phint and Equipmenl  $100,706,756  $193.998,085  SI88654962  SISKTOIME  $190946,297
any or all psurcnce at any hrng during retirerent, they forfeit all rights to coverage throughlthe City for TABLE 8— Crry's EQUITY IN SYSTEM
that beneiit. If they cancel medical coverage all together, they may not elect medical again in the future
for any reason. For Fiscal Yea Ended September 30,
. . i 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
A spouse who is on the employee's plan at the fime of retirement may confinue on the plan until the

? Net Propérly, Plant and Equipment  S199,706,756  $193,098,085  SIBB654962  SISBT03.248  §190,946207
spouse reaches age 65, Spouse coverage continues after the employee reaches the age 65 and after pey A

the death of the employee uniil the spouse reaches the age of 65, as well. Spouse coverage confinues S i lavestmenta Dy i WaerA08 89,064,363 TBSHE

even fhough the employee becomes Medicare eligitle. Other Assets 13,362,171 8,146,347 7,345,674 6,369,580 6,157,799
Total Assels §308,580,786  $29001B355  $266,468,044 §284,137,193  $268,959,779

Rates for spouse coverage are dependent upon the employee's years of service with the City of

Grand Prairie. Spouses receive the same benefits as the employee. Surviving spouses of deceased active Long-term debt § 30,021,745 § 45403478 § 51,743,033 § 53,509,433 § 54,559,501

members are not eligible for retiree health care benefits, unless they become eligible under TMRS and Other Liabilities 26,883,316 22,965,799 25,560 R40 26,058,710 21,692,544

elect retirement immediately following the month of death. They become “retiree" in that case. Total Liabilities $ 65905061 $ 68.369,277 $ 71312873 § 79,569,143 5 76,252,045

tor all refrements after 1/1/08, dependents must have been covered for the 2 years immediately

J € > ; ! City's Equity in System $242675,725  $222,549,078  B180,155,1T1 £204,568,050  §192,707,734
preceding the effective date of refirement fo be eligible to confinue coverage under refiree into

retirement. Percent Equity in System 78.64% 76.50% 70.99% 72.00% 71.65%
New dependents gained during refirement {due fo marfage o birth) may not be added fo the

City's plan since they were not eligible at the time of retirement.

Retirees that do not continue coverage through our refiree health care plans do not receive payment in 9

ligw of retiree health care.
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DEBT INFORMATION

TABLE 9 DERT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

Total

Fiseal Water &
Year Al Crunstanding Wastewater

Ending Water & Wastewater Revenue Debt Service The Bonds " System
930 Prineipal Inierest Total Principal Interest Total Debt Service
2023 F 5445000 $1,061,202 5 6,506,202 5 - 5 280,725 5 280,725 § 6,786,927
2024 5,620,000 BB2,619 6,502,619 - 478,963 478963 6,981,581
2025 5,140,000 703,150 5,843,150 360,000 471,763 831,763 6,674,913
2026 4,145,000 545,508 4,690,398 375,000 455,188 B30,188 5,520,786
027 3,900,000 409,031 4,309,031 395,000 435,938 B30,938 5,139,968
2028 2315000 313,748 2,628,748 415,000 415,688 30,688 3,459,435
2029 2380,000 247.088 2,627,088 435,000 394,438 #29.,438 3,456,526
2030 2,055,000 185,141 2,240,141 455,000 372,188 827,188 3,067,338
2031 1,090,000 137,278 1,227,278 480,000 48813 528,813 2,056,091
2032 B50,000 103,280 953,280 505,000 324,188 820,138 1,782 468
2033 BE0.000 74,736 934,736 530,000 298,313 828313 1,783,049
2034 610,000 50912 660,912 560,000 271,063 #31,063 1,491,875
2035 630,000 32,016 662,016 385,000 242,438 827438 1,489,454
2036 650,000 12,256 662,256 615,000 215513 B3nS513 1,492,769
2037 160,000 1,832 161,832 640,000 190,413 B30413 992,245
2038 160,000 1,144 161,144 665,000 164,313 429,313 990457
2039 160,000 30 160,392 650,000 137,213 827,213 087,605
2040 - - - T20,000 109,013 829,013 B29.013
2041 - - - 750,000 T9.613 829,613 829,613
2042 B - - 780,000 49,013 B29.013 E29.013
2043 - - - 810,000 16,706 826,706 E26,706
336,190,000 §4,761,423 £40,951,423 $ 10,765,000 F 5,751,494 $16,516,494 $57467,917

TABLE 10 = AUTHORIZED REVENUE BONDS

Y off
Principal
Retired

54.05%

T744%

£9.92%

93.27%
100.00%

Pursuant to State law, the City is not required to obtain voter approval of the issuance of its revenue bonds through an election, The
City may issue Additional Bonds as permitted by the ordinances authorizing the Bonds and the Previously Issued Bonds,

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY)
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Related to Pensians
For the year ended September 30, 2021, the city recognized pension expense of $9,704,213.

At September 30, 2021, the City reported deferred inflows/outflows of resources related fo pensions from
the following sources:

Deferred Qutflows  Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Difference in expected and acfual experience $ 2225704 % [2,955,950)
[actuarial (gains) or losses]
Difference in assumptions 690,705 -
Difference in projected ond aciual eamings
on persion plan investments - (15,789.914)
[actuarial {gains| or losses]
Employer's contributions to the pension plan
subsequent to the measurement date 13,313,284
$ 16229693 % (18,745.864)

The $13,313,284 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent fo the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liabllity for the
year ending September 30, 2022, Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Measurement Net deferred
Year Ended oufflows {inflows)

December 31 of resources
2021 % [5.639,843)
2022 431,258
2023 [2.202.498)
2024 (1,345,074)
2025 {73,300)
Total 13 {15,829,455)

K. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)
Plan Description

upplemental Death Benefits
The City also parficipates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term life insurance
plan operated by the TMRS known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). The City elected, by
ordinance, to provide group-term life insurance coverage fo both current and retired employees. The
City may terminate coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance
before November 1 of any year to be effective the following January 1.
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of cosh flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer confributions will be made at the
rates specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan investments was applied fo
all periods of projected benefit payments fo determine the Total Pension Liability.

cl s in th Pension Ligbili
|ncrease (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
(&) (B (A)- (8]
Balance at December 31, 2019 $  619.684,063 $ 554100037 § 43584024
Changes for the year;
Service cost 18,113,194 - 18,113,194
Interest 41,452,842 = 41,452,842
Change of benefit terms - - -
Difference between expected .
and acluol experience (2.363.879) - (2.363,879)
Changes in assumptions - - -
Caontributions - employer - 16,938,302 14,938,302)
Conftributions - employee - 7,047,274 (7,047,274)
Net investment income - 42,208,241 (42,208,241)
Benefil payments® (29,248.955) (29,248,955) -
Adrministrotive expense - {273.140) 273,140
Other changes - {10.657) 10,657
Met changes 27,953,202 36,661,065 (8,707,863
Baolance ot Decamber 31, 2020 $ 647,637,265 5 592761,104 § 54876161
* Includes refunds of employee confributions
itivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Ra

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%,as
well as what the City's net pension liability would be if if were calculated using a discount rate that is
one-percentage-point lower (5.75%) or one-percentage-point higher [7.75%) than the curent rate:

sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to
Changes in the Discount Rate
Current
1% Decrease Single Rate 1% Increase

$ 147003326 0§ 54874161 $(20.712.746)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detdled information about the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately-issued
TMRS financial report, That report may be obtained on the Internet at www.fmrs.com,

INVESTMENTS

The City invests its investable funds in investments authorized by State law in accordance with investment policies approved by the
City Council (" Investmen Palicies"), Both State law and the City’s investment policies are subject to change,

LEGAL INVESTMENTS , .. Under State law and subject to certain limitations, the City is authorized to invest in (1) obligations of
the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities; (2) direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and
instr lities; (3) coll lized morigage obligations issued and secured by a federal agency or instrumentality of the United
States; (4) other obligations unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the State of Texas or the United States or their respective
agencies and instrumentalities; (5) "A" or better rated obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political subdivisions
of any state; (6) bonds issued, assumed, or guaranteed by the State of Israel; (7) federally insured interest-bearing bank deposits,
brokered pools of such deposits, and collateralized certificates of deposit and share certificates; (8) fully collateralized U.S.
& securities repurch ag) {9) one-year or shorter securities lending agreements secured by obligations
described in clauses (1) through (7) above or {1 1) through (14) below or an irevocable letter of credit issued by an "A" or better
rated state or hational bank; (10) 270-day or shorter bankers' acceptances, if the short-term obligations of the accepting bank or its
holding company are rated at least *A-1" or "P-1"; (11) commercial paper rated at least "A-1" or "P-1"; (12) SEC-registered no-
load money market mutual funds that are subject to SEC Rule 2a-T; (13) SEC-registered no-load mutual funds that have an average
weighted maturity of less than two years; (1 4) "AAA" o "AAAm"-rated investment pools that invest solely in investments
described above; and (15) in the case of bond p ds, g di that are secured by obligations described
in clauses (1) through (7) above and, except for debt service funds and reserves, have 4 term of 5 years or less,

The City may not, however, invest in (1) interest only obligations, or nan-interest bearing principal obligations, stripped from
morigage-backed securities; (2) collateralized mortgage obligations that have 2 remaining term that exceeds 10 years; and (3)

1l lized ge obligations that bear interest at an index rate that adjusts opposite to the changes in a market index, In
addition, the City may not invest more than 15 percent of its monthly average fund balance (excluding bond proceeds and debt
service funds and reserves) in mutual funds described in clause (13) above or make an investment in any mutual fund that exceeds
10% of the fund’s total assets.

Except as stated above or | i with its i policy, the City may invest in obligations of any duration without regard

ta their eredit rating, ifany. 1f an obligation ceases to qualify as an eligible investment after it has been purchased, the City is not

quired to liquidate the i t unless it no longer carries a required rating, in which case the City is required to take prudent
to liquidate the in that are consistent with its i policy.

INVESTMENT POLICIES . .. Under State law, the City is required to adapt and annually review written investment policies and must
invest its funds in accordance with its policies. The policies must identify eligible investments and address investment
diversification, yield, maturity, and the quality and capability of i For i whose eligibility is
rating dependent, the policies must adopt procedures to monitor ratings and liquidate investments if and when required. The
policies must require that all investment transactions setile on a delivery versus payment basis. The City must adopt a written
{nvestment strategy for each fund group to achieve investment objectives in the following order of priority: (1) suitability, (2)
preservation and safety of principal, (3) liquidity, (4) marketability, (5) diversification, and (6) yield.

State law requires the City's i be made "with judgment and care, under prevailing circumstances, that a person of
prudence, discretion, and intelligence would exercise in the management of the person’s own affairs, not for speculation, but for
i idering the probable safety of capital and the probable income to be derived.” The Cily is required to perform an
annual audit of the t contrals on i and compli with its in policies and provide regular training
for its investment officers.

THE CITY’s INVESTMENT POLICIES. . The City Manager designates the Chief Financial Officer as the City’s chief investment officer.
The Assistant Finance Director, Second Assistant Finance Director, and Treasury Analyst are desi d Adi | i
officers. The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the City's prehensive cash nent prog) including the
b ofthe I nt Policies. The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for considering the quality and capability of staff
dinin and proced The Chief Financial Officer shall be responsible for authorizing i and
the Treasury and Debt Manager shall account for i and pledged collateral in order to maintain appropriate internal controls,
The C ller shall be responsible for ding i in the City's books of accounts. The Internal Audit staff shall audit
records monthly and the external auditors will review for management controls on investments and adherence o policy as required by
law. On November 16, 2021, the City Council approved and readopted the | Policies.

City policy requires i in d with applicable State law, specifically the Public Funds Investment Act, Texas
Government Code, Chapter 2256, as amended, (the "PFIA"). The City's Investment Policy does not permit the investment of City
funds in all eligible investments permitted by State law. Furthermore, this policy specifically prohibits in in the followi
investment securities.

1. Bonds whose | T the coupon | on the fing principal balance of the underlying mortgage-
backed securily collateral and pays no principal.
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2. Bonds whose payment represents the principal stream of cash flow from the underlying mortgage-backed security collateral
and bears no interest.

3. Coll lized mortgage obli that have a stated final maturity date of greater than 10 yeus,
4. Coll lized gage obligations the interest rate of which is determined by an index that adjusts opposite to the changes
ina market index,

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE. . .An Investment Committee consisting of the Treasury Analyst, Treasury and Debt Manager, Controller,
Chief Financial Officer, and Deputy City Manager shall meet as frequently as necessary to review the City's investment portfolio, The
committee shall also meet as necessary to add or delete a financial institution or broker/dealer from the list of institutions with which
the City may do business or 1o conduct other business. The committee shall also meet to review prosg financial and
other performance data on maney market mutusl funds and shall formulate recommendations on the advisability of investing in specific
funds for the consideration of the City Council.

Any three of the five In Ci i I itute a quotum. The Treasury and Debt Manager shall serve as chaimman
of the committee, and maintain wiitten record of i i i

TABLE 11 - CURRENT INVESTMENTS

As of September 30, 2022, the following percentages of the City's i ble funds were invested in the following gories of
investments:
Type of Investment Percentage Book Value
Local Government Pools and Money Market Funds 12.16% § 54823245
Federal Agency and Instrumentality Notes B7.84% 395,950,623
450773868

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY)
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Salary increases are based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members are based on
ihe PUB(10} mortaiity tables with the Public Safety table used for males and the General Employee table
used for females, Mortality rates for healthy refirees and beneficiaries are based on the Gender-distinet
2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas mortality tables, The rates for actives, healthy retirees and beneficiaries
are projected on a fully generational basis by Scale UMP fo account for future mortality improvernents.
For disabled annuftants, the same mortality tables for healthy retirees are used with a 4- year set-forward
for males and a 3-year set-forward for females. In addition, a 3.5% and 3.0% minimum. The city should
insert the plan provisions that they have adopted. For example, the city may include retirement eligibility,
employee and employer deposit rafes, vesting requirements, and other provisions such as cost-of-iving
adjustments or updated service credit. Plan provisions, by city, are included in the last section of TMRS'
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Annual Report) and are alse available on the website under For
Cities | Resources | My City Plan. The city may also want to refer to TMRS' Plan Description footnote, in
the Annual Report, to obtain additional language regarding the pension plan. 16 mortality rate is applied,
for males and females respectively, to reflect the impairment for younger members who become
disabled. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by Scale UMP to account for future maortality
Irmprovements subject to the floor

The actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuarial investigation of the experience of
TMRS over the four-year period from December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2018. They were adopted in
2019 and first used in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation. The past-retirement mortality assumption
for Annuity Purchase Rates (APRs) s based on the Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009
through 2011 and dated December 31, 2013. Plon assefs are managed on a total return basis with an
emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the production of income in order to safisfy the short-
ferm and long-term funding needs of TMRS.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of refum (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of retumn by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. In
determining their best estimate of a recommended investment returmn assumption under the various
alternative asset allocation portiolios, GRS focused on the area between (1) arithmetic mean (aggressive)
without an adjustment for fime (conservative] and (2] the geomehic mean |conservative] with an
adjustment for fime (aggressive). The target allocation and best estimates of real rates of return for each
major asset class In fiscal year 2021 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Real Rale of Refurn
Asset Class Target Allocafion {Arithmetic)
Global Public Equity 30.0% 5,30%
Core Fixed Income 10.0% 1.25%
MNon-Core Fixed Income 20.0% 4,14%
Real Return 10.0% 3.85%
Real Estate 10.0% 4.00%
Absolute Return 10.0% 3.48%
Private Equity 10.0% 7.75%

Total 100.0%
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Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At the December 31, 2020 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by
the benefit terms.

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits B4
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 488
Active employees 1,372
Total 2,924

Contributions

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of employee gross eamings, and the
city matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by the governing body of
the city. Under the state law goveming TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually
by the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate
is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits eamed by employees during the year,
with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability,

Employees for the City of Grand Prairie were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross eamings
during the fiscal year. The confribution rates for the City of Grand Prairie were 17.00% and 17.44% in
calendar years 2020 and 2021, respectively. The City's contributions to TMRS for the year ended
September 30, 2021, were $17,966.312, and were equdl fo the required contributions.

Net Pension Liabilify
The city's Net Pension Liability {NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2020, and the Total Pension Liability
[TPL} used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions
The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation was defermined using the
tollowing actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2,5% per year

Overal payroll growih 2.75% per year, adjusted down for
population declines, it any

Investment rate of return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment
expense, including inflation
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SELECTED PROVISIONS OF THE BOND ORDINANCE

The foll
of the B
Oridinane

of the Bo
provided:

ving are selected pr of the Bond Ordinance. These excerpts should be qualified by reference to the exact terms
wd Ordinanee. Unless otherwise indicated, any references to sections listed below are to sections contained in the Bond
e and section headings contained in the following excerpis are to sections confained in the Bond Ordinance.

Section 10, Definitions. For purposes of [the] Ordinance and in particular for clarity with respect to the issuance
néls authorized [by the Ordinance] and the pledge and appropriation of revenues therefor, the following definitions are

(a) The term “Additional Bonds™ shall mean the additional parity revenue bonds which the City reserves
the right to issue in [the] Ordinance.

(b) The term “Bonds" shall mean the water and wastewater system bonds authorized by [the]
Ordinance and designated as “City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, New Series
2022

(e) The term “Bonds Similarly Secured” means the Bonds, the Previously lssued Bonds and Additional
Bonds.

(dy The term “Fiscal Year” shall mean the twelve months' period ending September 30 of each year,
unless otherwise designated by the City,

{e) The term “Net Revenues” means all income, revenues and receipts of every nature derived from and
received by virtue of the operation of the System (including interest income and earnings received from the investment
of moneys in the special Funds created by or maintained under [the] Ordinance) after deducting and paying, and making
provisions for the payment of, current expenses of maintenance and operation thereof, including all salaries, labor,
materials, repairs and extensions necessary to render efficient service; provided, however, that only such expenses for
repairs and extensions as in the judgment of the City Council, bly and fairly ised, are y 10 keep the
System in operation and fo render adequate service to the City and the inhabitants thereof, or such as might be necessary
to meet some physical sceident or condition which would otherwise impair any obligations payable from the Met
Revenyes of the System, shall be deducted in d ining “Net R e | payments for the purchase of
water or the treatment of sewage shall be a maintenance and operating expense of the System to the extent provided in
the contract incurred therefor and as may be authorized by law. Depreciation shall never be considered as an expense of
operation and maintenance.

(fy The term “Ordinance” means [the] Ordinance under which the Bonds are authorized,

(g The terms “Or ding” and * fing", when used in [the] Ordinance with respect to Bonds,
Previously Issued Bonds or Additional Bonds means, as of the date of determination, ail bonds tt issued and
delivered, except:

N those bonds tk fi led by the paying ag gistrar or delivered to the

paying agentiregistrar for caneellation;

(2) those bonds for which payment has been duly provided by the City of the
imevocable deposit with the paying ag gistrar, or an authorized escrow agent, of money, or

government securities, or both, in the amount necessary to fully pay the principal of, premium, i
any, and interest thereon to maturity or redemption, as the case may be, provided that, if such bonds
are to be red d, notice of redemption thereof shall have been duly given pursuant to the ordinance
authorizing such bonds or irrevocably provided to be given to the satisfaction of the paying
agent/registrar, or waived;

(3) those bonds that have been mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen and replacement
baonds have been registered and delivered in lieu thereof as provided in the ordinance authorizing
such bonds.

(hy The term “Previously Issued Bonds™ means the Outstanding (i) “City of Grand Prairle, Texas, Water
and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, New Series 2010," (if) “City of Grand Praivie, Texas, Water and Wastewater
System Revenue Refunding Bonds, New Series 2011, (iii) "City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Water and Wastewater System
Revenue Refunding Bonds, New Series 2013,” (iv) “City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Water and Wastewater Syslem

Revenue Bonds, New Series 2014," (v) “City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Water and W System R Refundi
Bonds, New Series 2015, {vi) “City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Water and W System Rev ling and
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Improvement Bonds, New Series 2016," (vii) “City of Grand Praitie, Texas, Water and Wastewater System Revenue
Bonds, New Serfes 2017," (viii} “City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Water and Waslewater System Revenue Bonds, New
Series 2017A," (ix) “City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, New Series 2019,"

and (x) “City of Grand Praivie, Texas, Water and W System R Refunding Bonds, New Series 2020."

(i) The term “System" means the City’s existing combined waterworks and sewer systems, including all
properties (real, personal or mixed and tangible or intangible) owned, op d, maintained and vested in, the City for
the supply, treatment and distribution of treated water for domestic, commercial, industrial and other uses and the

Ilection and of water-carried wastes, together with all future additi i pl and
improvements thereto,

Section 11, Pledge of Revenues. That the City hereby covenants and agrees that, under the termis and conditions
of the ordinances and proceedings pertaining to their authorization, the Net Revenues of the System, with the exception of those in
excess of the quired for the p and security of the Bonds Similarly Secured, are hereby irrevocably pledged to the
payment and security of the Bonds Similarly Secured, including the establisk and mai of the special funds created

and established for the payment and security thereof, all as hereinafier provided, and it is hereby ordained that the Bonds Similarly
Secured, and the interest thereon, shall constitute a lien an the Net Revenues of the System and be valid and binding without any
filing or recording except for the filing of [the] Ordinanee in the records of the City.

Texas Government Code, Chapler 1208, as amended, applies to the issuance of the Bonds and the pledge of the revenues
granted by the City under this Section of [the] Ondinance, and such pledge is therefore valid, effective, and perfected. If Texas law
is amended at any time while the Bonds are Outstanding and unpaid such that the pledge of the révenues granted by the City under
this Section of [the] Ordinance is to be subjeet to the filing requi s of Texas Business and C Code, Chapter 9, as
amended, then in order o preserve to the Holders of the Bonds the perfection of the seeurity interest in such pledge, the City agrees
to take such measures as it determines are reasonable and necessary under Texas law to comply with the applicable provisions of
Texas Business and Commerce Code, Chapter 9, as amended, and enable a filing to perfect the security interest in such pledge o
oceur,

Section 12, Rates and Charges. For the benefit of the original purchasers as well as the ultimate owners of the
Bonds and other Bonds Similarly Secured and in addition to all provisions and covenants in the law of the State of Texas and in
[the] Ordinance, it is expressly stipulated that the City shall, at all times while any of the Bonds Similarly Secured are outstanding
and unpaid, maintain rates and collect charges for the facilities and services afforded by the System, as required by Texas
Government Code, Chapter 1502, as amended, which will provide revenues sufficient at all times to;

(a) pay for all maintenance, operation, debt service, depreciation, replacement and betterment charges of the
System;

(b) pay the interest on and principal of the Bonds Similarly Secured and the quired to be deposited into
the special Funds created and established for the payment and security of the Bonds Similarly Secured;

(c) produce Net Revenues each year in an amount reasonably estimated to be not less than 1.25 times the average
annual principal and interest requi of the O ling Bonds Similarly Secured; and

(d) pay all ding, legally i against the System, as and when the same become due,

Section 13, Bevenue Fund. The City again covenants that it will deposit, as collected, all revenues of every
nature derived fram the operation of the System into a separate account known as the “City of Grand Prairle, Texas, Water and
Wastewater System Revenue Fund (herein called the “R; Fund”) | fi blished which shall be kept separate and
apart from all other funds of the City, and, further, that such Revenue Fund shall be pledged and appropriated to the following uses
and in the order of precedence shown:

First: To the p of all y and bl i and operati P of the System as
such expenses are defined by law;

Second: “To the payment; equally and ratably, of the quired to be deposited in the Interest and Sinking
Fund created and established for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds Similarly Secured
as the same becomes due and payahle;

Thivd: Tothey of the juired to be deposited in the Reserve Fund created and to be maintained
for the benefit and security of the Bonds Similarly S d in ] with the provisions of [the]
Ordi or any other ordi relating to the issuance of Bonds Similarly Secured;

Fourth To the payment of any other indebtedness payable from and secured, in whole or in part, by a lien on and

claim against the Net Revenues of the System; and
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At September 30, 2021, the change in estimates of accrual liabilities for health coverage for the risk
management fund:

Beginning of Clairms and End of
Fiscal Year Changes in Claim Fiscal Year
Licbifity Estimaotes Payments Liability
2021 $ 4283783 3 20447012 % 19.218.777 6812118
2020 4,145,940 19,807,058 17,669,235 6,283,783
209 3971327 15,449,741 15,275,108 4,145,960

J. Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Elan Description

The City participates as one of 895 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributery, hybrid defined benefit
pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement Systermn (TMRS), TMRS is an agency created
by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subfitle G, Title 8, Texas
Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for municipal
employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and management of
the System with a six-member Board of Trustees. Although the Govemner, with the advice and consent of
the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas. TMRS's defined
benefit pension plan is a tax-gualified plan under Section 401 (a) of the Intemal Revenue Code. TMRS
issues o publicly available Annual Comprehensive Financial Report that con be obfdined of
www. trnrs.com.

All eligible employees of the city are required to participate in TMRS.

ided
TMRS provides refirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the governing
body of the city, within the options avallable in the state statutes governing TMRS.

At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee's contributions, with interest, and
fhe city-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity, Members may choose
to receive thelr retirement benefit in one of seven payments options. Members may also choose to
receive a portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump Sum Distribution in an amount equadl to 12, 24, or 34
monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75% of the member's deposits and interest.

Plan provisions for the City are as follows:

Employee deposit rate 7%

Matehing rafio (City fo employes) 2t

Years required tor vesting 5

Service refirement eligibility 25 years at any age, 5 years
at age 40 and above

Updated service credit 100% Repeating fransfers

Annuily increase to refirees 70% of CPl Repeating

Additional information related fo the TMRS Plan is located in the TMRS Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report,
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The City's current per occurrence and aggregaie limits through the TMLIRP are as follows:

Coverage Per Occurrence Aggregate
General Liability $ Lococon % 2,000,000
Law Enforcement Liability 3,000,000 6,000,000
Errors and Orrissions 3,000,000 6,000,000
Automobile Liability 3,000,000 N/A
Airport Liability 10,000,000 10,000,000

Current deductioles with TMLIRP are $350,000 for Workers Compensation with no aggregale refenfion;
$300,000 for all liabilify lines (General, Law Enforcement, Public Officials, and Auto Liability); $1,000 for
Automaobiles; and $10,000 for Mobile Equipment.

The City's operating funds are charged premiums for coverage provided by the Risk Management Fund
hased on approved annual budgets with adjusiments based on estimates of the amounts needed fo
pay prior and current-year claims. These inter-fund premiums are used to reduce the amount of actual
expenditures.

Liabilities of the Risk Management Fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has occured and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabiiities include an amount for claims that have been
incurred but not reported (IBNR). The result of the process 1o estimate the claims liability is not an exact
amount as it depends on many complex factors, such as inflation, timing of filed claims, adjudication of
claim benefits, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards.

Accordingly, claims are reevaluated annually to consider the effects of inflation, plan benefit designs,
recent claim settiement trends, claim expense, and other economic and social factors. The estimate of
the claims liability clso includes amounis for incremental claim adjustment expenses related fo specific
claims and other claim adjustment expenses regardless of whether allocated 1o specific claims. The total
accrued liabilifies for fhe Risk Management Fund based on the recent Sepfember 30, 2021 actuaricl report
was $4,883,052.

The City offers group hedlth coverage to its employees and refirees in plans administered by
United Health Care using an escrow account funded by the City with bolh employee and City
contributions. The City allows retired employees under age 65 fo confinue participating in its group health
Insurance program after retirement with o portion of premiums paid by the City. The amount of premiums
paid by refirees is based on the refirement date, length of service with the City, plan selected and
dependents covered af the time of retirement. The City retains risk for up to $400,000 per member per
year, and transfers risk in excess of this amount to a reinsurer, Reported claims are charged to expense in
the period the loss is incurred. The total accrued liabilities for health insurance as of September 30, 2021
were $1,92%,066.
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Fifth: Any Net R ining in the Revenue Fund after satisfying the foregoing payments, or making
adequate and sufficient provisions for the payment thereof, may be appropriated and used for any other
purpose now or hereafier permitted by law,

Section 14, Interest and Sinking Fupd. The following provisions shall govern the establishment, maintenance

and use of the “City of Grand Prairic, Texas, New Series Water and Wastewater System Interest and Sinking Fund” (the “Interest
and Sinking Fund”). The City covenants that from the funds in the Revenue Fund, the City shall pay into the Interest and Sinking
Fund during each year in which any of the Bonds Similarly Secured are outstanding, an ameunt equal to one hundred percent
(100%) of the amount required to meet the principal and interest payments falling due on or before the next interest payment,
maturity or redemption date of the Bonds Similarly 1, such p 1o be made in suk inlly equal monthly installments.
I the revenues of the System in any month, after deductions for maintenance and operation expenses, are then insufficient to make
the required payments into the Interest and Sinking Fund, then the amount of any deficiency in the payment shall be added to the
amount otherwise required to be paid into the Interest and Sinking Fund in the next month. All moneys paid into the Interest and
Sinking Fund shall be deposited in the City's depository bank, and the Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, City Manager, Chief Financial
Officer or City Secretary, any one or more of such officials of the City, shall cause the depository bank, not later than any principal
or interest payment date, to transfer the amount then to become due to the paying agent. Such meneys not invested shall be
continuously secured by a valid pledge to the City of direet obligations of the United States of America having an aggregate market
value, exclusive of accrued interest, at all times at least equal to such Interest and Sinking Fund; provided however, that as to the
amaount on deposit in such fund which is allocated to the Bonds Similarly Secured and not invested, the deposit may also be secured
by a valid pledge of (a) general obligations (i) issued by the State of Texas, or any city, county, school district, or road district of
such state which have been approved by the Attorney General of Texas and which have investment quality, according to 2 naticnally
recagnized rating ageney and {ii) which have a maturity of twenty (20) years or less, or (b) general or special obligations of the
City of Grand Prairie which have been approved by the Attorney General of Texas, or (<) Government Mational Mortgage
Association fully modified pass through mortgage certificates, having a market value at all times equal to such deposit, to the extent
not covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Section 15. Reserve Fund. The following provisions shall govern the establishment, maintenance and use of the
“City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Mew Series Water and Wastewater System Reserve Fund” (the “Reserve Fund”). There shall
inue 1o be established and maintained a Reserve Fund for the purposes of (i) finally retiring the last of the Bonds Similarly

Secured and (i) paying principal of and interest on the Bonds Similarly Secured in the event moneys on hand in the Interest and
Sinking Fund ave insufficient for such purpose.

The amount to be accumulated in the Reserve Fund shall equal to the averag | debt service requi leulated
an & Fiscal Year basis) on all outstanding Bonds Similarly Secured (the “Required Reserve”). The Required Reserve shall be
blished and maintained with Net R of the System or other lawfully available funds of the City, the proceeds of sale of
Bonds Similarly Secured or by depositing to the credit of the Reserve Fund, to the extent permitted by law, one or more surety
honds or insurance policies issued by a company or institution having a rating in the highest rating category by two nationally
recognized rating agencies or services, or any combination thereof. The City hereby covenants and agrees that any additional
amount of the Required Reserve to be deposited in the Reserve Fund in connection with the issuance of the Bonds shall be funded
by monthly installments from funds in the Revenue Fund in an amount of not less than 1/60™ of the additional amount required to
be maintained in such Reserve Fund with the first payment to be made on or before the date specified in the Pricing Certificate and
any subsequent payments to be made on or before the 15t day of each month therealter.

As and when Additional Bonds are delivered or incurred, the Required Reserve shall be increased, if required, to an
amount equal to the lesser of (i) the average annual debt service requirements calculated on a Fiscal Year basis for all Bonds
Similarly Secured then Outstanding, as determined on the date each series of Additional Bonds is delivered or incurred, as the case
may be, or (ii) the maximum amount in a reasonably required reserve fund that can be invested without restriction as to yield
pursuant to Subsection (d) of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as ied, and regulati I 1 |
thereunder. Any additional amount required to be maintained in the Reserve Fund shall be so accumulated (i} by depositing to the
credit of the Reserve Fund (immediately after the delivery of the then-proposed Additional Bonds) cash or an additional surety
bond or insurance policy or revised surety bond or revised insurance policy with coverage in an amount sufficient to provide for
the new Required Reserve to be fully or partially funded, o (if) at the option of the City, by making monthly deposits from funds
in the Revenue Fund on or before the 1st day of each month following the month of delivery of the then- proposed Additional
Bonds, of not less than 1/60th of the additional amount to be maintained in such Fund by reason of the issuance of the Additional
Bonds then being issued (or 1/60th of the balance of the additional amount not deposited immediately in cash or provided by a
surety bond or insurance policy.)

When and so long as the cash and investments in the Reserve Fund and/or coverage afforded by a surety bond cr insurance
policy held for the account of the Reserve Fund total not less than the Required Reserve, no depasits need be made to the credit of
the Reserve Fund; but, if and when the Reserve Fund at any time contains less than the Required Reserve (or so much thereof as
shall then be required to be contained therein if' Additional Bonds have been issued and the City has elected to accumulate all or a
portion of the Required Reserve with Net Revenues), the City covenants and agrees 1o cause monthly deposits to be made to the
Reserve Fund on or before the 15t day of each month (beginning the month next following the month the deficiency in the Required
Reserve occurred by reason of a draw on the Reserve Fund or as a result of a reduction in the market value of investments held for
the account of the Reserve Fund) from Net Revenues of the System in an amount equal to either (1) 1/60h of the Required Reserve
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until the total Required Reserve then required to be maintained in such Fund has been fully restored or (2) the amounts to pay
principal of and interest on Bonds Similarly Secured held by an insurer, or evidenced by an instrument of assignment cntitling an
insurer to payment of principal of and interest on Bonds Similarly Secured, a5 a result of payments or draws made on a surety bond
or insurance policy held for the account of the Reserve Fund and such payments will result in the principal of and/or interest on
such Bonds Similarly Secured to be paid, as well as the restoration and replenishment of the surety bond or insurance palicy
coverage representing all or a portion of the Required Reserve. The City further covenants and agrees that, subject only to the
payments to be made to the Interest and Sinking Fund, the MNet Revenues of the System shall be applied and appropriated and used
to establish and maintain the Required Reserve and to cure any deficiency in such amounts as required by the terms of [the]
Ordinance and any other ordinance pertaining to the issuance of Additional Bonds.

During such time as the Reserve Fund contains the total Required Reserve, the City may, at its option, withdraw all
surplus in the Reserve Fund resulting from the in of the Required Reserve and deposit such investment earnings in the
Revenue Fund; provided, however, that to the extent the investment earnings are derived from proceeds of bonds used to fund all
or a portion of the Required Reserve such investment earnings may only be used for the same purposes for which such bond
proceeds may be used,

Section 16. Investment of Certain Funds. The Interest and Sinking Fund may be invested in investments
authorized by the Public Funds Investment Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 2256, as amended, and the City’s investment
policy. All moneys resulting from the investment of such fund shall be transferred (o the Revenue Fund as received,

The Reserve Fund may be invested or reinvested from time to time in investments suthorized by the Public Funds
Investment Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 2256, as amended, and the City's investment policy. All moneys resulting from
the investment of the Reserve Fund shall be transferred to the Revenue Fund as the same are received,

Section 17, Further Covenants. The City further covenants and agrees by and through [the] Ordinance as follows:

(a) That the Bonds shall be special obligations of the City, and the registered owners thereof shall never have the
right to demand payment out of any funds raised or to be raised by taxation.

by That it has the lawful power to pledge the revenues supporting the Bonds and has lawfully exercised such
power under the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, and that the Bonds issued under [the] Ordinance shall be ratably
secured in such manner that no one Bond shall have preference over any other Bond or Bonds or Bonds Similarly Secured.

(3] That other than for the payment of the Bonds and the Previously Issued Bonds, the Net Revenues have not been
in any manner pledged to the payment of any debt or obligation of the City or the System, other than debt or obligations which
have 4 lien on or pledge of the Net Revenues subordinate to the lien on and pledge of such Net Revenues to the Bonds Similarly
Secuyred.

Section 18, Issuance of Additional Bonds.
{(a) That, in addition to the right to issue bonds of inferior lien as authorized by law, the City reserves the right to
issue Additional Bonds, for the purpose of improving, di quipping and iring the System and for the purpose of

refunding in any lawful manner, any part or all of the Bonds Similarly Secured or other obligations of the City eligible to be
refunded under the laws of the State of Texas as such laws now or hereafter may exist. The Additional Bonds shall be secured by
and payable from a lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues in the same manner and to the same extent as any then Outstanding
Bonds Similarly Secured, and the Additional Bonds then proposed to be issued shall in all respects be on & parity and of equal
dignity as to lien and right. Additional Bonds may be issued in one or more installments; provided, however, that none of the
Additional Bonds shall be issued unless and until the following conditions have been met, to wit:

(i} The City is not then in default as to any covenant, condition or obligation prescribed by any ordinance
authorizing the issuance of the Outstanding Bonds Similarly Secured;

{ii) Each of the special Funds created for the payment and security of the Bonds Similarly Secured contains the
ampunt of money then required to be on deposit therein;

(ii) The City has secured from a certified public a certificate showing that the Net Earnings for either
the completed Fiscal Year next preceding the date of the Additional Bonds or a consecutive twelve-month
period out of the last fifteen months next preceding the date of the Additional Bonds is equal to at least 1,25
times the average annual principal and interest requirements (calculated on a Fiscal Year basis at the time of
the issuance of Additional Bonds) of all Bonds Similarly Secured which will be Outstanding after the issuance
of the proposed Additional Bonds. However, (A) should the certificate of the accountant certify that the Net
Earnings of the System for the period covered thercby were less than vequired above, and (B) a change in the
rates and charges for services afforded by the System became effective at least 60 days prior to the last day
of the period covered by the accountant’s certificate, and (C) an independ i or engineering firm
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Environmental remediation liability activity for the primary government in fiscal year 2021 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Balonce Current
Property Descripfion /3072020 Additions Reductions /3072021 Paortion
Copeland Home Asbestos Abatement $ 20900 % - 5 - $ 20900 $ 20,900
Indoor Alr Assessment Service Center - 6,450 - 6,450 6,450
Total $ 20900 % 6450 % n $ 27350 % 27,350

Environmental remediation liability activity for the discretely presented component unit, the Grand
Prairie Local Government Corporation, in fiscal year 2021 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance Cumrent
Property Description 9430/2020 Additions Reductions 2/20/2021 Portion
Bella Vista Asbestos Abatement % - 3 239369 % - $ 239369 0§ 239347
Tatal 3 - $ 239380 § = $ 239369 0§ 239349

Other Liabilities

So avback

During fiscal year 2008, the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts notified the City of an error in sales
tax payments made to the City. The emror was the result of a local business reporting and paying taxes
incomrectly to the State Comptroller over several years, The overpayment by the business resulted in an
overpayment to the City for $2,386,466, In 2012, a liability for this amount was recorded by the City and is
repaid from future sales tax revenue over a period of thirteen years.

During fiscal year 2021, the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts notified the City of an error in sales
tax paymentfs made to the City. The error was the result of a local business reporting and paying taxes
incorrectly fo the State Comptroller over several years. The overpayment by the business resulted in an
averpayment to the City for $3,108,638. In 2021, a liability for this amount was recorded by the City and
is repaid from future sales tax revenue over a period of six years,

As of September 30, 2021, the total liability equaled $4,087,229.

I. Risk Management

The City currently administers o deductible program for Workers Compensation, all Lickility, Property,
Airport, and Crime claims through the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool [TMLIRP), a
public entity risk pool. The TMLIRP sustains itself through member premiums and stop loss coverage for
excess claims through commercial insurers.
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The lease has been accounted for as o capital lease. However, orly the base rent payments are
determinable and are included in the lease payments receivable at the net present value of future rent
payments. The remaining portion of the Facility is recorded as estimated unguaranteed residual value of
the lease. Iis fair value is estimated to be approximately equal to the differences between fhe original
cost plus capitalized improvements of the Facility, net of what accumulated depreciation would be, and
the fixed lease payments receivable. Therefore, this amount is being amortized over the life of the lease
{thirty years). Amertization for the year ended September 30, 2021 was $4,555,909. Additional confingent
rentals are recorded as revenue when received.

The capital lease Is being amortized using the interest method over the 30-year life of the lease. The
Caomoration has recorded leose rental and interest for the year ended September 30, 2021 as follows.

Mominal interest on the lease 1 1,756,920
Amertization of the lease (1,244,624)
MNet interest 512,296
Confingent rentals received (includes rent far simulcast
facility prior fo completion of project] 175,138
Total lease renial and interest % 487,434
losure and Post Closure Ligbili

State and federal laws and regulations reguire the City to place a final cover on its landfill site when it
stops accepting waste and fo perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for
30 years affer closure. Although closure and post closure care costs will be paid only near or ofter the
date that the landfills siop accepting waste, the City reports a portion of these closure and post closure
care costs as an operating expense in each period based on landfil capacity used as of each balance
sheet date. The City follows the provisions of GASB Statement No. 18 Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste
Landfill Closure and Post closure Care Costs. Accordingly, the City has recorded a closure and post
clasure care liability of $9,083,018 in the Solid Waste Fund. The total liability represents the cumulative
amount reported to date based on the use of 51.55% of the estimated capacity of the landfill.

The City will recognize the remaining esfimated cost of closure and post closure care of $8,824,451 as the
remaining estimated capacity is filled. The City expects fo close the landfill in year 2037. Actual cost may
be higher or lower due to inflation, changes in technology or changes in regulations.

Environmental Re iation Obligation:
The City and the Grand Praiie Local Government Corporation have recorded a liabilities related to
environmental remediation in the amount of $27,350 and $239.369, respectively, in the Statement of Net
Posifion. The estimates of 1he liabilities cre prepared by the Environmental Professional Group and by the
City's Environmental Quality Manager and based on a range of expecied outlays, net of expected cost
recoveries, if any, for the type and amount of paliution contamination detected. The estimates are
reviewed and adjusted periodically for price changes, additional contamination and any ofher changes
detected.
« The City owns the building and is responsible for the asbestos abatement of the Copeland home
located at 125 SW Dallas Street,
« The City owns the Service Center and is respensible for the quality of dir circulating throughout it
and determining whether it poses any health risks fo those inside.
« The Grand Praifie Local Gavemment Corporation owns the building and is responsible for the
asbestos abatement located at 1000 W Main Street.
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having a national reputation with respect to such matters will certify that, had such change in rates and charges
been effective for the entire perind covered by the accountant'’s certificate, the Net Earnings covered by the
accountant’s certificate would have been, in his or their opinion, equal to at least 1.25 times the average
annual principal and interest requirements (calculated on a Fiscal Year basis) of the Outstanding Bonds
Similarly Secured after giving effect to the issuance of the Bonds, and Additional Bonds, then, in such event,
the coverage specified in the first of this (i) shall nat be required for the period specified,
and such accountant’s certificate will be sufficient if panied by an engineer’s centifi to the above
effect,

{iv) The ordinance authorizing the Additional Bonds (A) requires that deposits shall be made into the Interest and
Sinking Fund in amounts adequate to pay the principal and interest requirements of the Additional Bonds as
the same become due; and (B) provides that the aggregate amount to be accurnulated and maintained in the
Reserve Fund shall be an amount equal to the Required Reserve for all Outstanding Bonds Similarly Secured

theretofore issued and to be O Jing after the i of such Additional Bonds; and
(v) The Additional Bonds are scheduled to mature only on January 15 or July 15 or both.
(b) The term “Net Earnings,” as used in [the] Ordinance shall mean all income, revenues, and receipts derived

from the operation or by reason of the ownership of the System, including grants, gifts, contributions in aid of construetion (but
excluding meter deposits), interest earned on invested moneys in the special Funds crented therein for the payment and security of
Bonds Similarly Secured, after deduction of mai and operation expenses but not deducting depreciation, and other
expenditures which, under standard accounting practice, should be classified as capital expenditures.

() Wherever, in (the] Ordinance, the City reserves the right to issue Additional Bonds, such term shall also
include, mean and refer to any other forms or types of abligations, whether now existing or hereafler authorized, which may be
made lawfully payable from and secured by the Net Revenues.

Section 19. Obligations of Inferior Lien and Pledge. The City retains the right to create and issue evidences of
indebtedness whose lien on the Nel Revenues of the System shall be subordinate to that possessed by the Bonds Similarly Secured.

Section 20, Maintenance and Operation - Insurance. The City shall maintain the System in good condition and
operate the same in an efficient manner and at reasonable cost. 8o long as any Bands are outstanding, the City agrees to maintain
insurance for the benefit of the holder or holders thereof an the System of a kind and in an amount which usually would be carricd
by private companies engaged in a similar type of business. Nothing in [the] Ordinance shall be construed as requiring the City to
expend any funds derived from sources other than the aperation of the System, but nothing therein shall be construed as preventing
the City from doing so.

Section 21. Regords - Accounts - Accounting Reports, The City covenants and agrees that so long as any Bonds,
or any interest thereon, remain outstanding and unpaid, it will keep and maintain a proper and plete system of records and

accounts pertaining to the operation of its System separate and apart from all other records and accounts; complete and correct
entries shall be made of all transactions relating to the System, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles except
as provided by Texas Government Code, Chapter 1502, as amended; and registered owners shall have the right at all reasonable
times to inspect all such records, accounts and data relating thereto, and to inspeet the System and all properties comprising same.
The City further agrees that following the close of each Fiscal Year, it will cause an audit of such books and accounts to be made
by an independent firm of certified public acce f national reputation. Each such audit, in addition to whatever other matters
may be thought proper by the accountant, shall particularly include the following:

(a) A detailed statement of the income and expenditures of the System for such Fiscal Year.

(b) A balance sheet as of the end of such Fiscal Year.

(e} The ! ding the mannet in which the City has carried out the requirements of [the]
Ordi and his dations for any ch or impr ts in the operation, records and accounts of the System.

Expenses incurred in making the audits referred to hereinat are to be regarded as mai and

and paid as such, Coples of the aforesaid annual audit shall be immediately furnished, upon request, to the nrié‘mal puw:llémer or
any subsequent owrier of the Bonds.

Section 22. Excess Revenues. As provided in Section 13 [of the Ordinance], all revenues in excess of those
required to establish and maintain the Interest and Sinking Fund and the Reserve Fund as required, may be used for any proper
City purpose now or heretofore permitted by law.
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Section 23, Security of Funds. All funds for which provision is made by the Ordinance shall be secured in the
manner and to the fullest extent permitted by law for the security of public funds and the funds created by the Ordinance shall be
used only for the purposes therein specified.

Section 24, Remedy in Event of Default. In addition to all the rights and remedies provided by the laws of the
State of Texas, the City covenants and agrees particulaly that in the evenl the City (a) defaults in payments to be made to the
Interest and Sinking Fund or the Reserve Fund as required by [the] Ordinance, or (b) defaults in the observance or performance of

any other of the 3 li or obligations set forth in [the] Ordinance, registered owner or owners of any of the Bonds
shall be entitled to a writ of mandamus issued by a court of proper jurisdiction, compelling and vequiring the City and its officers
to observe and perform any 3 lition or obligation prescribed in [the] Ordi No delay or omission to ise any

right or power aceruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power, or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such
default or acquiescence therein, and every such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed
expedient,

The specific remedy provided shall be cumulative of all other existing remedies and the specification of such remedy
shall not be deemed to be exclusive.

Section 25. Bonds are Special Obligations. The Bonds are and shall be special obligations of the City payable
from the pledged Net Revenues, and the holder or holders thereof shall never have the right to demand payment of the Bonds out
of funds raised or o be raised by taxation.

Section 26. Bonds are Negotisble Instruments. Each of the Bonds authorized shall be deemed and construed to
b a "Security™ and as such a negotiable instrument within the meaning of Chapler 8 of the Texas Uniform Commercial Code, as
amended,

Section 27, Competition - Sale of System. So far as it legally may, the City covenants and agrees, for the
protection and security of the Bonds, and the registered owner or owners thereof from time to time, that it will not grant a franchise
for the operation of any competing system in the City until all Bonds shall have been retired. Neither the System, nor a substantial
part thereof, shall be sold while the Bonds are outstanding, but nothing in [the] Ordinance shall prevent the sale or disposal of
properties constituting a part of the System which are no longer useful in connection with the operation thereof.

Section 28. Satisfaction of Obligation of the City. 1f the City shall pay or cause to be paid, or there shall otherwise
be paid to the Holders, the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, at the times and In the manner stipulated in
[the] Ordinance, then the pledge of under [the] Ordi and all X and other obligations of the City
to the Holders shall it pon cease, i and be discharged and satisfied

Bonds or any principal amount(s) thereof shall be deemed to have been paid within the meaning and with the effect
expressed above in this Section when (i) money sufficient to pay in full such Bonds or the principal amount(s) thereof at maturity,
together with all interest due thercon, shall have been irrevocably deposited with and held in trust by the Paying Agent/Registrar,
or an authorized escraw agent, or (i) Government Securities shall have been inevocably deposited in trust with the Paying
Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow agent, which Government Securities shall mature as o principal and interest in such
amounts and at such times as will insure the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money, together with any moneys
deposited therewith, if any, to pay when due the principal of and interest on such Bonds, or the principal amount(s) thereof, on and
prior to the Stated Maturity thereof. In the event of a defeasance of the Bonds, the City shall deliver a certificate from its financial
advisor, the Paying Agent/Registrar, an independent certified public accountant, or another qualified third party concerning the
sufficiency of the deposit of cash andfor Government Securities to pay, when due, the principal of, redemption premium (if any),
and interest due on any defeased Bonds, The City covenants that no deposit of moneys or Government Securities will be made
under this Section and no use made of any such deposit which would cause the Bonds o be treated as “arbitrage bonds™ within the
meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™), or regulations adopted pursuant thereta,

Any moneys so deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an suthorized escrow agent, and all income from
Government Securities held in trust by the Paying Agent/Registear, or an authorized eserow agent, pursuant to this Section which
is not required for the payment of the Bonds, or any principal amount(s) thereof, or interest thereon with respect 1o which such
moneys have been so deposited shall be remitted to the City or deposited as directed by the City. Furthermare, any money held by
the Paying Agent/Regisirar for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds and remaining unclaimed for a period of
three (3) years after the Stated Maturity of the Bonds such moneys were deposited and arc held in trust to pay shall upon the request
of the City be remitted to the City against a written receipt therefor. The provisions of this paragraph ave subject to the applicable
unclaimed property law of the State of Texas,

The City reserves the right, subject to satisfying the requirements of (i) and (ii) above, to substitute other Government
Securities for the Government Securities originally deposited, to reinvest the uninvested moneys on deposit for such defeasance
and to withdraw for the benefit of the City moneys in excess of the amount required for such defeasance.
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Leases

ri Prairie Sports Faciiiti evelopment orafion] — onent Uni
Cn September 15, 1995, the Sporfs Corporation and LSJC entered info a lease agreement., On
October 23, 2002, Lone Star, LSJC, and MEC Lone Star, LP, (MEC) entered into an asset purchase
agreement whereby MEC agreed to purchase substantially all of the racing assets of Lone Star and LSJC.
The Master Agreement between the Sports Corporation, Lone Star, and LSJC was terminated. Lone Star
and LSJC assigned fo MEC all of their rights and obligations under the lease and certain ancillary
agreements with the Sports Corporation.

On March 5, 2009, Magna Enterfainment Corporation, the parent company of MEC, filed for bankruptcy
under Chapter 11 federal bankruptcy protection. Subsequently, on September 14, 2009, Lone Star filed
for bankruptcy protection.

On October 23, 2009, an auction for Lone Star was conducted with Global Gaming LSP, LLC [a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Chickasaw Nation) winning the auction for $47 million.

On May 13, 2011, Global Gaming obtained their license with the Texas Racing Commission. The sale was
completed on May 16, 2011, Under the terms of the purchase agreement, Global Gaming has agreed to
assume the lease agreement between Lone Star and the Sports Corporation.

The agreement states that upon completion of the project, Global Gaming will lease the facility for a
period of thirty years. The lease became effective April 1997 and meets the requirements for accounting
as a direct financing lease.

The future base rent payments under the lease are as follows:

Year Armount
2022 5 1,888,489
2023 1,932,612
2024 1.932.412
2025 1,932,612
2026 1,932,612
Thereafter 1191777
10.810.914
Less inferest 2,109,274
MNet present value 8,701,440
Less current portion 1,244,624
Non-current portion 3 7,457,016

Addifional contingent rentals are due monthly based upon 1% of gross revenues fram the operation of
the frack for each month plus an amount equal to the cumulative net retainage from the live races and
the simulcast races multiplied by the following percentage:

Cunulative Net Retainages Percentage

30 te less than $20 million

$20 million 1o less than $40 millicn
$40 million 1o less than $60 milion
$40 million or more

HAE =
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Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation

The GPHFC has a general obligation note payable to a bank which was used to construct the Cotton
Creek and Willow Tree Learning Center. The note bears a rate of 4.25% and is payable in equal monthly
installments of $12,438 through September 21, 2040.

In December, 2003, the HFC issued Independent Senior Living Center Revenue Bonds for $13,820,000 to
finance the construction and cperations of its planned Senior Living Center facility. The bonds bear
interest rates from 7.5% fo 7.75% depending on longevity. Beginning January 1, 2011, semi-annual
retirements of the Bonds began and confinues through January 1, 2034. The bonds are non-recourse
liabilities collateralized solely by the land and construction in progress, less the accrued interest.

In April 2020, the HFC received a loan from Affiliated Bank in the amount of $119,096 under the Paycheck
Pratection Program [PPP) established by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES
Act). The loan bears interest at arate of 1% and is payable in monthly installiments of principal and interest
over 24 months beginning 4 months from the date of the note. The loan may be forgiven to the extent
that proceeds are used for eligible expenditures such as payroll and other eligible expenses described in
the CARES Act.

A summary of long-term debt activity during the year ended December 31, 2021 was as follows:

Due

Beginning Ending Within

Balance Addifions Deletions Balance One Yaar
PFP MNote payable $ - 3 119,09 $ = % 11909 § =
Note payable 2,054,379 - 63,148) 1,991,231 65,885
Revenue bonds 6,905,000 - [265,000) 4,640,000 295,000
Subordinate bonds 4,550,000 - - 4,550,000 -
Developer loan 1,467,291 41,760 - 1,509,051 =
Total & 14,976,670 % 140856 % (328148) % 14,809,378 % 360,885

Effective July 1, 2010 the bonds of the Senior Living Center were reissued in two series: $8,430,000 in Priority
Lien Revenue Bonds and $4,550,000 in Subordinate Lien Revenue Bonds.

Future maturities of the debt are as follows:

Year Ending Note Payable Revenue Bonds
December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2021 $ 65885 % 83372 % 295000 3% 508,781
2022 68,740 80.517 315,000 485,731
2023 7.7g 77,538 340,000 440,738
2024 74,824 74,429 370,000 434,000

2025-2029 425,682 320,602 2,335,000 1,681,944

2030-2034 526,271 220013 2,985,000 404,304

2035-203% 650,629 95,655 - -
2040 107,481 1,889 - -
Total $ 1971231 3 954015 § 4640000 % 4175700

The Subordinate Lien Revenue Bonds are not scheduled above as their payments are confingent upon
cash flow and payment amounts and periods are uncertain,
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Upan such deposit as described above, such Bonds shall no longer be regarded to he outstanding or unpaid. Provided,
however, the City has reserved the option, to be exercised at the time of the defeasance of the Bonds, to call for redemption, at an
carlier date, those Bonds which have been defeased to their maturity date, if the City: (i) in the proceedings providing for the firm
banking and fi ial arrang: pressly reserves the right to call the Bonds for redemption; (ii) gives notice of the reservation
of that right to the Holders of the Bonds immediately following the making of the firm banking and financial arrangements; and
{iii} directs that notice of the reservation be included in any redemption notices that it authorizes.

Unless otherwise provided in the Pricing Certificate, the term “Government Securities,” as used herein, means (i} direct
noncallable obligations of the United States of America, including obligations the principal of and interest on which are
uncanditionally guaranteed by the United States of America, (ii) noncallable obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the
United States, including obligati ditionall | or insured by the agency or instrumentality and that, on the date
of their acquisition or purchase by the City, are rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not
less than AAA or its equivalent, (iii) noncallable obligations of a state or an agency or a county, municipality, or other political
subdivision of a state that have been refunded and that, on the date of their acquisition or purchase by the City, are rated as to
investment quality by a nationally recognized i rating firm not less than AAA or its equivalent and (iv) any other then
authorized securities or obligations that may be used to defease obligations such as the Bonds under the then applicable laws of the
State of Texas.

Section 29. Ordinance to Constitute Coniract - Amendment. The provisions of [the] Ordi shall

a contract hetween the City, and the Holders; and, the City shall not amend or repeal any of the provisions of [the] Ordinance except
as permitted in this Section and Section 44 [of the Ordinance]. The City may, without the consent of or notice 1o any Holder, from
time to time and at any time, amend [the] Ordinance in any manner not detrimental lo the interests of the registered owner or
owners, including the curing of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or omission herein. [n addition, with the written
consent of the registered owner or owners holding a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding affected
thereby, the City may amend, add to, or reseind any of the provisions of [the] Ordinance; provided that, without the consent of all

gi d owners of O ding Bonds, no such amendment, addition or rescission shall: (1) extend the time or times of payment
of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, reduce the principal amount thereof or the rate of interest thereon,
or in any other way modify the terms of payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds; (2) give any
preference to any Bond over any other Bond; or, (3) reduce the aggregate principal amount of Bonds required for consent to any
such amendment, additien or rescission.

{THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY)
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TAXMATTERS

Tax EXEMPTION . .. The delivery of the Bonds is subject to the opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that interest on the Bonds
for federal income tax purposes (1) will be excludable from gross income, as defined in section 61 of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended to the date of such opinion (the "Code"), pursuant to section 103 of the Code and existing regulations,
published rulings, and court decisions, and (2} will not be included in computing the al i ini taxable income of the
owners thereof who are individuals. A form of Bond Counsel's opinion is reproduced in Appendix B. The statutes, regulstions,
rulings, and court decisions on which such opinion is based are subject to change.

In rendering the foregoing opinion, Bond Counsel will rely upon representations and certifications of the City made in a certificate
dated the date of delivery of the Bonds pedaining to the use, expenditure, and investment of the proceeds of the Bonds and will
assume continuing compliance by the City with the provisions of the Bond Ordinance subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds. The
Bond Ordinance contains covenants by the City with respect to, among other matters, the use of the proceeds of the Bonds and the
facilities financed therewith by persons other than state or local governmental units, the manner in which the proceeds of the Bonds
are to be invested, the periodic ealculation and payment to the United States Treasury of arbitrage "profits” from the investment of
the proceeds, and the reporting of certain information to the United States Treasury. Failure to comply with any of these covenants
may cause interest on the Bonds to be includable in the gross income of the owners thereof from the date of the issuance of the
Bonds.

Bond Counsel's opinion is not a guarantee of a result, but represents its legal judgment based upon its review of existing statutes,
regulations, published rulings and court decisions and the rep ions and ants of the City deseribed above. No ruling
has been sought from the Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS™) with respect to the matters addressed in the opinion of Bond Counsel,
and Bond Counsel's opinion is not binding on the IRS. The IRS has an ongoing program of auditing the tax-exempt status of the
interest on tax-exempt obligations, 1fan audit of the Bonds is d, under current py Jures the IRS is likely to treat the
City as the "taxpayer,” and the owners of the Bonds would have no right to participate in lhe audit process. In responding to or
defending an audit of the tax-exempt status of the intevest on the Bonds, the City may have different or conflicting interests fiom
the owners of the Bonds. Public awareness of any future audit of the Bonds could adversely affect the value and liquidity of the
Bonds during the pendency of the audit, regardless of its ultimate outcome.

Except as described above, Bond Counsel expresses no other opinion with respect to any other federal, state or local tax
consequences under present law, or proposed legislation, resulting from the receipt or accrual of interest on, or the acquisition or
disposition of, the Bonds. Pruspecljve purchasers of the Bonds should be aware that the ownershjp of tax-exempt abligations such

as the Bonds may result in coll: federal tax 1 es 10, among others, fi ial i i life i p s
property and casualty i P subject to the alternative mini tax on adjusted financial
income, certain foreign corporations dmng business in the United States, § corporations with subc C ings and profits,

individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits, individ uals otherwise qual!tylng for the earned income tax
credit, owners of an interest in a financial assel securitization investment trust (*FASIT"), and taxpayers \vho may be deemed to
have incurred or i | indebted o g rcarry, or who have paid or incurred certain exj fe to, t pt
obligations. Prospective purchasers should consult their own tax advisors as to the applicability of these consequences to thulr
particular circumstances,

For taxable years beginning after 2022, the Code imposes a minimum tax of 15 percent of the adjusted ﬁnnnclal Statement income
of certain Jarge corporations, generally isting of corporations (other than S corporations, d panics and
real estate !nve:stmcnt trusts) with more than $1 billion in average annual adjusted financial statement income, determined over a
three-year period. For this purpose, adjusted financial statement income generally consists of the net income or loss of the taxpayer
set forth on the taxpayer's applicable financial statement for the taxable year, subject to various adjustments, but is not reduced for
interest earned on lax-exempt obligations, such as the Bonds. Prospective purchasers that could be subject to this minimum tax
should consult with their own tax advisors regarding the potential impact of owning the Bonds,

I:.x]slmg law may chnnge 1o reduce or climinate the hcnz'.f't m bendholder 5 of the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross
income for federal income tax purposes. Any propi fon or admi; ive action, whether or not taken, could also affect
the value and marketability of the Bonds. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult with their own tax advisors with
respect to-any proposed or future change in tax law.

QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS FOR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS . . . Section 265 of the Code provides, in general, that
interest expense to acquire or carry tax-exempt obligations is not deductible from the gross income of the owner of such obligations.
In addition, section 265 of the Code completely disall any deduction for interest ex; which is i i by “financial
institutions" described in such section and is allocable, as computed in such section, to tax-exempt interest on obligations acquired
after August 7, 1986, Section 265(b) of the Code provides an exception to this rule for interest expense allocable to tax-exempt
obligations (other than private activity bonds) which are designated by an issuer, such as the Cily, as "qualified tax-exempt
obligations." An issuer may designate obligations as "qualified tax-exempt obligations” only if the amount of the issue of which
they are & part, when added to the amount of all other tax-exempt obligations (other than private activity honds) issued ar reasonably
anticipated to be issued by the issuer during the same calendar year, does not exceed $10,000,000,

The City will designate the Bonds as "qnu]-fud tax- ~exempt obllgatlons" and wlII ceﬂle |I¢ p ion that the above-described
$10,000,000 ceiling will not be di dingly, it is anticipated that ions which purchase the Bonds will
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Water and Wi water Systermn Debt ice Coverc
The following covenants are included in various water and wastewater system revenue bond indenture
ardinances:

= Net revenues (defined as gross revenues less expenses of operation and maintenance) are
pledged for the payment of bond principal and interest,

» Additional water and wastewater system revenue bonds cannot be issued unless the "net
eamings” (defined as gross revenues ofter deducting the expenses of operation and
maintenance, excluding depreciation and certain other items specified in the ordinances) of the
system for twelve consecutive months out of the fifteen months prior to the date of such bonds is
equal fo af least 1.25 times the average annual requirements for the payment of principal and
interest on the then-outstanding bonds and any additional bonds then proposed to be issued.

= Allrevenues derived from the operations must be kept separate from other funds of the City.

= The amount required to meet interest and principal payments falling due on or before the next
maturity dates of the bonds is fo be paid info the water and wastewater system inferest and
redernption account during each year.

At september 30, 2021, compliance with these covenants can be demonstrated as follows:

System revenue ! $ 87,351,497
Operating expenses:
Water purchosed 16,749,528
Sew age disposal confract 20,841,214
Other operating expenses 28,891,390
Total expenses %! 66,482,132
Net revenue (available for debt service) $ 20,869,385

Average annual principal and interest requirements, all water
and wastew aler revenue bonds at September 30, 2021 b 3 2,667,283

Coverage of average annual requirements based on
September 30, 2021 revenue available for debt service 782

(1) Includes operating revenues, plus investmenl! income and impact fees
[2) Excludes depreciation expenss,
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At September 30, 2021, the aggregate debt service payments for long-term debt through the final year

of maturity for the City's water and wastewater system were as follows:

At September 30, 2021, long-term debt is being repaid solely from airport revenues. Aggregate debt
service payments for long-term debt through the final year of maturity for the City's municipal cirport were

as follows:

Fiscal Water and Wastew ater System Revenue Bonds
Year Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 5295000 § 1214044 3 6,509,044
2023 5,445,000 1,061,202 6,506,202
2024 5,620,000 882,439 6,502,439
2025 5,140,000 703.150 5,843,150
2026 4,145,000 545,598 4,650,598
2027 3,900,000 409,031 4,309,031
2028 2,315,000 313,748 2,628,748
2029 2,380,000 247,088 2,627,088
2030 2,055,000 185,141 2,240,141
2031 1,090,000 137,278 1,227,278
2032 850,000 103,280 953,280
033 830,000 74,736 954,736
2004 &10,000 50912 &60,912
2035 630,000 3206 662,016
2036 650,000 12,256 662,256
2037 160,000 1,832 141,832
2038 160,000 1,144 161,144
2039 710,800 392 711,192
Total $ 42035800 % 5975287 % 48011087

Fiscal Cerlificates of Obligation
Year Principal Interest Total
022 % 175000 % 23375 3% 198,375
023 185,000 14,375 199,375
2024 195,000 4,875 199.875
Total $ 555000 § 42,625 % 597.625
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not be subject to the one-hundred percent (100%) disall of interest exp llocable to interest on the Bonds under

Section 265(b) of the Code. However, twenty percent (20%) of the interest expense incurred by a financial institution which is
alloeable to the interest on the Bonds will not be deductible pursuant to section 291 of the Code.

TaX ACCOUNTING TREATMENT OF IMSCOUNT AND PREMIUM ON CERTAIN Bonns . ., The initial public offering price of certain
Bonds (the "Discount Bonds") may be less than the amount paysble on such Bonds at maturity. An amount equal to the difference
between the initial public offering price of a Discount Bond (assuming that a substantial amount of the Discount Bonds of that
maturity are sold to the public at such price) and the amount payable at malurity constitutes original issue discount to the initial
pirrchaser of such Discount Bond. A portion of such original issue discount allocable ta the holding period of such Discount Bond
by the initial purchaser will, upen the disposition of such Discount Bond (including by reason of its payment at maturity), be treated
as interest excludable from gross income, rather than as laxable gain, for federal income tax purposes, on the same terms and
conditions as thosa for other interest on the Bonds described above under "Tax Exemption.” Such interest is considered to be
accrued actuarially in sccordance with the constant interest method over the life of a Discount Bond, taking into account the
semiannual compounding of accrued interest, at the yield to maturity on such Discount Bond and generally will be allocated to an
initial purchaser in a different amount from the amount of the payment denominated as interest actually received by the initial
purchaser during the tax vear.

However, such interest may be requircd to be taken into account in determining the amount of the branch profits tax applicable lo

certain foreign eorporations doing business in the United States, even though there will not be a corresponding cash payment. In

addition, the accrual of such interest may result in certain other collateral federal income tax consequences to, among others,

financial institutions, lifl: insurance companies, property and casualty insurance companies, corporations subject to the alternative
i .t

tax on adjusted fi income, § corporations with subchapter C eamnings and prafits, individual recipients
of Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits, individuals otherwise qualifying for earned income tax credit, owners of an
interest in a FASIT, and taxpayers who may be desmed to have i d or inued indebted to purchase or carry, or who

have paid or incurred certain expenses allocable to, tax-exempt obligations. Moreover, in the event of the redemption, sale or other
taxable disposition of a Discount Bond by the initial owner prior to maturity, the amount realized by such owner in excess of the
basis of such Discount Bond in the hands of such owner (adjusted upward by the portion of the original issue discount allocable to
the period for which such Diseount Bond was held) is includable in gross income.

Owners of Discount Bonds should consult with their own tax advisors with respect to the determination of acerued original issue
discount on Discount Bonds for federal income tax purposes and with respeet to the state and local tax consequences of owning
and disposing of Discount Bonds, 1t is possible that, under applicable provisions governing determination of state and local income
taxes, accrued interest on Discount Bonds may be deemed ta be received in the year of accrual even though there will not be a
cotresponding cash payment,

The purchase price of certain Bonds (the “Premium Bonds”) paid by an owner may be greater than the amount payable on such
Bonds at maturity, An amount equal to the excess of a purchaser’s tax basis in a Premium Bond over the amount payable at maturity

i premium to such purchaser. The basis for federal income tax purposes of a Premium Bond in the hands of such purchaser
must be reduced each year by the izable band premi Ithough no federal income tax deduction is allowed as a result of
such reduction in basis for amortizable bond premium. Such reduction in basis will increase the amount of any gain (or decrease
the amount of any loss) to be recognized for federal income tax purposes upon a sale or other taxable disposition of a Premium
Bond. The amount of premium that is amortizable each year by a purchaser is determined by using such purchaser’s yield to
maturity {or, in some cases with respect to a callable Bond, the yield based on a call date that results in the lowest yield on the
Bond).

Purchasers of the Premium Bonds should consult with their ewn tax advisors with respect to the determination of amortizable bond
premium on Premium Bonds for federal income tax purposes and with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning
and disposing of Premium Bonds.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

In the Ordinance the City has made the following agreement for the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds. The
City is required to observe the agreement while it remains obligated to advance funds to pay such Bonds. Under the agreement,
the City will be obligated to provide certain updated financial i ion and operating data Iy, and timely notice of
specified events, to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board ("MSRB"),

ANNUAL REPORTS . . . The City will provide (o the MSRB updated financial information and operating data annually. The
inft ion to be updated includes itative financial infc ion and operating data with respect to the City of the general type
included in this Official Statement under the Tables numbered 1 through |1 and in Appendix B. The City will update and provide
this information in the numbered tables within six months after the end of each fiscal year ending in or after 2022 and audited
financial statements within 12 months afier the end of each fiscal year ending in or after 2022. If the audit of such financial
slatements is not complete within 12 months after any such fiscal year end, then the City shall file unaudited financial statements
within such 12-month period and audited fi ial for the applicable fiscal year, when and if the audit report on such
statements becomes available. Any such financial will be prepared in d with the ing principles
deseribed in Appendix B or such other accounting principles as the City may be required 1o employ from time to time pursuant to
State law or regulation. The financial information and operating data to be provided may be set forth in full in one or more
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documents or may be included by specific reference to any document available to the public on the MSRB's Internet Web site or
filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"), as permitted by SEC Rule 15¢2-12, as amended
{the "Rule™).

The City's current fiscal year end is Geplemher 30, Accordingly, updated unaudited information included in the ab fe d
tables must be provided by March 31 Il‘l each year, and audited fi ial for the ding fiscal year {or unaudited
financial statements if the audited fi are not yet available) must be provided hy Seplemhcr 30 of each year, unless
the City changes its fiscal year. If the City changes its fiscal year, it will noufy the MSRB of the change (and of the date of the
new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the City otherwise would be required [o provide financial information and
operating data,

NOTICE OF CERTAIN EVENTS ... The City will provide notice of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds to the MSRB
in a timely manner (but not in excess of ten business days after the occurrence of the event): (1) principal and interest payment
deli (2) noj related defaults, if material; (3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
dl.fl'l:ult:cb. (4) unschodulad draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (5) substitution of credit or liquidity
providers, or their failure to perform; (6) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final
determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB), or other material notices or determinations with
respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; (7) modifications to rights of
holders of the Bonds, if material; (8) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; (9) defeasances; (10) releass, substitution, or sale of
property securing repayment of the Bonds, if material; (11) rating changes; {12} bankruptey, insolvency, receivership, or similar
event ol the City, which shall occur as described below; (13) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving
the City or the sale of all or substantially all of its assets, other Ihan in the ordinary course of business, the entry into of a definitive
agreement to underake such an aclmn ar the ter of a defi relating to any such actions, other than pursuant
to its terms, if material; (14) aj ofa or I trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if material; (15)
incurrence of a debt ohligatmn or a derivative instrument entered into in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of
payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation of the City, or a guarantee of any such debt obligation or derivative nstrument,
if material, or agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of any such financial
obligation of the City, any of which affect security holders, if material; and (16} default, event of acceleration, termination event,
modification of terms, or other similar events under the terms of any such financial obligation of the City, any of which reflect
financial difficulties. In addition, the City will provide timely notice of any failure by the City to provide annual financial
information in accordance with their agreement described above under *Annual Reports”™.

Iy " 5 i

For these purposes, any event described in (12) in the i d to eccur when any of the
following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, or a]mllar officer for the (.lly in a proceeding under the United States
Bankruptey Code or in any other procesding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed
Jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the City, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the
existing governing body and officials or officers in possession bul subject to the supervision and orders of a court or povernmental
authority, ot the entry of an order confirming a plan of or liquidation by a caurl or governmentsl
authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the City, Additi , the City intends
the words used in the preceding items (15) and (16) and the definition of "financial obligation" in these items o have the same
meanings as when they are used in the Rule, as evidenced by SEC Release No. 34-83885, dated August 20, 2018,

AVAILABILITY OF IN‘FORMATION 'I he (_,lty has agreed to provide the foregoing information only as deseribed above, Investors
will be able to access di i ion filed with the MSRB free of charge via the Electronic Municipal Market
Access system at www.emma.msrb.org,

LIMITATIONS AND AMENDMENTS . . . The City has agreed to update information and to provide notices of certain events only as
described above. The City has not agreed to provide other information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation
of its financial results of operations, condition, or prospects or agreed to update any information that is provided, except as described

abave, The City makes no representation or warranty concerning such information or 1g its useful 10 d o
invest in or sell Bonds at any future dam. The City disclaims any contractual or tort liability for damnsea resulting in whole or in
part from any breach of its conti or from any made p tar its ag) although holders

of Bonds may seek a writ of mandamus to Lompc] the City to comply with its agreemem

The City may amend its continuing disclosure agreement from time to time to adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a
change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the City, if (i) the
agreement, as amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Bonds in the offering described herein in
compliance with the Rule, taking into account any amendments or rntclplc!.anons of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as
well as such changed circumstances, and (il) either (a) the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outslandmg
Bonds consent to the amendment or (b) any person unaffiliated with the City (such as nationally recognized bond counsel)
determines that the amendment will not materially i impait the i interests of the holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds, The City
may also amend or repeal the provisions of this if the SEC amends or repeals the applicable
provisions of the Role or a court of final jurisdicti enters jud that such provisions ol the Rule are invalid, but only if and
to the extent that the provisions of this sentence would not prevent an under \mle,-r from lawfully purchasing or selling Bonds in the
primary offering of the Bonds. [f the City so amends the agreement, it has agreed to include with the next financial information
and operating data provided in accordance with its agreement described above under "Annual Reports™ an explanation, in nartative
form, of the reasons for the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of financial information and operating data so
pm\':ded

32

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas

Naotes to the Basic Financial Statements

September 30, 2021

Al September 30, 2021, changes in long-ferm debt for the City's business-type activities were as follows:

Water and wostewaler:
Revenue bonds
Series 2010
Series 2011
Series 2013
Series 2014
Series 2015
Series 2014
Series 2017
Series 20174

Serigs 2019
Series 2020

Total revenue bonds
Bond premiums/discounts
Total water and wastew ater

Municipal airport:
Certificate of obligation
Series 20044

Total municipol airport

Total change in long-term debt -
business-type aclivilies

Balance Balance
October 1, Borrowings Payments Seplember 30,  Due Within
2020 or Increase or Decrease 2021 One Year
$ 2870000 3% 5 (250,000} % 24620000 3 255000
1,380,000 (610,000) 770,000 £40,000
7,570,000 (1.360,000) 6,210,000 1,400,000
2,560,000 (240,000} 2,320,000 245,000
3,090,000 [390,000) 2,700,000 405,000
15,180,000 [1,110.,000) 14,070,000 1,140,000
3,940,000 (390.000) 3,550,000 370,000
2,705,000 [55,000) 2,650,000 50,000
3,570,800 {140,000) 3,410,800 160,000
4,290,000 {555,000) 3,735,000 410,000
47,155,800 15.120,000) 42,035,800 5,295,000
3,367,678 (271,733} 3,095,945 -
50,523,478 [5.391,733) 45,131,745 5,295,000
725,000 (170.,000) 555,000 175,000
725,000 {170,000) 555,000 175,000
3 51248478 § $ (5561.733) § 45486745 § 5470000
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Business-Type Activities

Long-term debt in the business-type activiies column of the government-wide Statement of Net Position
consists of general ebligation refunding bonds, water and wastewaier sysiemrevenue bonds, certificates
of obligation bonds, and unamortized bond premiums/discounts. Bonds issued for business-type activities
are secured by a pledge of the property tax levy of the City, but are seli-supporting obligations which are
paid from the respective net revenues of each getivity. Bond proceeds are used fo fund additions and
improvements to the Cify's water and wastewater system, solid wasfe system, rmunicipal golf courses, and
municipal airport,

At Septernber 30, 2021, long-term debt for the City's business-type activities consisted of the following:

Interest Year of Year of Criginal Arnount
Rate % Issue waturity Amount Outstanding
Water ond wastewater:
Revenue bonds
Series 2010 0.0-2.587 2000 2030 % 4995000 % 2,620,000
Series 2011 20-4.25 201N 2031 8,940,000 770,000
Series 2013 20-40 203 2026 14,045,000 6,210,000
Series 2014 0.0-1.990 2014 2030 4,000,000 2,320,000
Series 2015 2.25-40 2005 2027 4,155,000 2,700,000
Serigs 2016 20-50 2016 2038 17,625,000 14,070,000
Series 2017 0.0-0.8 7 2030 5,110,000 3,550,000
Series 2017A 20-40 2017 2036 2,755,000 2,650,000
Series 2019 0.0-0.49 2009 2039 3,730,800 3,410,800
Series 2020 5 2020 2031 4,290,000 3,735,000
Total bonds payable - water wastewater 42,035,800
Unamartized band premiurms/discounts 3,095,945
Total long-term debt - water wastewater 45,131,745
Municipal girport:
Cerfificates of obligafion bonds
Series 2004A 22550 2004 2024 2,120,000 555,000
Total long-term debt - business-fype acfivilies $ 45686745
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COMPLIANCE WITH PRIOR UNDERTAKINGS. . . During the last five vears, the City has complied in all material respects with all
continuing disclosure agreements made by it i aecordance with the Rule.

OTHER INFORMATION

RATING. . .The Bonds have been rated "AAA" with a stable outlook by S&P Global Ratings, a division of S&P Global Ine. ("S&P").
An explanation of the significance of such rating may be obtained from the company furnishing the rating. The rating reflects only

the views of such arganization and the City makes no rep ion as to the apprapri 55 of the rating. There is no assurance
that such rating will continue for any given period of time or that it will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by such
rating company, if in the jud t such p i es 50 warrant, Any such d 1 revision or withd lofs

A
rating, may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds,

LITIGATION, . .City staff beli there is no pending litigation against the City that would have a material adverse financial impact
upan the City or its operations.

REGISTRATION AND QUALIFICATION OF BONDS FOR SALE. . .The sale of the Bonds has not been registered under the Federal
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, in reliance upon the ption provided (F der by Section 3(a){2); and the Bonds have
not heen qualified under the Securities Act of Texas in reliance upon various exemptions contained therein; nor have the Bonds
been qualified under the securities acts of any jurisdiction. The City assumes no responsibility for qualification of the Bonds under
the securities laws of any jurisdiction in which the Bonds may be sold, assigned, pledged, hypot! i or otherwise ferred.
This disclaimer of responsibility for qualification for sale or other disposition of the Bonds shall not be construed as an interpretation
of any kind with regard to the availability of any exempticn from securities registration provisions.

Legal Investments and Eligibility to Secure Public Funds in Texas. . Section 1201.041 of the Public Security Procedures
Act (Chapter 1201, Texas Government Code) provides that the Bonds are negotiable instruments, investment securities governed
by Chapter 8, Texas Business and Commerce Code, and are legal and authorized investments for insurance companies, fiduciaries,
and trustees, and for the sinking funds of municipalities or other political subdivisions or public agencies of the State of Texas.
With respect to investment in the Bonds by icipalities or other political subdivisions or public agencies of the State of Texas,
the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code, requires that the Bonds be assigned a rating of at least
A" or its equivalent as to investment guality by a national rating agency. See "OTHER INFORMATLION - Ratings" herein. In
addition, various provisions of the Texas Finance Code provide that, subject 1o a prudent investor standard, the Bonds are legal
investments for state banks, savings banks, trust companies with capital of one million dollars or more, and savings and loan
associations. The Bonds are eligible to secure deposits of any public funds of the State, its agencies, and its political subdivisions,
and are legal security for those deposits to the extent of their market value. No review by the City has been made of the laws in
other states to determine whether the Bonds are legal i for various institutions in those states.

LiGaL OpINON . . The City will furnish a plete transeript of p Jings relating to the authorization and issuance of the
Bonds, including the unqualified approving legal opinien of the Attorney General of Texas approving the Initial Bond and to the
effect that the Bonds are valid and legally binding obligations of the City, and based upon examination of such transcript of
proceedings, the approving legal opinion of Bond Counsel, to like effect and to the effect that the interest on the Bonds will be
excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Seetion 103(a) of the Code, subject to the matters described
under "Tax Matters” herein. The customary closing papers, including a certificate to the effect that no litigation of any nature has
been filed or is then pending ta restrain the issuance and delivery of the Bonds, or which would affect the provision made for their
payment ot security, or in any manner questioning the validity of said Bonds will also be fumished. Bond Counsel was not
requested to participate, and did not take part, in the preparation of the Notice of Sale and Bidding Instructions, the Official Bid
Form and the Dfficial Statement, and sueh firm has not assumed any responsibility with respect thereto or undertaken independently
to verify any of the information contained therein, except that, in its capacity as Bond Counsel, such firm has reviewed the
information describing the Bonds in the Official Statement to verify that such description conferms to the provisions of the
Ordinance. The legal fee to be paid Bond Counsel for services rendered in jon with the i of the Bonds is contingent
on the sale and delivery of the Bonds. The legal opinion will accompany the Bonds deposited with DTC ar will be printed on the
Bonds in the event of the discontinuance of the Book-Entry-Only System. Certain legal matters will be passed upon by West &
Associates, L.L.P., Dallas, Texas, Disclosure Counsel. The legal fee to be paid Disclosure Counsel for services rendered in
connection with the issuance of the Bonds is contingent on the sale and delivery of the Bonds.

The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds express the professional judgment of the
attomeys rendering the opinions as to the legal issues explicitly addressed therein. In rendering a legal opinion, the attorney does
not become an insurer or of the expression of profession jud; 1, of the jon opined upan, or of the future
performance of the parties to the transaction, nor does the rendering of an opinion guarantee the autcome of any legal dispute that
may arise out of the transaction.

CYBERSECURITY . . The City has taken several steps ta enhance and protect information systems and information of the City, The
City's dedicated Chief Investment Officer is certified in cybersecurity matters and responsible for carrying out information security
responsibilities. Some of the City's security operations include regular staff cyber training, periodic system tests and audits,
authorizing information access with classification level and sensitivity, and routine replacement of software and
related | i Juif In addition, to help profect the City against claims and expenses due to a cybersecurily incident,
the City maintains cyber insurance. The City prioritizes the ability to identify, protect, detect, respond and recover from cyber
events and incidents from nation state actors, organized criminals, hactivist groups and insider threats.

33



AUTHENTICITY OF FINANCIAL DATA AND OTHER INFORMATION. . .The financial data and other information contained herein have
been obtained from City records, audited financial statements, and other sources which are believed 1o be reliable. There is no
guarantee that any of the ptions or esti ined herein will be realized. Al of the summaries of the statutes,
documents, and resolutions contained in this Official Statement are made subject to all of the provisions of such statutes, documents,
and resolutions. These summaries do not purport to be complete statements of such provisions and reference is made to such
documents for further information. Reference is made to original documents in all respects.

INITIAL PURCHASER. , . After requesting competitive bids for the Bonds, the City accepted the bid of Fidelity Capital Markets (the
"Purchaser” or "Initial Purchaser") to purchase the Bonds at the interest rates shown on page 2 hereaf at a price of 100% of par plus
a cash premium of $366,318.97. The Purchaser can give no assurance that any trading market will be developed for the Bonds
after their sale by the City to the Purchaser. The City has no control over the prices at which the Bonds ave subsequently sold and
the initial yields at which the Bonds will be priced and reoffered will be established by and will be the sole responsibility of the
Purchaser,

FORWARD LODKING STATEMENTS. . .The statements confained in this Official Statement, and in any other information provided by
the City, that are not purely historical, are forward-looking includi; garding the City's i
hopes, i ions, or gies regarding the future. Readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. All
forward-looking included in this Official Statement are based on information available to the City on the date hereof,
and the City assumes no obligation 1o update any such forward-looking statements. The City's actual vesults could differ materially
from those discussed in such forward-looking statements,

The forward-looking statements included herein are necessarily based on various assumptions and estimates and are inherently
subject to various risks and inties, including risks and uncertainties relating to the possible invalidity of the underlying
ions and esti and possible cf or develoy in social, economic, business, industry, market, legal, and

regulatary circumstances and conditions and sctions taken or omitted to be taken by third parties, including Py

busi r and p and legislative, judicial and other governmental authorities and officials, Assumptions related
to the foregoing involve judgments with respect to, among other things, future economic, competitive, and market conditions and
future business decisions, all of which are difficult or impossible to predict accurately and many of which are beyond the control
of the City. Any of such assumptions could be inaccurate and, therefore, there can be no assurance that the forward-looking
statements included in this Official Statement will prove to be accurate.

CERTIFICATION OF THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT

At the time of payment for and delivery of the Bonds, the City will furnish the Purchaser a certificate, executed by on authorized
representative of the City, acting in such person’s representative capacity, to the effect that to the best of such person’s knowledge
and beliel: (a) the descriptions and statements of or pertaining to the City contained in the Official Statement, and any addenda,
supplement or amendment thereto, on the date of the Official Statement, on the date of sale of the Bonds and the acceptance of the
best bid therefor, and on the date of the delivery, were and are true and correct in all material respects; (b) insofar as the City and
its affairs, including its fi ial affairs, are i, the Official § did not and does not contain an untrue statement of
a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or y to make the therein, in light of
the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading in any material respect; (c) insofar as the descriptions and
statements, including financial data, of or pertaining to entities, other than the City, and their activities contained in the Official
§ arne 1, such and data have been obtained from sources which the City believes to be reliable and the
City has no reason to believe that they are untrue in any material respect; and (d) there has been no material adverse change in the
financial condition of the City since the date of the last audited financial statements of the City.

In the Bond Ordinance, the City Council authorized the Pricing Officer to approve, for or on behalf of the City, (i) the form and content
of this Official § and any addenda, suppl or i thereto, and (ii) the Purchaser’s use of this Official Statement
in the reoffering of the Bonds by the Purchaser, all of which the Pricing Officer approved in the Pricing Certificate,

Is STEVE DYE
Pricing Officer
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Fiscal Soles Tox Revenue Bonds-Paork Verue Sales Tox Revenue Bonds-EPIC
‘ear Principal Interest Tolal Principal Interest Tolal
2002 3 2,120,000 1 448,418 3 2,568.418 3 2375000 3 3084162 3 5,459,162
023 2,190,000 401,203 2591703 2475000 2987162 5462162
2004 2,270,000 341,118 28101018 2,575,000 2,885,162 5,461,162
2025 2,340,000 503 2,635,205 2,680,000 2.781.062 5461062
2028 2,450,000 213,493 863495 2,785,000 2675.647 5,460,647
a7 1,170,000 166,028 1,336,038 2,895,000 2,567,509 5,462,509
2028 370,000 142,438 512.438 300,000 2,449,919 5459919
vl 385,000 127,338 512338 3,140,000 2.323,165 5,463,145
030 400,000 111,438 511,638 3275000 2,187,743 5,462,743
2031 420,000 95238 515,238 FAZ5000 2035914 5460914
2032 435,000 78,138 513,138 3590000 1,848,185 5,458,185
033 455,000 40,338 515,338 3,770,000 1652208 5462208
2034 470,000 43,400 513,600 3955000 1,507,503 5,462,500
2035 485,000 28,061 S13.081 4,145,000 1.313.832 5,458,832
038 505,000 10,100 515,100 4,355,000 1,105,153 5460153
037 - - - 4,580,000 860,348 5,460,348
‘2038 - 4,815,000 443,970 5,458,570
2039 = - - 5,085,000 95,389 5,460,559
2040 - & 5,325,000 133,977 54585977
§ 16485000 § 2542382 % 19027382  § 68235000  § 35.519.010 3 103754010
Fiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 36,685,000 3 16,774,519 3 53,479.519
2023 29,025,000 14,560,520 43,585,520
2024 33,805,000 13,406,819 47,211,819
2025 28,095,000 12,242,299 40,337,299
2026 32,820,000 11,175,464 43,995,464
2027 26,345,000 10,183,441 36,528,461
2028 23,820,000 9,291,884 33,111,884
2029 24,490,000 8,434,317 32924317
2030 23,835,000 7,581,430 31,416,430
2031 24,285,000 6,755,151 31,041,151
2082 24,185,000 5,747 566 30,132,566
2033 25,020,000 5,115,997 30,135,997
2034 25,075,000 4,238.867 29.313.869
2035 20,870,000 3,419,067 24,289,067
2036 19,720,000 2,683,574 22,403,574
2037 16,080,000 2,023,189 18,103,189
2038 15,100,000 1,436,105 14,536,105
2039 15,680,000 856,600 16,536,600
2040 11,200,000 354,614 11,554,614
2041 6,020,000 74,148 6,094,148
§ 462,155,000 § 134,576,593 § 598,731,593
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Al September 20, 2021, the oggregate debf service payments for long-ferm debt through the final year
of maturity for the City's governmental activities were as follows:

Fiscal Genaral Obfigation Bonds Cerfificates of Obligalion Bonds
Year Principal Inferest Total Principal Interest Tolal
runrrl 3 8,560,000 3 3493658 % 12283658 % 16195000 § BAB7.E92 % 24,682,692
2023 TAI000 3,195,143 10,605,163 16,410,000 788,659 24,238,657
2024 10,200,000 2842488 13,042,458 18,205,000 720217 25405217
o025 7,400,000 2,443,182 11,843,182 13,000,000 4,619,402 19,709,402
w26 175,000 2071392 11,266,392 13,180,000 4,138,729 19,316,729
2027 B,720,000 1,789,618 10,508,618 13,560,000 5,640,356 19,280,294
anw 4,380,000 1,540,522 7.920522 14.060,000 5.159.005 19,219,005
e 6,385,000 1,345,099 7. 730,099 14,580,000 4638715 19218715
A 5,045,000 1,182,643 6,227,643 15,115,000 ALF7.404 19,214,404
2001 4,790,000 1,058,325 5848325 15,650,000 3,546,674 13.214,674
032 3590000 955197 4,945,197 18,170,000 304,046 19,216,046
2033 4075.000 848,432 4543,432 16,720,000 2495019 19215019 APPENDIX A
2034 3925000 T79.824 4,704,824 16,725,000 1.907 342 18,632,942
2035 3855000 492,578 4,547,578 12.385,000 1,384,574 13,768,576 R —
2038 3940000 403744 4,543,744 10,920,000 F64,577 11,884,577 GENERAL [NFORMATION REGARDING THE CITY
207 4,040,000 505,391 4,545,391 7.480,000 637 450 B.067,450
2038 4,145,000 3ga.085 4,543,085 6,140,000 394,050 6,534,050
2057 4,255,000 287 961 4.542.981 6,360,000 173250 6.533,250
2040 4,370,000 \74.887 4,544,837 1,505,000 45,750 1,550,750
241 4,485,000 58,798 4,543,758 1,535,000 15,350 1,550,350

3 1IAIS00 % 26,504.587 § 143,681,987 i 245965000  § 70.450805 316425805
Fiscal Tax and Tax |ncremeant Bonds [NFs) Soles Tox Reveanue Bands-Crime Conirol
‘fear Frincipal Interes Tolal Principal Interest Tolal
e 3 2160000 3 w22 5 2442912 F 5245000 % 797.677 3 6042677
2023 540,000 148,333 688,333 - = -
2024 555,000 136,834 451,834 - = -
025 545,000 123.450 488,450 - -
prasrly 5,230,000 5880 5,266.203 - - -

3 2,050,000 H 747,732 $ 2,799,732 3 5,245,000 3 TITETT 3 6,042,677
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In February 2021, the City issued $23,215,000 in Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Ohbligation,
Series 2021, The Cerfificates were issued for the purpose of paying contractual obligations to be i)
acquiring, construcfing, improving and equipping fire-fighting facilities and lierary  facilities, (i)
constructing, improving and equipping existing municipal facilities, (i) constructing street improvements,
including drainage, landscaping, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, entryways, pedestrian pathways, signage,
fraffic signalization and street nolse abatement incidental thereto and the acguisition of land and rights-
of-way therefor and (iv) professional services rendered in connection therewith.

In June 2021, the City issued $66,945,000 in General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021, The bonds were issued
for the purpose of paying contractual obligations to be incurred for constructing street improvements,
including drainage, landscoping, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, entryways, pedestrian pathways, signage,
fraffic signalization and street noise abatement incidental thereto, and for the acquisition of land and
rights-of-way therefor within the reinvestment zone of the City known as the Tax Increment Financing
Reinvestment Zone Number One (TIF #1).

Also in June 2021, the City issued $16,935,000 In Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation,
Series 2021A. The Certificates were issued for the same purpose as the Series 2021 General Obligation
Bonds, described above,

utstanding Bos ebt Defeasement
At September 30, 2021, certain outstanding debt of the city was considered to be defeased. The following
table details such outstanding defeased debt:

Defeased Debt
Type of Obligation Quistanding
Generdl cbligation refunding bonds 3 55,000
Total debt deteasement $ 55,000
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Al September 30, 2021, changes In long-term debt for the City's governmental activities were as follows:

Balonce Balonce
Oclober 1, Borrow Ings Payments Seplermber 30, Due Wilkin
2020 of Increase or Decraase 2021 One Year
Gereral obiigafion bonds:
Series 2012 3 4,120,000 3 - 3 [645.000) 3 3475000 § 660000
Series 2013 3,210,000 - {310,000) S000.000 315,000
Series M13A 1,710,000 = 125,000 1,415,000 100,000
Sarias 2015 7,065,000 - 11,080,000} 6015000 1,095,000
Series 2016 23,375,000 - 12.925,000} 20,440,000 2,415.000
Series 2019 19,475,000 = [3.790.000) 15.485.000 4,005,000
Series 2021 - $6,945.000 3 66,945,000 -
Total generd obiigafion bonds 59.055.000 44,945,000 (B.825,000| 17,175,000 6,590,000
Carmbinalion fox ond fev enue
cerfilicates of obllgaiion
Series 2013 &.320.000 4 1406.000) 5915000 420,000
Series 2034 F.260.000 " 1500,000) 8,780,000 525,000
Series 2014 16,740,000 & {2.125,000] 14815000 2,230,000
Series 2015 22,445,000 - 11,345,000} 21,100000 1,405,000
Seres 014 28,180,000 F 11.215.000) 26265000 1325000
Series 2017 29.915.000 - [2.500,000) 26415000 3425000
Serles 2008 38,810,000 - (1,885.000] 36,925,000 20%0.000
Serles 2019A 33,110,000 - (1.815.000| 31,295,000 1,905,000
Serkes 0198 34,305,000 - - 34,305,000 2,220,000
Sarias 2021 - 23,215,000 = 23.215000 450,000
Series 0214 & 16,735,000 - 16,935,000 -
Totol combinotion fox and revenus
cerlilicales of obligation 219,305,000 40,150,000 (1:3,490,000] 245,945,000 16,195,000
T inerement and public
improverment district debl
Series 2001 MRZ ¥ 3,140,000 - [1.525.000) 1,635,000 1,635,000
Series 2015 PID 5 360.000 - (70,000 310,000 75.000
Saries 2016-TMRT 1 1.080,000 - (1.080,000| = =
Series 2019 -TIRZ 1 7,105,000 - 7105000 450,000
Tatal tax incremant and public
wrprovement distic) debt 11,725,000 - [2.675,000] 2,050,000 2,140,000
Sales oy revenue debl:
Crime Conlrol
Series 2008 10,795,000 = 15,550,000} 5245000 5,245,000
Total Crirma Confrol 10,795,000 - 5,550,000 5,245,000 5245000
Park Verue
Series 2009 subordinate 6,740,000 - (455,000} 4,245,000 1,130,000
Serles 2013 5,860,000 - 11,270,000} 4,570,000 730,000
Serias 2014 Pork Venue 5,735,000 - (265,000} 5,670,000 60,000
Tetal Park Verue 18,535,000 E: [2.0050,000) 14,465,000 2,120,000
EPIC
Series 2015 EFIC 70,520,000 = {2,285,000] 66,235,000 2,375,000
Tolal EFIC 70,520,000 = {2.285.000) 46,235,000 2375000
Total change in long lermn det:t 389,935,000 107.095000 |34.875,0000 452,155,000 34,685,000
Unamorfizad bond preqmiums/discounts 26,089,620 3,272,425 (2,158,415 27,203,630
Total change in leng-term debt -
govermnmeniol acfivities § 414024620 § 110367425 §  {37.033415) § ABY,358,630 3 36,685000
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The Crty
LocaTion

The City of Grand Prairie, Texas (the "City"), is centrally located amid the estimated 6 million people in the DallasFort Worth
area. The City, stretches 28 miles long by about eight miles at its widest point. The City covers about 81 square miles.

TRANSPORTATION

The City has access to four major interstate highway systems - 1H-20, TH-30, 1H-35 and [H-45 - five state highway systems — SH-
160, SH-180, SH-303, SH-161, and Loop 12, FM-1382 - 118, 287 all run through the City, or are within 15-30 minutes of the
City's boundaries.

B 1H-20: an eight-lane east-west expressway that passes through south of the City, linking the City to Dallas and Fort Worth.
West of Fort Worth, 1H-20 leads to Abilene and Odessa. Eastward destinations on IH-20 are Tyler, Longview and
Shreveport, Louisiana.

B IH-30: a six-lanc cast-west expressway that passes through north of the City and also links the City to Dallas and Fort
Warth. TH-30 links to TH-20 in west Fort Worth, Eastward destinations on 1H-30 are Greenville, Texarkana and the state
of Arkansas,

% S§H-360: a six-lane north-south expressway running along the western edge of the City, 2 key route to Dallas-Fort Worth
International Airport.

% President George Bush Tumnpike: a four and six-lane north-south tollway runs 10.5 miles through Grand Prairie from the
northern City limits to [H-20.

The City's Municipal Airport serves small piston planes 1o large business turhoprop sircraft and helicopters. The airport has a
4,000-foot-long, T5-foot-wide lighted, concrete runway, repair service and cargo handling, a helipad, dining facilities, and support
facilities for training, private aviation and business flying activities. The airport is designated in the FAA National Plan of Integrated
Airpart System and the Texas Aeronautical Facilities Plan. Hangar space is available for nearly 233 aircraft, with tie-down space
and FBO services available.

The DallasFort Worth International Airport ("DFW Airport") lies about five miles north of the City's northem border. In 2021,
Airports Council International (“ACI”) ranked DFW Airport second among United States airports and third globally for total
number of aircraft operations, In 2021, the ACI report ranked DFW Airport second globally and domestically for passengers. In
2021, DFW served 55.4 million passengers and provided service to 196 domestic and 65 international destinations
{www.dfwairport.com).

PopPuLATION

The estimated population for 2022 is 200,640. From the 2010 Census 1o the 2020 Census, the City's population increased 12
percent.

DEMOGRAPHICS

2020 Census estimates of the City Non-Hispanic population breakdown were 60.8 percent white, 23.1 percent black, 6.9 percent
Asian and Pacific Islander, 0.2 percent American Indian, 0.9 percent other; Hispanic of any race comprises 48.7% of the population.

Age distribution estimates of residents, according to the 2020 Census, are 67.2 percent ages 21 and oider, 10.1 percent older than
63, and 28.5 percent younger than 18,

INDUSTRIAL BASE

Wholesale trade (distribution), manufacturing and retail trade companies are the largest industrial sectors in the City.



INpUSTRY PROFILE

Industry Percent of Total gross sales
Wholesale Trade 32.42%
Manufacturing 24.62%
Retail Trade 21.89%
Construction 9.12%
Accommodation/Food Services 2.30%
Admin/Sup port/Waste M gmt/Remediation Services 2.03%
Other Services (except Public Administration) 1.97%
Real Estate/Rental/Leasing 1.18%
Transportation/Warehousing 0.91%
Professional/Scientific/Technical Services 0.90%
Arts/Entertainment/Recreation 0.70%
Information (L68%
Agriculture/Forestry (FishingMunting (1.48%
Financednsurance 0.25%
Educational Services 0.18%
Health Care/Social Assistance 0.13%
Source: Texas Comptroller.
LABOR FORCE
August Average Annual
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 017
Civilian Labor Force 105,845 102,076 98,905 98,881 98,265 97,727
Employed 101,548 96,337 91,024 95,309 94,525 93,925
Unemp loy ed 4,297 5,739 7,881 3,572 3,740 3,802
% of Unemployed 4,06% 5.62% 7.97% 361% 381% 3.E9%

Source: Texas Emplayment Commission.

Tor TEN EMPLOYERS

Company

Product-Service

Grand Prairie Independent School District
Lockleed Martin Missiles and Fire Contral
Poly-America [ne.

City of Grind Prairie

Hell Heficop ter-Textron

Flex-N-Gate

Lear Seating

Laone Star Park o Grand Prairie

Forterm Pipe & Products, Ine.

K & N Filters

Source: City's financial statement.

Admimistration of Education Programs

Research and Development in the Physical, Engineering, and Life Sciences
Unsupporied Plastics Film and Sheet {except Packaging Manufacturing
Fublic Administration

Helicopier airerall manufaciuring

Auta Accessory Manufacturing

M anufacturing

Racetracks

Conerete Pipe Manufacturing

Air Filler Manufacturer

Estimated

Emp loy ces
4,000

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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Al September 30, 2021, long-term debt for the City's governmental activities consisted of the following:

Interast Yeor of Year of Original Armouni
Raie % ls5ue M oiurity Armaun! Outstanding
General obligation bonds:
Series 2012 1.0-20 miz 2026 27,400,000 3,475,000
Series 2013 1.5-3.25 Pk 2033 10,975,000 3,000,000
Serles 20134 30-4125 014 2034 2,220,000 1,615,000
Series 2015 1.75-50 2014 2027 10,270,000 4,015,000
Sanes 2016 30-50 016 2030 33,810,000 20,440,000
Series 2019 500 2020 2031 19,475,000 15,685,000
Series 2021 0969-4.0 2021 m4) 46,945,000 46,945,000
Tolal general obégation bonds 117,175,000
Combination tax and revenue cerlilicates of obligofion
Serles 2013 20325 2013 033 8,830,000 5,915,000
Series 20134 20-4.125 2014 2034 11,945,000 8,780,000
Serles 2014 30-50 25 2034 26,125,000 14,815,000
Series 2015 20-5.0 s 2065 27,380,000 21,100,000
Series 2015 20-40 s 2036 33,705,000 26,265,000
Series 2017 22550 a7 2057 36,515,000 26,415,000
Serles 2018 20-40 018 2039 40,605,000 36,925,000
Series 20154 20-50 aome ik 34,910,000 31,275,000
Series 20198 1530 2019 2034 34,305,000 34,305,000
Series 2021 20-4.5 o 041 23,215,000 23,215,000
Series 2021A 0.969-4.0 0 036 16,935,000 16,735,000
Total cormbination tax and revenue cerlificates of obligation 245,965,000
e increrment ond public improvement district debt
Series 2000 MRL Fmonth SOFR +.31% 2000 022 17,900,000 1,635,000
Series 2015 PID S 20-50 K14 2035 H40,000 310,000
Serigs 2016 MRIL 1 3050 paill} 2030 3,135,000 -
Serles 2019 MRZ 1 1525 ikl 2026 7,105,000 7.105,000
Total taxincrement and public improv erment district debt 9,050,000
Sales tax revenue debt
Series 2008 Crime Control &mo SOFR™62,075+1.07 2008 08 54,800,000 5,245,000
Tolal Crme Confrol 5,245,000
Serles 2009 Park Venue subordinate an 2009 2027 13,390,000 6,245,000
Series 2013 Park Venue 20-40 M3 2027 171,060,000 4,570,000
Series 2016 Park Venue 20-40 2016 036 6,730,000 5,670,000
Toldl Park Venue 16,485.000
Scles bax revenue debt
Series 2015 EPIC 3.721-5.032 s 2040 74,825,000 48,235,000
Total EPIC 48,235,000
Total general obligafion debt 462,155,000
Unarmorfized bond premiums/ discounts 27,203,430
Total long-term debt - governmental aciivities § 489,358,430
[ et
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Below is @ summary of the changes in noncurrent liabilities of the City's primary govemment and
component units:

Balance Baolonce
Oclober 1, Bomowings Paymenis Seplamber 30, Due Within
2020 o Increase o Decrease 2021 One Year
Primary gavemnment:
Governmental octivifies:
General obligofion bonds 3 9055000 % 66945000 § B&25.000) % N7A75000 § B 590,000
Combiration ax ond revenue
cerlificates of obligation 219,305,000 ADL 150,000 [13,490,000| 245,965,000 16,195,000
Tew incrament and pubke Improvemant
dislric! bonds 11,725,000 - 12,675.000) 050,000 2,140,000
Soles jox revenue bands - Epic 70,520,000 - |2,285,000) 48,235,000 2,375,000
Sofes fox revenue bonds - Crima Conlrol 10,795,000 = 5,550,000 5,245,000 5,245,000
Salkes lax revenue bonds - Park Venue 18,535,000 - [2.050,000] 14,485.000 2.120,000
Isswance premivms/discounts, nel 26,087,620 3,272,425 [2,158,415} 27,203,630 -
Told long-lerm debi 416,024,620 110,347,425 (37,033.415) 489,358,630 36,685,000
Compersated absences 21044457 11,073,987 {11,051,407) 21.087.037 2/677.444
Oiher post-amployment benafits kabifity 60,587,581 417207 (2,600,805 44,258,793 -
Het pension labifity 59,113,940 51,564,901 [61,452.177| 49,226,664 -
Environmenial remeadialion liokility W00 6,450 - 27,350 27,350
Other liabiities 1,139,367 3,108,638 |180.776) 4,087, 277 478,882
Total govermmenia activilies 555,050,865 182,293.418 (112.278,580) 28,045,703 47070678
Business-lype octivities:
Cerfificates of obigalion 725,000 - {170,000} 555000 175,000
Water and waslewater revenue bonds 47,155,800 - (5,1:20,000) 42,035,800 5,295,000
|ssuance premiums/discounts, nel 3,347,678 = 271733 3095245 7
Tolal leng-term debt 51,248,478 = {5.561,733) 45,684,745 5,470,000
Compensoled cbsences A#52,411 215072 {740,739) 423,744 494,545
Other post-emplayment berefils labllity 4,275,583 708,715 |298,845) 4485833 -
Met pension liablity 4,470,085 5921053 (4,741,641 5,647,497 =
Closure and pos! closure oty B.648,746 533,456 [55.384) F.083.018 -
Total business-type ccfivifies 71,112,903 BO78,296 |11,462,362] 47,728,837 5564545
Total primery governmant 3 629163768 3 190371714 % (123760547 % 675774540 3 5303522
Component unit octivities:
Howsing Finance Corporafion:
Paycheck Proleciion Prograns Nole Paycble  § - 1 Nz06  § - 3 Mneoes % -
Line of credi 3521670 - [63,148] 3,458,522 45885
Revenue bonds 6,905,000 = {245,000] 6,640,000 295,000
Subordinalte revenue bonds 4,550,000 41,740 - 4,591,760 5
Tolal Housing Finance Corporalion 14,976,670 180,858 {328,148} 14,807,378 360,885
Local Governmen! Corporafion
Erwironmental remediofion liokdity - 239 359 - 239,349 239357
Total Local Governmenl Corporation 239,349 - 239,369 237,349
Tofal component unifs 3 145746670 § 400225 % {328.148) § 15048747 % 400,254

bé

RECREATION

Recreational facilities include the 7,500-acre Joe Pool Lake, championship level Tangle Ridge Golf Course, Lone Star Park at
Grand Prairie, Epic Waters indoor water park, and 54 public parks on 5,068.2 acres. Parks, Arts and Recreation facilities include
an extreme skate park, four multipurpose recreation centers, an active adult center, indoor pool, three outdoor pools, five football,
soceer, softball and baseball complexes, two golf courses, 14 tennis courts, an all-inclusive playground, three linear parks, and four
developed lake parks at Joe Pool Lake.

EpicCentral is a 172-acre park located off Highway 161. It features Epic Waters Indoor Water Park, The Epic mega-recreation
center, The Epic Black Box Theater, PlayGrand Adventures all-access playground, the Summit Active Adult Center, Prairie Paws
Animal Shelter, Central Bark Dog Park and Main Event Entertaimment. Coming by the end of 2022 are six new restaurants, an
amazing water and light show, and Bolder Adventure Indoor adventure park. In 2023, two conference hotels and parking garage
will be completed, as will on-land interactive experiences, unigue prog ing, and ever-ch rotation of i

Parks and Recreation facilities include an extreme skate park, two multipurpose recreation centers, an active adult center, a senior

center, indoor pool, three cutdoor pools, five softball and baseball complexes, two golf courses, 32 tennis courts, # soccer complex,
a central park, PlayGrand Adventures and two Jake parks on Joe Pool Lake.

Ripley's Believe It Or Not, The Palace of Wax and Trader's Village in the City are popular entertainment and shopping locations.
Nearby are Six Flags over Texas in Arlington and zoos, art museums, symphonies and ballet in Dallas and Fort Worth.

Lone Star Park at Grand Prairie, is one of three Class | horse-racing tracks in Texas and includes a world class racebook and
simulcast facility.

Professional Sports: the Dallas Cowboys of the Mational Foothall League, the Texas Rangers of Major League Baseball, the Dallas
Mavericks of the National Basketball Association, the Dallas Stars of the National Hockey League, and the FC Dallas of Major
League Soccer. All have home games within 5-25 minutes of the City.

NCAA-event schonls: Southern Methadist University and Texas Christian University in Dallas and Fort Worth.

Cedar Hill State Park, just south east of the City, offers 355, mostly wooded campsites in the Dallas-Fort Worth hill country,
Among park facilities are two lighted fishing jetties and boat access to Joe Pool Lake.

EDUCATION

5 "

Seven public universities and eight i universities, i health related education facilities, in the region tataled
enrollment of 157,923 in 2020 (source: Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board). The universities, among them University
of Texas campuses (Arlington and Dallas), offer programs from engineering to business and degrees from bachelor's to medical
doctorates.

The Dallas and Tarrant jes public i lleges - the nearest of them Mountain View in Dallas, North Lake in Trving,
Cedar Valley in Lancaster, the Southeast campus of Tarrant County College in Arlington, and El Centro in Dallas - counted over
186,244 students in 2020 (source: Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board), Additionally, three technically oriented post-

secondary schools are within 30 minutes of the City.

In addition to their degree programs, many of these colleges and universities offer business ¢ Iti ployee training specific
to a company’s skill demands, community health care services, economic and land develop h I and

information services and library facilities open to the community.

Grand Prairie Independent School District (the "GPISD") and the Arlington Independent School District (the "AISD”) predominate
among the six school districts with boundaries in the City.

GPISD comprises 20 elementary schools, six middle schools, two ninth grade centers, four senior high schools, one alternative
education schoal and one early childhood center. Students whose residences are on the Dallas County side of the City attend
GPISD.

Students whao reside in Tarrant County and Grand Prairie attend AISD, which comprises of nine high schoals, 13 junior high
schools, and 52 elementary schools (six in the City). AISD has no junior high schools or high schools in the City.
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G. Unearned Revenve

Unearned revenue is a liabllity for resources obtained prior to revenue recognition, Below is a surmmary of
the City's unearned revenue as of September 30, 2021,

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Tatal
Prepaid pipeline lease $ 804981 3§ 113414 & 218,595
Prepaid arrangements - Cemetery Fund 2,029,867 - 2,029,867
Urspent grant funds - Texas Water Development Board - 905,606 905,606
Prepaid rental deposits - Parks 286,218 = 284,218
Park Venue Fund deposits on events 1o be held 7.519 - 7.519
Event Revenue 39,762 - 39,762
Unspent grant funding 18,354,828 - 18,354,828
Total unearned revenue § 21523175 § 1,019,220 § 22,542,395
H. leng-Term Obligations
Compensated Absences and Postemployment Benefits

Govemmental activities record liabilities for compensated absences and refiree postemployment costs
at the govemment-wide financial statement level. Generdlly, these liabiiities are paid from the General
Fund, Liabilities for business-type activities are recorded and liquidated in the fund that incurs the liability.

Long-Term Debt

Govemnmental Activifies

Long-term debt in the governmental activities' column of the government-wide Statement of Net Position
consists of general obligation bonds (including refunding), certificates of obligation bonds, sales tax
revenue bonds, and unamortized bond premium/discounts.

General obligation bonds and certificates of obligation provide funds for the acquisition and construction
of capital equipment and facilities. General obligation bonds are direct obligations issued on a pledge
of the general taxing power for the payment of the debt obligations of the City. General abligation bonds
and certificates of obligation require the City to compute, at the time other taxes are levied, the rate of
tax required to provide (in each year bonds are oufstanding) a fund to pay interest and principal at
maturity.
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Significant transfers from Business-Type Activities to Governmental Activifies:

46,325,724 from the Storm Water Utility fund fo the Drainage fund for capital project funding.
$48,000 from the Airport fund to the Capital Lending Reserve fund for repayment of interfund loan.
$150.000 from the Water and Wastewater Fund to the Other CIP fund for IT acquisitions.
$1,263,985 from the Water and Wastewarter Fund to the Street Maintenance Fund for payments in
lieu of property taxes

$497,500 from the Water and Wastewater Fund to the Grants Fund for project funding

$200,000 from the Solid Waste Fund to the Municipal Faciliies Fund for capifal project funding
$450,000 from the Solid Waste Fund to the Other CIP fund for capital project funding.

$40,963 from the Solid Waste Fund to the Fleet Services Internal Service Fund for capital assets.

397,121 from the Solid Waste Fund to the Street Maintenance Fund for payments inliew of property
taxes

Other significant fransfers made between governmental funds included the following:

$6,560,077 from the General fo the Park Venue for fiscal operations

$5,470,542 from the Streets CIP Fund to the Granis Fund for capital project funding.

337,693,951 from EFIC 2 CIP Fund io the TIF #1 EPIC CIP Fund to create the new fund for EPIC
capital projects.

$6,700,000 from the General to the Capital Lending Reserve for future copital needs and
improvement.

$2,940,000 from the General fo the [T & Equipment Acquisition funds {annual appropriation)
$10,393,527 from the General to the Grants to fund matching requirements related to operating
grants

$1,500,000 fram the Park Venue to the Park Capital Fund for improvements fo infrastruciure and
equipment at city wide parks

F. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Unavailable Revenue
The governmential funds report unavailable revenues from the following sources:

General Debt Service
Fund Fund Total
Property taxes $ 1905045 % 908,844 § 2833889
Ambulance 138416 - 138,616
Total 3 2,043,661 % 928,844 % 2,972,505

In the Government-Wide Statement of Activities, these amounts were reported as revenue in the period
in which they were eamed.
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APPENDIX B

EXCERPTS FROM THE
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS
ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

The information contained in this Appendix consists of excerpts from the City of Grand
Prairie, Texas Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the Year Ended September 30,
2021 (the “Report”) and is not intended to be a compl of the City’s financial
condition. Reference is made to the complete Report for further information. The information
contained in this Appendix is provided as of the respective dates and for the periods specified
herein and is subject to change without notice, and the filing of this Appendix does not, under
any circumstances, imply that there has been no change in the affairs of the City since the
specified date as of which such information is provided. In particular, the dates as of and
periods for which some of such inf jon is provided d before the impact of the
worldwide COVID-19 pandemic and the ic impact of instituted to slow it
could be fully realized. Accordingly, the historical information set forth in this Appendix is
not necessarily indicative of future results or performance due 1o these and other factors,
including those discussed in the Official Statement,
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Two of the City's enterprise funds, the Water and Wastewater Fund and the Solid Waste Fund, make
payments in lieu of property taxes to the Street Maintenance Fund, which is a Nenmajor Governmental
Fund to provide funding for street repairs. The payments are calculated by applying the City's property
tax rate to the net book value of the enterprise funds' capital assets. Since the calculation methodology
is not the same as that applied to similar activities in the private sector in several respects, these payments
are recorded as transfers infout rather than as operating revenues/expenses,

At September 30, 2021, transfers between the City's governmental activities and the City's business-type
activities consisted of the following:

Transters In
General Section 8 Sireels Grants Dbt Epic 2

Transfers Out Fund Fund CIP Fund Fund Service Fund CIP Fund
General Fund 4 - 3 . | - % 103AsT § - % =
Streels CIP Fund - - - 5,470,542 - E
Grants Fund - - - = 5 -
Debt Service Fund - - - - -
Epic 2 CIP Fund - = i - - -
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - - + 11,730 50,000 -
Internal Service Funds % - = - - -
Water & Wostewater Fund - - = 497,500 - -
Solid Waste Fund - E 5 = : =
MNonmajor Enterprise Funds - - - - - -
Tolal 5 * 3 = $ - $ 1637329%9 % 950,000 § k.

Transfers In

Monmajor Water Solid Other Intermal
Governmertal  Wastewater Woste Monmajor Service
Transters out Funds Fund Fund Enferprise Funds Fund Total

General Fund 3 16557229 § 4200000 % 2t 3 3 ~ $ 33,150,756
Sireetfs CIP Fund - - - - - 5,470,542
Grants Fund 307,427 - - - - 309,427
Debl Service Fund - - 187,955 187,955
Eplc 2 CIP Fund 37,693,951 - - - 37,693,951
Monmajor Governmental Funds 9.942,535 16,000 - 350,000 - 11,270,265
Internal Service Funds 261,040 - - - - 261,040
Waler & Wastewaler Fund 1,413,585 - # 1,911,485
Salid Waste Fund BN - - 40,763 358,084
Nonmajor Enterprise Funcds 4373724 - - - 6,373,724
Total § 72849012 3 4216000 § % ¥ 537955 § 60763 § 94,987,229

Significant transfers from Governmental Activities to Business-Type Activities:

*  $6,200,000 from the General Fund to the Water and Wastewater Fund for pooled cash coverage
+  $16,000 from the Public Improvement District (PID) fund to the Water and Wastewater Fund for PID

funding.

= $350,000 from the Parks Venue fund to the Golf fund for golf course operations.



City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Cost Reimbursements

The cost of the City's central general and administrative services is allocated fo the designated special
revenue and enterprise funds. These costs are reported as interfund services provided and used rather
than interfund transfers. Interfund services provided and used are arms-ength fransactions between
departments or funds that would be treated as revenues, expenditures or expenses if they were with an
external organization, The distinguishing aspect of inferfund services provided and used are that each
department or fund both gives and receives consideration.

Cost reimbursements for general and administrative services (indirect costs) are recorded as general and
administrative revenue in the City's General Fund. Indirec! costs are recorded as general and
administrative expenses in the funds receiving these services.

For the year ended September 30, 2021, cost reimbursements were as follows:

Fund Arnount
Water and wastewaler funds $ 4,577,846
Solid woste funds 560,806
Storm waler funds 106,582
Alrport fund 79,538
Other nonmajor governmental funds 248,760
Total to general fund $ 5573532

Franchise Fees

The City's enterprise funds, which use public right-of-way, pay franchise fees to the General Fund as if
they were organizations separate from the City. These fees are not taxes, but are compensation to the
City for the use of the City's right-of-way, These payments, 4% of gross revenues, are reported as interfund
services provided and used rather than interfund transfers, and are reported as revenue (franchise fees)
in the General Fund and expenses in the enterprise funds,

For the year ended September 30, 2021, franchise fees paid to the General Fund were as follows:

Fund Armount
Waier and wastewater funds $  3408.287
Solid waste funds 428,818
Stormwater funds 344,068
Total $ 4181173

Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers are made to 1) move revenues from the fund with collection authorization to the debt
service fund as debt service principal and interest payments become due, 2} move restricted amounts
from borrowings to the debt service fund to establish mandatory reserve accounts, 3) move unresticted
revenues to finance varous programs that the govermment must account for in ather funds in
accordance with budgetary authorizations, including amounts provided as subsidies or matching funds
for various grant programs, and 4) make payments in lieu of property taxes.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Honaorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govemmental acfivities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remdining fund information of City of Grand Praitie, Texas (the City] as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2021, and the related notes fo basic financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The City's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America: this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant fo the
preparafion and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions oh these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the component unit financial statements for the Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation [a discrefely
presented component unit). Those financial statements were audited by other auditors in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, whose report thereon has
been fumnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as 1t relates to the amounts included for the Grand Prairie
Housing Finance Corporation is based on the report of other auditors. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gevernment Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the audifor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or emor.
In making those risk assessments, the audifor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order fo design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the enfity's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Weaver and Tidwell, LLP.
2300 North Field Street, Suite 1000 | Dallas, Texas 75201
" Main; 972.490.1970

CPAs AND ADVISORS | WEAVER.COM



The Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Opinions

In our opinion based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements refered to
above present faily, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented compenent units, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of September 30, 2021, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally cccepted in the Unifed States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis, budget to actual schedules for the General Fund and Section 8
Fund, Schedule of Changes in Postemployment Benefits-Refiree Health Plan, Schedule of Changes in
Postemployment Benefits-Texas Municipal Retirement Systermn, Schedule of Contributions-Texas Municipal
Retirement Systern, and Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios- Texas Municipal
Retirernent System listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial
staterments. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmenial Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essentiol part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses fo our inguiries, the basic financial staterments, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficlent evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance,

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules, s listed in the table of contents, is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements, Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used fo prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund statements and
schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation fo the basic financial statements as a whole.

The infroductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on them,

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

At September 30, 2021, a summary of changes in capital assets of the Housing Finance Corporation was
as follows:

Balance Transfers/ Balance
January 1, Additions/ Disposals/ December 31,
Housing Finance Corporation 2020 Completions Reclasses 2020
Non-depreciable capital assets:

Land 3 1,612,851 : 1 - $ - $ 1,612,851
Total non-depreciable capital assefs 1,612,851 - - 1,612,851
Deprecioble copital assets:

Buildings 21,084,364 443,569 497,167 22,027,100

Less accumulated depreciation (10.286.691) (1,021,144) (497,167) [11,805.004)
Total depreciable capital assets, net 10,799,673 (577,577) - 10,222,096
Housing Finance Corporation

assets, net b 12412524 5 |577.577) 3 - 3 11834947

At Septermber 30, 2021, a summary of chonges in capital assets of the Local Govermment Corporation
was as follows;

Balance Transfers/ Balance
October 1, Addilions/ Disposals/ September 30,
Local Gevernment Corporation 2020 Completions Reclasses 2021

Non-depreciable copital assets:

Land $ - § 488533 k3 - $ 4885331

Construction in progress - 50,000 - 50,000

Total nor-depreciable capital assets - 4,935,331 < 4,935,331
Local Government Corporation

assets, total % - ¥ 4935331 $ - % 4,935,331

E. Interfund Transactions

[nterfund Receivables and Payabies

Advances between funds are accounted for in the appropriate inferfund receivable and payable
accounts, and are reported as "due to/from other funds. A summary of interfund receivables and
payables balances at September 30, 2021, is as follows:

Payable Fund
Nonmajor
General Governmental
Receivable Fund Fund Funds Total
Grants Fund $ 28000000 % - $ 28,000,000
Nonmajor Governmentdl Funds 112,000,000 1,371,317 113,371,317
Water & Wostew ater Fund 7,000,000 - 7,000,000

$ 147000000 § 1,371,317 148,371,317

The primary purpose of the interfund receivables and payables listed above is to cover cash shortages
in the reported funds.

&1



City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Balance Transfers/ Balance
Oclober 1, Disposals/ Septermier 30,
Businass-Type Activifies 2020 Additions Reclassification 2021

Non-depreciable capital assets:

Land % 5,105,222 $ 18,131 i - % 5,123,353

Construction in progress 34,107,743 11,793,989 (11,387,471} 34,514,261
Total non-depreciable capiiol assels 39,212,965 11,812,120 [11.387.471) 39,637,614
Depreciable capital ossels:

Buildings 19,508,987 - 1,632,969 21,541,956

Equipment 28,107,787 3,147,298 (1,652,150} 29,402,895

Infrastructure 401,681,312 10,603,683 8,709,730 420,994,725
Total depreciable copitol assets 449,698,086 13,750,281 8,690,509 472,139,576
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings (9.791,158) {666,443} - (10,457.607)

Equipment [14,053,960) (2,860,900) 1,557,505 {15,357,355)

Infrostructure (220,058,838) [14,903,759) 1,308,208 [233.654,389)
Total accumulated depreciation (243,903,954) (18,431,102} 2,865,713 {259,46%,353)
Total depreciable capilal assels, net 205,794,122 (4,680,121) 11,556,222 212,670,223
Total capital assets, net $ 245,007,087 $ 7131999 3 168,751 $ 252.307.837

Depreciation expense was charged to govermmental and business-type activities as follows:

Govemmental activities: Business-type activities:

Support services 3 4,774,651 Water and wastew ater % 14,647,399

Public safety services 8,507,229 Solid waste 1,803,759

Recrealion and leisure services 9,746,647 Other business-type

Development services 23,229,927 activifies 1,979,944

Internal services funds {see note below) 306,092 B e
T Tofal business-lype activities 18,431,102

Tetal governmental activities 5 46,564,546

Capital assets held by the governmeni's infernal service funds are charged o various functions based on
their usage of the assefs.

Al Septemnber 30, 2021, a summary of changes in capital assets of the Sporfs Corporation was as follows:

Balance Transfers/ Balonce
October 1, Additions/ Disposals/ September 30,
Sports Corporation 2020 Completions Reclasses 2021
Equipment 3 310078 % = $ - 3 310078
Less accumulaled depreciafion {310,078) - - {310.078)
Total $ = § - § - 3 -
&0

The Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Other Reporfing Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have olso issued our report dated
March 29, 2022, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporfing and on our fests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, confracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is fo describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on intermnal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal centrol over financicl
reporting and compliance.

Loann and ducl LLE.

WEAVER AND TIDWELL, L.L.P.

Dallas, Texas
March 29, 2022
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Assets were restricted for the following purposes:

Governmental Business-Type
Purpose Activifies Activities Total
Customer deposits $ 45600 % 5942774 % 5,988,374
Debt service 3,792,767 5,607,337 9,400,104
Capital projects 73,903,750 55,606,358 129.510,108
Support services 2,602,224 - 2,602,224
Public safety 7,229,431 = 7,229,431
Recreation and leisure 26,949,596 s 26,949,594
Development services 11,850,024 - 11,850,024
Other specific purposes 29,013,805 - 29,013,805
Total restricted assets $ 155,387,197 3 467,156,469 $ 222,543,666

D. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2021 was as follows:

Balance Transfers/ Balance
Qctober 1, Disposals/ Seplember 30,
Governmental Activities 2020 Addifions Reclassification 2021

Non-depreciable capital assets:

Land $ 47,157,907 $ 8,008,645 ¥ - $ 55186552

Construction In progress 180,158,846 45,250,111 (133,532.878) 21,876,079
Total non-depreciable capital ossets 227,314,753 53,258,756 (133,532,878} 147,042,631
Depreciable capifal assets:

Buildings 257,020,516 2,803,371 104,634,670 364,458,557

Equipment 130,391,982 4,320,133 (5.402,242| 129,309,673

Infrastructure 444,841,043 5,908,518 13,893,206 664,642,767
Total depreciable capital assets 1.032.253.541 13,032,022 113,125,634 1,158,411,197
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Bulidings (94,109,832) (10.713.119) 1,236,598 (103,586,353)

Equipment (84.377.548) (10,940,643) 6,400,692 (88,937,299)

Infrastruciure (377,187,0464) (24,870,784) 16,450,338 [385,627,492)
Total accumulated depreciation (555,674,426) [46.564,546) 24,087,828 (578,151,144}
Total depreciable capital assets, net 476,579.115 (33,532,524) 137,213,462 580,260,053
Total capital assets, net $ 703,895,868 § 19,726,232 $ 3,680,584 § 727302484
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes fo the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

B. Receivables

At September 30, 2021, receivables, including applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts,

consisted of the following:

Dkt Manmajor Internal Totcl
Governmental Activities General Granis Service Governmentol Service Governmenial
Recaivables:
Preperly laxes $ 287|501 % - $ 124938 % - 3 $  4127E
Sales taxes 7,780,867 - - 7,749,116 15,550,003
Franchise fees 23762 = . 40,026 - 2,431,788
Cther 3,809,080 32,189 4,658 1,813,038 84,040 5742973
Tolal receiv ables. gross 15,840,190 32,189 1,254,039 7642178 84,060 27,852,656
Less:
Allewance for uncollsciibles [1,404,887) - [324,400) - [1.731,287)
Told receiv otles. nat § 15433300 § 3n1& 5 9963 3 9642078 3 B4040 § 26121389
Water Solid Other Total
Business-Type Activities: Wastewater Waste Nonmdjor Business-Type
Receivables:
Trade accounts $ 1,131,810 $ 1.810.470 $ 1,019,672 $ 13961959
Other = 10,000 = 10,000
Total receivables, gross 11,131,810 1,820,470 1.019.677 13.971.959
Less:
Allowance for uncollecticles 15,284.392) (1,242,617) {274,390) (6.808,399)
Total receivables, net $ 5847418 § 570853 $ 745289 §  7.63560

C. Restricted Assets

At September 30, 2021, restricted assels consisted of the following:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Tobal
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12105518 % 2958022 § 15063540
Inv estments 143,281,679 64,198,447 207,480,126
$ 155387097  § 67156469 % 2225434666
58
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes fo the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

d Prairie Sports Facilities Devel t
The Corp has recurring fair value measurements as presented in the table below. The Corp's investment
balances and weighted average maturity of such investments are as follows:

Fair Yahe Measuremeants Using
Quated Prices in Sgnificant

Active Markets Olber Significant Weighled
for Identical Observabie Unabservable  Averoge
Seplember 30, Assels Inputs Inputs Maturity
21 jLavel 1) Level 3) [Leveld) (Derys) Cradif Risk
Cash 3 108,853 1 = ¥ . ]
Invesiments measured ol amoriized cosi:
I estment Pools:
TexPool 7.012,554 = - - 1 AAAM
Inwesimenls by ok value levet
U5, government agency securilles:
FHLB 2,011,638 = 2011.638 - 477 ANA
Total 3 10.0140.045 ] - 5 2011438 § -

The Sports Corporation is authorized to invest in obligations of the U. 8. orits agencies and instrumentalities,
certdin repurchase agreements, municipal securities with a rating of at least A, caollateralized or insured
certificates of deposit, and SEC-registered, no-load money market mutual funds comprised of securifies
allowed under the Public Funds Investments Act and public funds investment pools. At year-end, all
investments of the Sporfs Corporation were held by the Sports Corporatfion's agent in the Sports
Corporation's name. The fair value of investments owned at September 30, 2021 was $9.019.554 in the
Public Funds Investment Pool (TexPool) and $2.011,438 in U.S. agency instrumentalifies.

City and Grand Prairi cilities Development Investment Portfoli
The asset mix of the City's and Sports Corporation's portfolio is expressed in terms of maximum
commitment so as to allow flexibility to take advantage of market conditions, The asset mix requirements
are as follows:
Sports
City Corporation

%o Madmum % Maximum

1. U.5. Treasury bills and notes 100 100
2. U5, agency or instrumentality obligofions (each type) 25 40
3. Repurchase agreements 20 20
4. Municipal securifies (fotal) 40 40
5. Municipal securities [out-of-state) 40 40
6. Cerlificates of deposit [per insfitution) 20 2
7. Money market mutual fund 50° 50
8. Public funds investment pool 50 100

a Total agency investments limited o no more than 100% of the total portfolic.

b Stote low allows up 1o 80% of monthly average fund balance, excluding bond proceeds, The City Bmits ils exposure lo 50% o
reduce risk.

Inaddifion, the City may invest in caable securities but shall limit the total amount to no mere than 50% of the porifolia, The Sporls

Cerporation does nat imit callable securifies. The Cily and Sporls Corporation did not invest in any securifies different from The
categories menficned above during the 2020-2021 fiscol year,
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

investment Policy

The City is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, the Public Funds Investment Act [Act), fo adopt,
implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy must be wiitten, primarily to emphasize safety
of principal and liquidity; address 1) investrnent diversification, yield, and maturity, and 2) the quality and
capability of investment management; include a list of the types of authorized investments in which the
investing entity's funds may be invested; and, the maximum allowable stated maturity of any individual
investment owned by the entity,

The City Council has adopted investment policies [policies) which are in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, where applicable. The policies identify authorized investments and invesiment terms,
collateral requirements, safekeeping requirements for collateral and investments and certain investment
practices.

The Act requires an annual audif of investment practices. Audit procedures in this area conducted as
part of the audit of the basic financial statements disclosed that in the areas of investment practices,
management reporfs and establish appropriate polices. Authorized investments include obligations of
the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities (except for mortgage pass-through securifies),
repurchase agreements, municipal securities, public funds investrment poaols, SEC regulated money
rmarket mutual funds and collaterdiized or insured certificates of deposit. The City adheres fo the
requirements of the Act. Additionally, investment practices of the City are in accerdance with local
policies.

The investment policies require that repurchase agreements be made pursuant to a master agreement,
the collateral is a U. §. Treasury bill, note or bond; the security is held in safekeeping by the City's custodial
agent; and the investment is fransacted “delivery vs. payment™ so that the City'sinterest in the underlying
security is perfected. The City does not invest in reverse repurchase agreements. No City monies were
invested in repurchase agreements at September 30, 2021.

Investrment Risk
Interest rate risk — In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure 1o declines in
fair values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investments porifolio to less than twelve months.

Credit risk - State law limits investments in commercial paper if the commercial paper is rated not less
than A-1 or P-1 or an eauivalent rating by at least two nationally recognized credit rating agencies or
one nationally recognized credit rating agency and is fully secured by an irevocable letter of credit
issued by a bank crganized and existing under the laws of the United States or any state, The City's policy
does not allow Investments in commercial paper.

Concentration of credit risk — Investments shall be diversified to reduce the risk of loss resulting from
over-conceniration of investrents in a specific maturity, a specific issue, or a specific class of securities.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021
(Unaudited)

Management's discussion and analysis provides o narrative overview of the financial activities and
changes in the financial position of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas (the City) for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2021. It is offered here by the management of the City to the readers of its financial
staternents. Readers are encouraged to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the
infarmation fumished in our letter of transmittal, the introductory section of the City’s financial staterment,
and the accompanying notes.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

« The assets and deferred oulflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources at September 30, 2021 by $724,434,431 [netf position).

« The City's fotal net position increased $39.994.412, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021,
primarily due to an increase in charges for services, sales tax collections, franchise fee collections,
and grant contributions.

« At September 30, 2021, the City's governmental funds reported cormbined ending fund balances
of $299,266,048. The $46,567,628 unassigned fund balance in the General Fund represents 28.0%
of total General Fund expenditures and transfers.

s The City's total long-term liabilities of $695,774,540 increcsed by $66,610,772 (10.6%) during the
current fiscal year. In fiscal year 2021, net bonded debt increased by $66,930,000, with the
remaining liability comprised of pension and employee related obligations. See Table 4 in this
report for further information regarding the City's long-term liabilities.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements.
The reporting focus is on the City as a whole and on individual major funds. It is infended fo present a
more comprehensive view of the City's financial activities.

The City's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1} government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial staterents. This report also contains
required and other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements - The govemment-wide financial statlements include the
Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities. These statements are designed to provide readers
with a broad overview of the City's finances in a manner similar to that of a private-sector business. Both
are prepared using the econormic resources focus and the accrual basls of accounting, meaning that il
the current year's revenuss and expenses are included regardless of when cash is received or paid,

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City's assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liablities, including capital assets and long-term liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources.
The differences between these items are reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial pesition of the City is improving or
deteriorating. Other indicators of the city's financial position should be taken into consideration, such as
the change in the City's property tax base and condition of the City's infrastructure (i.e., roads, drainage
systems, water and sewer lines, efc.), in order to more accurately assess the overall financial condition of
the City.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed
during the maost recent fiscal year. It focuses on both the gross and net costs of the government's various
activities and thus summarizes the cost of providing specific government services, This statement includes
all current year revenues and expenses.
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The Statement of Met Position and Statement of Activities divide the City's activities into two types:

Govemmental Activiies — Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including general
government, public safety, planning, public works, transportation, housing, community development,
cultural events, and library. Property taxes, sales taxes, and franchise fees provide the mojority of
financing for these activities.

Business-Type Activifies — Activities for which the City charges a fee to customers to pay most or all of the
costs of a service it provides are reported here. The City's business-type activities include a water and
wastewater system, a solid waste sanitary landfill, a storm water utility system, municipal airport, and
municipal golf courses,

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary
government), but also the Grand Proirie Sports Facilities Development Corporation, Inc. (the Sports
Corporation) and the Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation (HFC) as component units, Both are
legally, financially, and administratively autonomous separate corporations. HFC issues tax exsmpt
revenue bonds fo supply mortgage financing for low income home buyers and multi-family
developments, and engages in other affordable housing activities. The Sports Corporation oversees Lone
Star Park at Grand Prairie, a horse track facility,

The Crime Control and Prevention Distict (CCPD) is o legally separate entity that is financially
acceountable to the Cify, A blended presentation has been used to report the financial information of this
component unit. The CCPD is reported as the Crime Sales Tax Fund.

Fund financial statements — The City, like other state and local govemnments, uses fund accountfing to
ensure and demonstrate compllance with finance-reloted legal requirements, A fund is a grouping of
related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activitles or objectives. These statements focus on the most significant funds and may be used to find
more detailed information about the City's most significant activities. All of the funds of the City can be
divided Into two categories: govemnmental funds and proprietary funds.

Govermnmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for the majority of the City's activities,
which are essentially the same functions reported as govemmental activities in the govemnment-wide
staterments. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements. govemmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as spendable
resources avallable at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government's near-term financing requirements.

The focus of the governmental funds financial staternents is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements. Therefore, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental octivities in the govemment-wide financial
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term Impact of the government’s
near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds Balonce Sheet and the govemmental funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconclliation to
facilitate this comparison. These reconciliotions explain the differences between the government's
activities as reported in the government-wide statements and the information presented in the
governmental funds financial statements.

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

The City has recuring fair value measurements as presented in the table below. The City's investment
balances and weighted average maturity of such investments are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using:

Quoted Prices In Sigrifican!
Active Morkets Other Sigrificont ‘Weighled
for Identical Chservable Unobservable  Averoge
Seplember 30, Assets Irpuls Inpuls Maturity
fvrd] [Level 1) fLevel 2] (Level 3) {Days) Credit Risk
Cash 3 s5BO21 § = ] E 3

Investiments measured of amoriized cost:

Invesiment Poals!

TexPool 80,230,288 - - - ABAM
Invesiments measured ol net aset value (NAV]:

Invesimani Pools:

TaxStar 37,591,595 = - - | AAAM
Investments by foir volue levek

U5, government agency securifies:

U5 Treasuries 71487917 - 91,487.917 = 604 ANA
Municipal bonds 36,701,519 - 38,701,519 E 334 AbA
FAMCA 76,116,433 % 76,116,433 - 485 Mot Rated
FFCB 52.067.938 - 52,067,938 & » AAA
FHLB 3,854,093 - 3,856,093 - 477 A
FHLMC 7.8685.821 - 27.885821 - 105 AAA
FrimMA 58,486,298 = 56,486,298 = 405 AAA
Total 3 47340023 ] - § 34B80200% %

The amounts for TexStar and TexPool [pooled investments] are reported as cash equivalents in the
Statement of Net Position.

The TexPool investment pool is an external investment pool measured at amortized cost, In order to meet
the criteria to be recorded at amortized cost, the investment pool must transact at a stable net asset
value per share and maintain certain maturity, quality, liquidity and diversification requirements within the
investment pool. The invesiment pool transacts at a net asset value of $1.00 per share, has weighted
average maturities of sixty days or less and welighted average lives of 120 days or less. Investments held
are highly rated by naticnally recognized statistical rating organizations, have no more than 5% of
portfolio with one issuer (excluding U.S. government securities) and can meet reasonably foresesable
redemptions. The maturity of the City's position in this investrment pool is based on the average maturity
of the pool's investment. The investment pool's autherity may only impose restrictions on redemptions in
the event of o general suspension of trading on major securities markets, general banking moratorium or
national state of emergency that affects the pool's liquidity.

The TexStar investment pool is an external investment pool measured at NAV. TexStar's strategy is to
seek preservation of principal, liquidity and current income through investment in a diversified portiolic of
short-term marketable securities. The City has no unfunded commitments related to the investment pocls.
TexStar hos a redemption notice period of one day and may redeem daily. The investment pool's
authorities may only impose restrictions on redemptions in the event of a general suspension of frading
on major securities markets, general banking moratoriurn or national or state emergency that affects the
poaol's liquidity.

U.5. Gavernment Agency Securities classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using o

matrix pricing technigue. Matrix pricing Is used fo value securities based on the securifies' relationship to
benchrmark guoted prices.
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Chapter 2257 Collateral for Public Funds of the Government Code requires that all depasits in financial
institutions be fully collateralized by U.S. Government obligations or its agencies and instrumentalities or
direct obligations of Texas or its agencies and instrumentfalifies that have a market value of not less than
the principal amount of the deposits, The above book balance includes monies held in escrow, pushing
the book balance above the collateral value, Per Wells Farge Bank, N.A. and BNY Mellon's contractual
obligation to the City, the collateral value held in the City’s name at September 30, 2021 was $9,620,797.

Grand Prairie Sporfs Facilities Development

Al September 30, 2021, the camying amount of the Sportfs Corporation's deposits included in cash and
cash equivalents was $109,090 while the bank balance of the Sports Corporation's deposits was $110,460.
The bank balance was enfirely covered by collateral held by the Sports Corporation’s agent in the Sporis
Corporation’s name,

Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation

The bank balance of HEC af December 31, 2020, including restricted cash, totaled $2,105.861 all of
which was covered by FDIC insurance and collateral held by the depository institution in HFC's name.
HFC's unrestricted cash and cash equivalents had o balance of $653,769. Restricted cash of 398,282
(tenant security deposifs) represents cash held on deposit by HFC for insurance proceeds received for
damages fo federally funded assefs. The liability is recorded until final disposition of the proceeds is
requested by HUD. Other assets include reserves of $142,857 ond bonds held by o frustee of $1,210,092 as
a debt service reserve.

Grand Prairie Local Government Corporation

At September 30, 2021, the carrying amount and bank balance of the Local Government Corporation's
deposits included in cash and cash eguivalents was $75,752. The bank balance was entirely covered by
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation [FDIC) Insurance fthrough its financial Institution.

Investments

The City and the Sporis Corporation categorize ifs fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value
Measurement ond Application provides o framework for measuring fair value which establishes a
three-level fair value hierarchy that describes the inputs that are used to measure assets and liabilities.

« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted for identical assets or fiabilities in active markets that
a government can access at the measurement date.)

« Level 2inputs are inputs, ofher than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for
an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

« Level 3inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.

The fair valus hierarchy gives the highest priority fo Level 1 inpufs and the lowest priority to Level 3 inputs.
If a price for an identical asset or liability is not observable, o govermnment should measure fair value using
anather valuation technigue that maximizes the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizes the use
of unobservable inputs. If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one
level of the fair value hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on fhe lowest priority level
input that is significant to the entire measurement.
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The City reports thirty one individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
govemmental fund's Balance Sheet and in the govermmental fund's Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for the City's six maijor funds - General Fund, Section 8 Fund,
Streets CIP Fund, Grants Fund, Debt Service Fund, and the Epic 2 CIP Fund. Data for other nonmajor
governmental funds are combined info a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each
of the nonmajor govemmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
report.

Proprietary funds — The City maintains two different fypes of proprietary funds - enterprise funds and
intermal service funds.

Enterprise funds are used fo report the same functions presented as business-fype activities of the
government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and
wastewater system, solid waste sanitary landfill, storm water utility, municipal girport, and municipal golf
courses. Propriefary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
staternents, only in more detail. The City has five enterprise funds of which two are maijor enterprise funds
— the Water Wastewater Fund and the Solid Waste Fund. Data from other nonmajer enferprise funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual
fund data for each of these non-major enterprise funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

Intemnal service funds are an accounting device used fo accumulate and allocate costs internally among
the City's various functions. The City uses internal service funds to account for vehicle and equipment
maintenance and the premiums, deductibles, and claims for all insurance programs (e.g. employee
health, workers compensation, general liability, etc.). Because these services benefit both governmental
and business-type functions, they have been allocated o both acftivities in the govemment-wide
financial statements in proportion to services received. The City's two internal service funds are combined
info @ single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data
for the City'sinternal service funds s provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Notes to the financial statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information — In addition o the basic financial statements and accompanying netes, this report
also presents cerfain required supplementary information conceming the City's progress in funding its
ohligation to provide pension benefits fo its employees.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds, nanmajor
enferprise funds, and internal service funds are presented immedictely following the reguired
supplementary information.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Total assets of the City at September 30, 2021 were $1,488,179,949, deferred outflows of resources were
$23,536,997, total liabilities were $765,037,939, and deferred inflows of resources were $22,244,596 resulting
in a net posifion of $724,434,431.

The largest portion of the City's net position, $563,449,296 (77 .9%), reflects ifs investment in capital assets
{land, buildings and improvements, infrastructure, vehicles, machinery, and equipment), less any related
outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The City uses these assets to provide services to its citizens;
consequently these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City reports its capital assets
net of related debt, the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since
the copital assets themselves cannet be used to liguidate these liabilities.

Table 1 below is a summary of the City's net position at year end compared to the prior year,

Table 1
Net Position
Gaovemmental Business-type Tolal
Activilies Activilies Primary Government
9730/ 2020 ¥/ 30/ 2021 9/30/2020 9730/ 2021 9430/ 2020 F2021
Cash and investmenis $ 257742938 § 353890403  § 114953733 3 11951420 0§ 374896471 $ 473042023
Other assels 26,581,255 12,721,010 12,403,270 17.606,415 38,984,525 35,527,425
Capital assels, nel 703,895,548 727,302,684 245,007,050 252,307,837 $48,902,758 979.610.521
Total assets FI0.420.061 1,098.914,297 372,364,073 389,265,672 1,362.784,154 1.488,179,949
Defarred outliows of
FESOUICEs 21,526,504 0,557,107 2,309 822 2877570 23836726 23,536,997
Current liabilities 36937553 5012967 13,475,698 14,250,432 50,413,201 &9,263,379
Long-lerm bonded debt 416,024 421 489,358,630 51,248,478 45684745 467,373,099 535,045,375
Oiher noncurrent Fablilies 142,026,244 138.687.073 19,664,425 22042052 161,890,669 160,729,165
Tolal Babilities 594,988,458 4B3.058.470 B4.588, 401 81.979.249 479.577.059 F45,037,937
Deferred inflows of
resources 20.,878.302 20013814 1.725.500 2,230,780 22,403,802 F2.244.594
Het Position
MNel Investmant in
coplial assels 334,590,522 356,640,773 193,394,640 207,008,523 529,985,182 563,649,296
Restricted 58,788.228 76,342,878 61,272,475 88,209,337 120.060,703 164,552,217
Unresticied 701.455 [14,482.733) 33,692,677 12715451 34,394,134 [3.747,082)
Total net position § 376080205 3 414500918 § 288359814 0§ 307.933513 $  BE440019 § 724434437

A portion of the City's net position totaling $164.552,217, or 22.8%, represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used.,

The City's net position increased by $39,994,412 from the prior fiscal year due to an increase in charges
for services, sales tax collections, franchise fee collections, and grant contributions. Overall water and
wastewater rates increased approximately 4%,

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Nates to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Minimum Fund Balance Palicy

It is the desire of the City to maintain an adequate fund balance in the General Fund in order to maintain
liquidity and in anficipation of economic downturns or natural disasters, The City Council has adopted a
financial policy to maintain @ minimum unassigned fund balance of 50 to 40 days of budgeted General
Fund expenditures.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and
deferred inflows of resources. Restricted net position represents the difference between restricted assets
and liabilities payable from these assets that is externally imposed by enabling legislation.

Net investment in capital assefs consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, plus deferred
outflows from bond refundings, reduced by retainage payable and the outstanding balance of any debt
used for acquisition, construction, or improvements of those assets, plus any unspent bond proceeds.

F. Budgetary Control

As set forth by the City Charter, the City Manager submits annual budgets to the City Council in August
for the upcoming fiscal year. In September, the City Council adopts budgets for all governmental funds
except for the Grants Fund, Police Seizure Funds, Public Improvement District Funds (PIDs), Tax Increment
Financing District Funds (TIFs), and the Verizon Theatre Fund. For each govemmental fund, budgeted
appropriations (expenditures) may not exceed budgeted revenues plus beginning fund balances.

Capital project funds are controlled on a project basis and budgeted appropriations are cared forward
each year until the project is completed.

Note 2. Detailed Notes
A. Deposits and Investments
Cash and Cash ivalents

At September 30, 2021, the City reported cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Net Position as
follows:

Unrestricled Restricted Total
Cash 5 3,559,999 3 2,958,022 3 6,518,021
Pooled investments 105,816,465 12,105,518 117,921,983
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 109,376,464 §  15063,540 $ 124,440,004

Of this amount, the City's cash carrying amount (boack] and bank balances were as follows:

Financial Institution Book Balance Bank Balance

Wells Fargo and BNY Mellon $ 6,490,665 3§ 10,021,979
Petty Cash 27,356 -

Total cash $ 6,518,021 $ 10021979
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Pensions

for purposes of measuring net pension liability, defered outflows and inflows of resources related to
pensicns and pension expense, information about the Fiduciary Net Position of TMRS, and additions
to/deductions from TMRS's Fiduciary Net Pasition have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is
reported for the employee, which is when confributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms, Invesiments are reporfed af
fair value, Complete details of the plan are listed in Note J.

Postemployment Benefi

The City provides postemployment healthcare benefifs to all vested employees upon refirement from the
City. Employees are vested in the City's pension plan with twenty-five years or more of service, regardless
of age, or five years or more of service ot age sixty and above. Coverage s also available fo dependents
or surviving spouses of retirees. The City subsidizes medical, dental, and hospitalization costs incurred by
refirees and their dependents. Recommendations for plan benefits are presented to City Council for their
approval during the annual budget process, The City's plan qualifies asa single-employer, defined benefit
plan. Complete details of the plan are listed in Note K.

Long-Term Debt

General obligation bonds and other debt issued for general government capital projects and
acquisitions that are repaid from tax revenues are recorded in the governmental activities columnin the
govermment-wide Statement of Net Position. Debt issued to fund capital projects in the proprietary funds
is recorded in boih the business-type activities column in the government-wide Statement of Net Position
and in the proprietary fund Statement of Net Posifion. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as deferred
charges on refunded debt obligations, are defered and ameortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method in the government-wide financial siatements and in the proprietary funds.
Bonds payable are reported net of applicable bond premiums and discounts.

ture and Purpose of Classifications of F Equi
Resiricted fund baolances in the govemmental funds are externally imposed by credifors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments for specific purposes.

Committed fund balances can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by the
City Council through an ordinance or resclution, which are considered equally restrictive for the purpose
of committing fund balances. To remove or change the constraint, the City Council must fake the same
level of action.

Assigned fund balances are determined by City management based on City Council direction, in
accordance with financial policies adopted by resolution. Assigned fund balances are constrained by
the intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned fund balance represents the amount thot does not meet the criteria for restricted,
committed, or assigned.

Nonspendable fund balances represent inventories and prepaid items.

The City considers expenditures to be made from the most restrictive classification when more than one
classification is available.
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The fiscal year 2021 compared fo fiscal 2020 changes in the City's nef pesition were as follows:

Table 2
Changes in Net Position
Governmenia Business-lype Total
Activitias Aciivifies Primary Government
9430/2020 RS20 F/I0F2020 P30/202) 9/30/2020 F430/ 2021
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for setvices § 43280739 $  S0E28628 3 108778472 § 110402425 § 150088231 3 141231053
Operaling grants and contributions 63,784,393 45,378,240 96,306 - 43,880,705 45.37B.240
Capital gronts ond contibufions 417,050 6,974,947 10,069,185 15545712 10,486,235 22,520,679
General revernes:
Progarty fox 116020970 113.824.809 = 2 114,020,990 113824 509
Sales fox 70608372 80,187,852 = . 0808352 80,187 B52
Qiher fox 1.794.491 2368524 - - 1,774,491 2366924
Franchise lees 13,903,804 14,022,362 = - 13,903,806 140223462
Inw estment income 7,952,664 333,285 25770 [BAL] 7.978,434 334,401
Toldl rey enues 317,971,531 313,937,067 116,967,753 125,949,253 434,561,284 439,884,320
Experses:
Suppord services a1.310,741 31,880,593 - - 31310741 31,880,553
Public sofety sarvices 1137286877 105, 285.67% = - 3728877 106,285,679
Recrealion and letiure services 32,949,455 35162022 - - F2547,455 35,142,022
Development services 110,126,929 VOR.073.042 = - 110,124,929 107,073,042
Inferast on keng-term debt 12,689,16% 14,004,156 - - T2.489.16% 14,004,156
Waler and wastewalar - - FAMLIT0 B1,889.959 73211370 B1,889.959
Salicd waste & b 13,044,195 13,906,355 13,044,195 13,704,365
Municipal airpon = T 2.529.664 574,658 2,579,664 2974688
sunlcipal golf course = < 3,452,349 3141846 3452349 3,141,846
Stormwater - = 2.497,132 573380 2497132 2,572,380
Talcl expenses J00.805,171 295,405,672 P4.734.710 104,486,216 95550861 399.691.908
Incremes [decreases) in net pesition
before Fonsters 17.166.360 18,531,375 22.255.043 21,463,037 30,421,403 37974412
Trarsiers 4830597 1,869,338 (4.830,9%9) {1,889,338) - =
Change In nel pasifion 21,997,359 20,420713 17,424,044 19,573,699 39,421,403 39,994,412
Nel position - beginning of yeor 374,082,846 396,080,205 270,935,770 ZRRGSFEL4 545,018,616 484,440,019
Net posifion - end of year §  394.080.205 $ 416500918 § ZBB359.614 $ 307933513 § 684440019 1 724434431

Governmental activities — Governmental activities increased the City's net position by $20,420,713 in
comparison with beginning net position, primarlly due to an increase in sales tax collections, and
additional federal funding received. Net position of governmental operations accounts for 57.5% of fotal
net position.

Business-type activities — Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $19.573,69% in
comparison with beginning net position. Overall operating revenues and expenses increased
proporfionately. Net position for business-type activities represents 42.5% of fotal primary government net
position,
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

Governmental funds - The focus of City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable rescurces. Such informnation is useful in assessing the
City's financing requirements. In particular, unrestricted fund balonce may serve as a useful measure of
a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At fiscal year-end 2021, the City's governmental funds [excluding intemal service funds) reported
combined ending fund balances of $299,246,048, an increase of $45,150,938 in comparison with the prior
year. The unassigned fund balance portion is 15.6% and is available for spending at the government's
discretion. The remainder is restricted for specific purposes and is not avallable for new spending. Specific
purposes include non-spendable inventories and prepdid items ($491,473); amounts restricted by bond
covenants or granting agencies ($189,073,380) elther for debt service payments, grant-related use,
special taxing districts, or for capital projects. In addition, committed funds ($60,721,090) require formal
action by City Council. Finally, funds may be assigned [$2.412.477) by City Manager with the
City Council's delegated authoerity. Figures | and 2 that follow show the distribution of gevernmental
funds' sources of revenues and expenditures including transfers, $380,450,358 and $445,103,070,
respectively, for fiscal year 2021.

Figure 1 Figure 2
Revenue Sources Expenditures
Govermnmental Funds Governmental Funds

» Support Senvices
= Pulslic Salety

Recreation and
Leisure

= Development
services

= Sevice, Feas, and Capilal Oulloy

Fines

= Properly Taxes
4%
= Sales Taxes q
| Franchise Fees !

Principal Paymenis

21% = nferes!

Intergovermmental

Transiers/Olhe = Transfers Oul

The General Fund is the chief operafing fund of the City. At fiscal year-end, unassigned fund balance of
the Genetal Fund was $46,567,628, while total fund balance was $50,006,374. As a measure of the General
Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to
fotal fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 34.9% of total general fund operating
expenditures, while total fund balance represents 37.5% of that same amount. General Fund’s fund
balance decreased in the amount of $10,642,056 from the prior fiscal year largely due to $10.7M in CARES
funding received from the counties of Dallas and Tarrant.

Other major funds with significant changes in fund balance include Streets CIF, Grants, Debt Service and
Epic 2 CIP.

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
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* Pension and OPEB investment experience — the difference between projected and actual
eamings of plan investments. The difference Is deferred and recognized as pension plan expense
over a closed five-year period as required by GASB No. 68 and 75,

+ Pension and OPEB assumption changes - the difference resulting from a change in assumptions
used to measure the underlying net pension and OFEB liability, These differences are deferred and
recognized over the estimated average rermaining lives of all members as of the beginning of the
measurement period.

Deferred inflows of resources represents an acquisition of net position that is applicable to a future
reporfing period, and as so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
Deferred inflow of resources are reported in the basic financial statements the same as deferred outflows
of resources. The City has the following items that qualify for reporting in this category,

+ Unavallable revenue — at the governmental fund level, property tax and ambulance receivables
recorded but not expected to be collected within than sixty days after fiscal year end are deferred
and recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) in the period that the amounts become
available.

= Pension and OPEB actuarial experience — the difference between the expected and actual
experience in the actuarial measurement of the total pension and OPER liability not recognized in
the curent year. This amount is deferred and amortized over a period of years determined by the
plan actuary. The amortization period is based on the estimated average remaining service lives
of employees that are provided with a pension or OPEB through the plans (active and inactive
employees) for the City determined at the beginning of the measurement date.

= OPEB assumplion changes - the difference resulting from a change in assumptions used fo
measure the underlying net pension and OPEB liablity. These differences are deferred and
recognized over the estimated average remaining lives of all members as of the beginning of the
measurement period.

= Pension investment experience — the difference between projected and actual eamings of plan
investments. The difference is deferred and recognized as pension plan expense over a closed
five-year period as required by GASB No. 68.

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation benefits in varying amounts, depending on tenure with the City. These
benefits accumulate pro rata by pay period. Payment for unused vacation will be made upon separation
of employment. Fire and police civil service employees who have completed their introductory period
are paid up to 90 days sick leave upon separation of employment, excluding indefinite suspensions. The
valuation of the civil service sick leave is at current pay rates. The valuation of accrued compensated
absences includes salary-related payments such as the City's share of taxes and contributions to the
refirement plan in accordance with GASE 14,

Accrued compensated absence liabilities are reported in the respective columns in the
govemment-wide financial staternents and in the proprietary fund financial statements. Compensated
absences are only reported in governmental funds if they are owed to separated employees at the end
of the fiscal year.
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Receivables and P

Maijor revenue sources susceptible to accrual are recorded as receivables when they become both
measurable and available. Expenditures incurred during the curent fiscal year but not yet paid are
recorded as payables af fiscal year-end.

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
fiscal year-end are referred to as due to/from other funds.

Inventories and Prepaid items

Inventory consists primarily of supplies and material and s recorded at cost when purchased and
expensed when consumed, For the General Fund, inventory is expensed on an actual specific-cost basis.
Special Revenue and Enterprise Funds' inventory is charged out on a firstn, first-out basis, except for fuel
inventory which is charged out on a moving-average basis, Prepaid balances are for payment made by
the City in the current year o provide services occuning in the subsequent fiscal year. The cost of prepaid
items is expensed when consumed rather than when purchased.,

Accordingly, for both inventories and prepaid items, fund balance is classified as nonspendable for an
amount equal to the cost fo signify those funds are not available for spending.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital assefs (i.e. land, buildings, equipment, improvements other than buildings, infrastructure, and
construction in progress) of all the funds are stated at historical cost or estimated historical cost if historical
cost is hot known. Donated capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets
received in a service concession arangement are recorded at acquisition value on the date donated.
An itemn is classified as an asset if the initial, Individual cost is $5,000 or greater. Capital assets of the City
are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements and in the proprietary fund financial staterments. Assets subject to depreciation are
depreciated using the straight-line method.

The estimated useful lives of all depreciable assets are s follows:

Buildings 20 - 40 years
Machinery and Equipment 5-15vyears
Improvements other than Buildings 20 - 40 years
Infrastructure 20 - 40 years

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represents a consumption of net position by the City that is applicable to
a future reporting period, and as so wil not be recognized as an outflow of resources
|expenses/expenditures) until then, Deferred outflows of resources are reported in the govermnment-wide
Statement of Net Position for governmental and business-type activities and in the Statement of Net
Pasition in the fund financial statements only for proprietary funds. The City has the following items that
qualify for reporting in this category.

« Deferred charges on debt refunding - results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded
debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amorfized over the shorter of the life
of the refunded or refunding debt.

« Pension and OPEB Employer contributions — contfributions made from the measurement date of
the plans to the current fiscal year end (January to September). These contribufions are deferred
and recognized in the subsequent fiscal year.

City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Management's Discussion and Analysis = Continued
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021
(Unaudited)

The Streets CIP Fund decreased by $2,359.295 due fo an increase in sireet construction projects.

The Grants Fund increased by $6,726,875 due primarily fo fransfers into the Grants Fund fo pay the City's
portion of federal and state funded projects.

The Debt Service Fund increased by $1,298,339 due fo property tax assessments netted against debt
payments.

The Epic 2 CIP Fund decreased by $37,693,951 due fo a transfer fo the Tax Increment Financing CIP Fund.

The Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds had a collective increase in fund balance of $105,130,445 primarily
due to bond proceeds for the EPIC project.

Proprietary funds — The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
govermnment-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

The net position of the City's enterprise funds and internal service funds were $304,885,990 and $19.953.406
respectively, at September 30, 2021. The entferprise funds' net investment in capital assets represented
47.9% of total enterprise fund's net position. The internal service funds' net investment in capital assets
represented 8.5% of totalintemal service funds’ net position. The enterprise funds' unrestricted net position
was 3.2% of their fotal net position, and intemnal service funds’ unrestiicted net position was 91.5% of their
total funds' net position, The City's enterprise funds and the internal service funds reported income before
contibutions and transfers of $5,798,504 and $1,306,189, respectively. Other factors conceming the
finances of the proprietary funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the government-wide
financial statements and business-type activities. The following Figures 3 and 4 show the propriefary funds'
revenues of $144,550,515 and expenses of $136,623,505 (excluding non-operating revenues and
expenses, and contributions and transfers) by activity.

Figure 3 Figure 4
Revenues by Activily Expenses by Activity
Proprietary Funds Proprietary Funds
= Water and = Waler and
Waosiewoler Waslewalar
= Solid Wasle » Solid Waoste

Oiher Enlerprise Furids Other Enlerprise Funds

» Intemal Service Funds - = Intamal Service Funds
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Actual General Fund revenues were $7,851,589, or 5.4%, higher than final budgeted revenues for fiscal
year 2021, Property taxes, sales taxes, and franchise fees were 83.6% of General Fund budgeted revenues.
Actual General Fund expenditures were $3,543,778, or 2.6%, lower than final budgeted expenditures for
fiscal year 2021, Budgeted excess of revenues over expenditures before other financing sources and uses
was $9.286,713 compared fo actual of $20,682,080, resulting in a net positive budget variance of
$11,395,367. The City traditionally budgets revenue conservatively and this practice frequently results in
posifive budgetary variances,

Net change in fund balances of the General Fund, including other financing sources and uses such as
fransfers, resulted in a net positive budget variance of $12,020,066.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets - The City's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for its
govemmental and business-type activities at fiscal year-end amounted to $9779,610,521. This investment
includes land, buildings, improvements other than buildings (includes infrastructure), machinery and
equipment, and construction in progress. The City's capital assefs increased from prior vear by
$30,707.566.

Major capital projects occuring during the fiscal year included the following:

« Continued ambulance and engine replacement

+ Construction of Phase Il, Il and IV of the Municipal Complex

+  Continued street rehabilitation

+  Continued street assessrment implementation

* Continued sidewalk construction

+ Continued improvements to the water distibution and sewer system
* EPIC Central construction project

The City's capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, ot fiscal year-end was as follows:

Table 3
Capital Assets
Govemmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Govermment
4302020 30/ 021 /3042020 F430202 94300 2020 F30/2021
Land 3 ATI57907 0§ 55146552 % 5105222 % 5123353 § 52263127 § 60,259 %05
Conslruction in progress 180,158,846 1,876,009 34107743 34514241 214,266,589 124,390,340
Depreciable capital assets 1.032,253.541 1.158,411,197 447,498,084 472,139,576 1.481.951.827 1,630,550,773
Accumulated depreciafion (555,674,428} 1578,151,144| |243,903,941) |25%,46%,353) [797.578,387) [B37.620,497)
Tebal capilal assets, net § 703895848 § 727302484 § 245007070 § 252307837 0§ 948902958 §  979.510.521

Additional information regarding capital assets can be found in Note 2.D.

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
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The City alse reports unavailable and uneamed revenues in ifts governmental funds. Unavailable revenues
arise when potential revenue does not meet both the measurable and available criteria for recognition
in the current period. Uneamed revenues arise when the City receives revenue resources befare it has
legal claim te it, as when grant money is received prior to the incidence of qualifying expenditures. In
subsequent pericds, when revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the City has a legal claim to the
resource, the revenue is recognized.

Proprietary Funds

As mentioned earlier, proprietary funds use the economic rescurces measurement focus and the acerual
basis of accounting. The accounting objectives for proprietary funds are the determination of netincome,
financial posifion. and cash flows. Proprietary fund equity is segregated into (1) net investment in capital
assets; (2] restricted net posilion, and (3] unrestricted net position. Proprietary funds distinguish operating
revenues and expenses from the non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result
from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's
principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
non-operating revenues and expenses.

The City reports two types of proprietary funds — enterprise funds and internal services funds.

Enterprise Funds

Entferprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises, where the intent is 1) that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of
providing goods and services to the general public on a confinuing basls be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges, or 2) where the City Council has decided that periodic determination of
revenues earmed, expenses incurred and/or eperating income generated is appropriate for the purposes
of capital maintenance, public policy, management control, and/or accountability. The City maintains
five enterprise funds — water and wastewater services, solid waste services, storm water services, airport
operations, and golf course operations, These enterprise funds are classified as business-type activities in
both the government-wide and governmental fund financial statements.

Infernol Service F

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department to other departments within the City, on a cost-reimbursement basis. The City has two internal
service funds:

= Fleet Services Fund — accounts for a full range of services in managing and maintaining the
City's fleet of vehicles and equipment.

+ Risk Management Fund — accounts for premiums, deductibles and claims for the City's praperty,
liability, workers compensation, and employee health and life insurance prograrrs. The City
reports all risk financing activities in the Risk Management Fund.,

E. Assefs, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balances

Deposits and Investments

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is avallable for use by all funds. Interest earnings are
recorded in the General Fund unless it is required by regulations or agreements to allocate to certain
funds, In fiscal year 2021, the funds receiving allocation of interest earnings were the Grants Fund, Epic 2
CIP Fund, and the Police Seizure Funds. For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the City considers
cash on hand, dermand depaosits, and investments with original maturities of three months or less to be
cash eguivalenfs,
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At September 30, 2021, major enterprise funds include the following:

Water/Wastewater Fund

This fund accounts for water and wastewater system services provided for residents of the City, including
administration, operations, maintenance, debt service, billing and collection. The City purchased treated
water from surrounding cities, and water is pumped from City-owned wells. Although the City owns the
wastewater collection system, it has no freatment facilities. Wastewater treatment is provided by the
Trinity River Authority. Contracts relating to purchased water and wastewater treatment are discussed in
Note 2M. All costs are financed through charges to utility customers with rates reviewed regularly and
adjusted if necessary to ensure the integrity of the funds.

Solid W Fund

This fund accounts for the City's landiill, garbage/recycling collection service, brush and lifter collection,
street sweeping, illegal dumping cleanup, Keep Grand Prairie Beaufiful, and auto-related business
programs, as well as a number of special purpose transfers relafed to reserves for landfill closure,
post-closure costs and environmental remediation. All costs are financed through charges fo sanitation
customers.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues and
expenditures are recognized in the accounis and reported in the financial statements. Basis of
accounting relates to the fiming of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus
applied.

Gove nt-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements for proprietary funds are
reparted using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The
economic resources measurement focus means all assets and liabilities (whether curent or noncurrent)
are included on the Statement of Net Position, and the operating statement presents increases (revenues)
and decreases |expenses) in the net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when eamed, and expenses are recognized at the fime the liability is incurred.

Governmental Fund Fin ial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when both measurable and available. Measurable means
krowing, or being capable of calculating or estimating the amount to be received. Available means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilifies (generally sixty
days). Also, under the medified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures (including capital outlay) are
recorded in the period when the related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation bond
principal and interest and expenditures related to compensated absences, which are recorded when
due rather than when incumed.

Madjor revenue sources susceptible fo accrual in the governmental funds include property taxes, sales
taxes, franchise fees, charges for services, and intergovernmental revenues. Revenue is accrued when it
is deemed available except for intergovernmental revenues.

Grant revenues are recognized not just when available, but when the qudlifying expenditures have been
incurred, and all other grant requirements have been met.
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Long-ferm debt — At September 30, 2021, the City had the following long-term liabilities:

Table 4
Long-Term Debt
Governmental Businass-lype Total
Activilios Activities Primary Governmeni
4302020 P00 5/30/2020 930002 P30 A20 9/30/2021
Bonded dett 3 416024420 3 487358430 3 51248478 3 45688745 § 467273098 § 535045375
Compenialed absences 21,064,457 21.087.037 469,411 623,744 21,533,868 2.710.781
Other pos! amployment benetiis &(,667, 581 64,258,793 6,275,783 4,685,833 64,763,564 0944624
Net pension Babilily 50.113.5940 47,226,664 4,470,085 5545457 63.584.025 54,874,161
Potution ooty 20,900 27.350 - - AL900 27,350
Closure and posi closure lability - - B.448,948 083016 BA48 546 F.083.018
Oiner liobililies 1,139,387 4.087,229 - - 1,139,367 4,087 229
Totel long-term debi $ 555050845 § A2BOM5703 3 71,012903 §  677IBBI  § 629163768 §  £95.774.540
Long-term debt fo net
posifion percentage 141% 151% 25% 2% ke P65

Of the total bonded debf, $489,358,430 or 21.5% is backed by the full faith and credit of the City with a
property tax pledge.

In February 2021, the City issued $23,215,000 in Combination Tax and Revenue Cerfificates of Obligation,
Series 2021, The Cerfificates were issued for the purpose of paying contractual obligations to be (i)
acquiing, constructing, improving and equipping fire-fighting facilities and library facilities, (i)
constructing, improving and equipping existing municipal facilities, (i} constructing sireet improvements,
including drainage, landscaping, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, entryways, pedestrian pathways, signage,
traffic signalization and street noise abatement incidental thereto and the acquisition of land and rights-
of-way therefor and (iv) professional services rendered in connection therewith.

In June 2021, the City issued $66,945,000 in General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021, and $16,235,000 in
Combination Tax and Revenue Cerlificates of Obligation, Series 2021A. The bonds were issued for the
purpose of paying contractual obligations to be incurred for constructing street improvements, including
drainage, landscaping, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, entryways, pedestrian pathways, signage, fraffic
signalization and street noise abatement incidental thereto, and for the acquisition of land and rights-of-
way therefor within the reinvestment zone of the City known as the Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment
Zone Number One (TIF #1).

During this fiscal year, the City refired principal on outstanding bonded debt totaling $40,260,000. The
City's total interest expense for all bonded debt wos $17,197,315.

Additional information is detailed In the Note 2.H to the Basic Financial Statements.

The City's bond ratings by Fitch and Standard & Poor's are curently as follows:

Standard &
Fitch Poor's
General obligation bonds Adt AAA
Sales tax revenue bonds (taxable) AA Ab-
Sales tax revenue bonds [tax-exempt) Ab+ A
Water and wastewater revenue bonds LYY AAA
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates

The City's elected and appeinted officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2022
budget including tax rates and fees that will be charged for business-type activities. One of the biggest
factors continued to be the national economy and uncertainty caused by the pandemic. Building ond
development growth rates continue to increase overall; and indicate healthy activities in the residential
sector and commercial type permitting. Although the City is largely built out and mature, there are sfill
several areas available, mainly in the south sector with higher end residential areas along Joe Pool Lake,
In addition, there is a leveling of multi-family developments, but a major increase in retail construction, in
large part due to toll road 141 and emerging destination facilifies, such as Epic and Epic Waters.

The City population as of September 2021 was 200,640 which is a 2.8% increase aver prior year, Residential
expansions continue in the south and new manufacturing and distribution companies continue to add
growth to the City's economy. Even more growth is expected s a result of continued development and
maobility through the City. Roadway improvements, like widening of Camp Wisdom, Great Southwest
Parkway and |-30 frontage roads from 5H 141 to McArthur confinue to make additional demands on the
City for increased services. Our diverse economy, the overall DFW metroplex economy and major
transportation access all serve to create a synergy.

The following indicators were taken into account when adopting the budget for fiscal year 2022:

«  B.8%%increase in assessed property values;

AD70%Increase In sales tax collections over the prior year projected due o the confinued effects
of the pandemic.

General Fund property tax revenues increased $5,388,394 or 7.05%. The approved property tax rate
decreased by a half cent from 669998 to .664998. Other budgeted revenue sources include an increase
in the TIF Reimbursement, an increase In sales tax of $4,511,646, an increase in licenses and permits of
$446,360, and a decrease in Municipal Court fees of ($438,004).

Budgeted sales tax across all funds is $76,102,037, which is an increase over the year-end projections of
$75,541,058. This is mainly due fo the ongoing pandemic and its unknown effect on the economy.

The City's total approved budget for FY 2021-22 is $457,669,446, an increase of 5.1% as compared to the
prior year-end projections. The General Fund approved budget is $142,884,4614. This represents a 3.4%
increase over the prior year approved budget. The majority of this increase is relafed to an increase in
personnel services, an incredse in the transfer to the park venue fund and an increase in the
reimbursements from other funds. The budget included o 3% Civil Service Step increase and a 3% non-
civil services merit increase and un-freezing 10 positions previously frozen in the General Fund. Additionally,
funding was set aside to expand the PlayGrand all abilities park.

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes fo the Basic Financial Statements
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Fund Financigl Stat: ts

In addition to the government-wide financial statements, the City also reports separate financial
statements for major functions or activities of the government. These financial statements are organized
on the basis of funds with governmental resources allecated to and accounted for based upon the
purposes for which they are spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. Separate
statements are presented for governmental activities and proprietary activities.

Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts which constitute its
assefs, defered outflows of resources, liablities, deferred inflows of resources, revenues,
expenditures/expenses, and fund balances. The fund financial statements present each major fund as a
separate column, while all nenmaijor funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. Major funds
are celculated using specific methods outlined in GASB Statement No. 34, or City management may also
deem funds as major for presentation purposes.

At September 30, 2021, major govemmental funds include the following:

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City, This fund is used to account for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required fo be accounted for in another fund. All
general fax revenues and other receipts that are not restricted by law or contractual agreement to some
other fund are accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures, fixed charges and capital
Improvement costs not paid through other funds are paid frorm the General Fund.

Section 8 Fund

This special revenue fund accounts for grant and contract revenue received from the federal
government for providing housing assistance to low income families and for the administration of the
program.

Street CIP Fun
This capital project fund cccounts for the construction and renovation of thoroughfares and arterial
streets and roads financed through general obligation bond proceeds and other dedicated sources.

Grants Fund
This special revenue fund accounts for the various federal, state and local grant revenue received by the
City. All grants included in this fund are for specific projects with limited duration.

t Service Fund
The City's Debt Service Fund accounts for the accurmulation of financial rescurces for the payment of
principal, interest and related costs on general long-ferm debt pald primarily from taxes levied by the
City. The fund balance of the Debt Service Fund is restricted exclusively for debt service expenditures.

Epic 2 CIP Fun

This capital project fund occcounts for the proceeds from sales tax revenue bonds, cumrent
lending/borrowing arrangements, and other dedicated sources to be used In the construction of The
Epic.
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The GASB issued Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020. This Statement establisnes accounting and financial
reporting requirements for specific issues related to leases, intraentity fransfers of assets, postemployment
benefits, government acquisifions, risk financing and insurance-related activities of public entity risk poals,
fair value measurements, and derivative instruments. This statement will become effective for the City in
fiscal year 2022,

The GASB issued Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. This Statement establishes
accounting and financial reporting requirements related to the replacement of IBORs in hedging
derivative instruments and leases. This statement will become effective for the Cityin fiscal year 2021/2022.

The GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Inferal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans -an amendment of GASB
staternents No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32. This Statement madifies the
applicabllity of certain compaonent unit criteria as they relate to defined contibution pension plans,
defined contribution OPEB plans, and other employee benefit plans. This statement will become effective
for the City in fiscal year 2022/immediately,

The GASB issued Statement No. 98, The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. This Statement was
issued in October 2021 and establishes the term annual comprehensive financial report and its acronym
ACFR. That new term and acronym replace instances of comprehensive annual financial report and its
acronym in generally accepted accounting principles for state and local govemments. The
implementation of this standard changed the report name to the Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report. The City implemented this standard in fiscal year 2021.

D. Basis of Presentation

Govemnment-Wide Financial Statements

The two govemment-wide financial statements, fhe Statement of MNet Position and the Staterment of
Activities, report information on all activities of the City, including component units. Governmental
activities, which include those activities primarily supported by taxes or intergovernmental revenue, are
reported separately from business-type activities which generally rely on fees and charges for support,
Significant revenues generated from business-type activities include charges fo cusfomers for water
and wastewater services, golf course fees, airport user charges, solid waste collection services, and
storm water utility fees. As a general rule, the intemdl activity between governmental activities and
business-type activities is eliminated from the government-wide financial statements except that charges
for administrafive overhead services provided by the governmental activities to the business-fype
activities are included as revenues to the governmental activities and expenses o the business-type
activities.

The Statement of Activities reparts the change in the City's net position from October 1, 2020 fo
September 30, 2021. This stafement demonstrates the degree fo which the direct expenses of a given
function of the government are offset by program revenues. Specifically, the City has identified the
following functions of government — support services, public safety services, recreation and leisure
services, development services, water and wastewater services, solid waste services, storm wiarter services,
airport operations, and golf course operations. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with
a specific function of City govemment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function,
and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of
a particular function. Taxes and other items net included ameng program revenues are reported os
general revenues in the staternent of activities.
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The City's approved appropriations for capital projects in fiscal year 2022 totals $60,360,502. Planned
capital projects include:

o $21,842,000 in water and wastewater projects
«  $19,090,830 in streets and signals projects

s $3,394,000 in parks projects

*  $8,441,000 in storm drainage projects

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with
an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in
this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the City Controller,
City of Grand Prairie, Texas, 326 W. Main Street, P.O. Box 534045, Grand Prairie, Texas, 75053-4045.
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Grand Prairie Local Government Corporation

The Grand Prairie Local Government Corporation (LGC) was organized for the purpose of aiding, assisting,
and acting on behalf of the City in the performance of its governmental functions to promote the
common good and general welfare of the City by promoting economic development, The LGC's
operations are fo acquire, develop, or redevelop real property within the City. While the entity is legally,
financially and administratively autonomous, the goveming body of the City of Grand Prairie may, at its
sole discrefion, and at any time, amend LGC's Arficles of Incarporation, and alter or change its structure,
programs or activities, or terminate or dissolve it. Additionally, members of the Board of Directors are
appeinted by and may be removed by the City Council. However, the City is not financially obligated for
any debt of the LGC. For these reasons, the LGC is presented as part of the City's reporfing entity as a
discretely presented component unit.

Related Autonomous Enfities

Grand Prairie Health Facilities Development Authority

The Grand Prairie Health Facilties Development Authority [HFDA) was created to ksue tax-exempt
revenue bonds to finance medical facilities. While the HFDA's revenue bonds were defeased, the HFDA
continues to exist only to make decisions from fime to time regarding the defeased bonds, The City
exercises no control over the HFDA or its budget,

Grand Frairie Industiigl Development Authority

The Grand Prairie Industrial Development Authority [GPIDA) was created fo issue tax-exempt industrial
revenue bonds to assist in the City's economic development and to evaluate tax abaterment
applications. The City exercises no confrol over the GPIDA's management, budget or operations.

C. Implementation of New Accounting Pronouncements
The GASB pronouncements effective for fiscal year 2021 and 2022 are listed as follows:

The GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this Statement is to provide
guidance to enhance the consistency and comparability of fiduciary activity reperting by 1)
establishing specific criteria for identifying activities that should be reported as fiduciary activities and
[2) clarifying whether and how business-type activities should report their fiduciary activities, This
standard became effective for the City in fiscal year 2021 but it had no impact on the City.

The GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. This Stafement requires recognition of certain lease assets
and liabilifies for leases that were previously classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows
or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract, and will be effective for
the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022, The City is determining the impact of this statement.

The GASB issues Statement No. 90, Majorlty Equity Interests — an Amendment to GASB Statements Mo.
14 and No. é1. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve the consistency and
comparability of reporting a government's majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
and to improve the relevance of financial statements information for certain component units. The
Statement also requires that a component unit in which a government has a 100 percent equity
interest account for ifs assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of
resources at acquisition value af the date the govemment acquired a 100 percent equity interest in
the component unit. This standard became effective for the City in fiscal year 2021 but it has no
impact on the City.



City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Discretely Presented Component Units

Grand Proirie Sports Facilifies Development Corporation

The Sporis Corporation was incorporated on June 10. 1992, under the provisions of the Development
Corporation Act of 1979, as amended, Article 5190.6, Texas Revised Civil Statutes Annotated, as amended
[Act] by Resolution No. 2841 of the Grand Prairie City Council. The purpose of the Sports Corporation is to
promote economic development within the City in order fo reduce unemployment and
underemployment, and to promote and encourage employment and the public welfare of, for, and on
behalf of the City by developing, implementing, providing and financing projects autharized under the
Act.

The Act provides that the City may levy a one-half cent sales and use tax for the benefit of the
sports Corporation if the tax is quthorized by a majority of the qudlified voters in an election. On
January 18, 1992, a majority of the voters approved o proposifion to levy and collect an additional
one-half cent sales and use tax for the purpose of consiructing o horse racetrack. The one-half cent sales
and use tax increase became effective April 1, 1993 fo cover the costs of the project or the principal,
interest and other costs relating to any bonds or obligations issued to pay the costs of the project or fo
refund bonds or obligations issued to pay the costs of the project. All bonds were redeemed on
September 15, 2007. The sales fax was discontinued on September 30, 2007.

The City continues fo receive significant financial benefits from the Sports Corporation as excess earnings
of the Sports Corporation are paid to the City; and, if dissolved, all assefs of the Sports Corperation
become the City's property. Although the Sports Corporation is a legally separate entity, the City has the
ability fo impose ifs will upon the Sports Corporation as its Board of Directors are all appointed by the
City Council, and four of the seven-member board are actual City Council members. For this reason, the
Sports Corporation is presented os part of the City's reporting entity as a discretely presented component
unit, Discretely presented component unifs are presented in o separate column adlongside the
City's financial infarmation.

Grand Proirie Housing Finance Corporation

The Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation (HFC) was created fo issue tax-exempt revenue bonds fo
supply mortgage financing for low income home buyers and multi-family development. While the entity
is legally, financially and administratively autonomous, the governing body of the City of Grand Prairie
may, at its sole discretion, and at any time, amend HFC's Articles of Incorporation, and alter or change
its structure, programs or aclivities, or terminate or dissolve It Additionally, members of the Board of
Directors are appointed by and may be removed by the City Council. However, the City is not financially
obligated for any debt of the HFC. For these reasons, the HFC is presented as part of the Cily's reporting
entity as a discrefely presented component unit,

The HFEC's financial information, for its calendar year ended December 31, 2020, is included in the City's
financial statements in a separate column alongside the City's. Separale audited financial staternents
may be obtained by writing Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation, Aftn: Execulive Director,
P. O. Box 532758, Grand Prairie, Texas 75053-2758.
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Introduction

The City of Grand Prairie [City) Is one of the Mid-Cities in the Dallas-Fort Worth Metroplex, 12 miles west of
downtown Dallas, 18 miles east of downtown Fort Worth and six miles south of DFW International Airport.
The City was incorporated in 1909, and adopted the Council-Manager form of government in 1948,

The accounting and reporting policies of the City relating to the funds included In the accompanying
basic financial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America applicable to state and local governments. Generally accepted accounting principles for local
governments include those principles prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants as published in Audits of State and
Local Governments,

B. Financial Reporting Entity

The City's basic financial statements include the accounts of all City operations. The criteria for including
legally separate entities as component units within the City's reporting entity are set forth in Section 2100
of GASB's Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards. Based on this
criterion, the City reporfs the following component units as part of the financial reporting entity:

Blended Component Units
Grand Frairie Crime Confrol and Prevention District

The City of Grand Praiie Crime Control and Prevention District [CCPD} was created in May 2007
under the provisions of the Crime Control and Prevention Act and authority of Chapter 343, Texas Local
Govermnment Code, as amended (Acf) by Resolution No. 2007-02 of the Grand Prairie City Council, The
purpose of the CCPD Is to provide crime control and crime prevention strategies, specific treatment and
prevention programs, and court and prosecution services including the cost of personnel, administration,
expansion, enhancement, and capital expenditures, and any other programs as authorized by
Chapter 363.

Under the authority of the Act, the voters of Grand Prairie approved o propaosition fo levy and collect an
additional quarter-cent sales and use tax for the purpose of funding the CCPD which became effective
October 1, 2007. In 2020, citizens voted to continue/renew the quarier-cent sales and se tax for this same
purpose.

The CCPD's goveming body is substantively the same as the governing body of the City os the
seven members of the CCPD's Board of Directors are dll City councll members. The City has operational
responsibility for the CCPD, and the CCPD provides all of its services fo the City. If the District is dissolved,
its assets will become the City's property. For these reasons, the CCPD is reported as a blended
component unit of the City and is reported as a special revenue fund within the City's governmental
activities. This special revenue fund was established specifically to account for the accumulation and use
of the quarter-cent sales tax revenue collected for the CCPD,
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2021

Primary & et _Component Unils
Governmenlal Business-Type
Activilies Aclivifies Todl
ASSEIS
Cosh ond cosh equivolents ¥ TE0TI.540 ¥ 34302924 5 107376484 L) 9857928
Investments 123429 B&S 17852007 141,121,693 2011638
Receivables, nel 24,121,367 7,153,560 30.284.529 1.255.532
Intergevermmenial recei obiey 524714 54718 -

Inventores ond supphes 595,545 5332 1090877 -
. Prepoids 526903 2 526903 a0
Roshicled ety
Cash and cash eguivalents 12108518 2958022 15,063,540 1452092
v esiments 142280679 G4, 198,447 207,480,126 -
Inlesnal bolances (1007, 523 10,047 523 - -
Lease payrenis recelvable - : . 7TASTONG
Estimated unguarantedsd residunl v olue . - - 24,365 800
Copiiol asseds
'r E x A S Nondepreciobls 147,042,431 BN 614 184,480,245 6,548,182

Depreciabis, nel 5B, 260,053 212,470,223 792930276 W.22207
D B P l I_i d Tolal ossels 1.0RB.914.297 69, 245.672 1,438,179.949 N5
ream i 8 a l’ ar DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Delarrad chorge on refundings 219839 02263 3068583 -
Reloled to OPER 503,741 304,791 4208722
Relaled to TMRS pension 14,553,847 1,670,846 16.227.693
Totdl defermed oulliows of resaurces 0.659,107 877,890 23536597 -
LIABILITIES
Accounk poyoble l4.467.000 5187752 ;054823 2390
Eelainoge payable 1,555,104 514832 2069934 <
Accrued Ioollies 14.418,175 1114879 15732054 252,300
Uneamed revéanus 2A5FNTS 1019220 22542395 21,823
Current fioblifies paydble from reskicled ouel;
THIS PA INTENTI e nve s e -
Cunborrer depoity 45,500 5942774 5988374 4887

Mancumen hobllfes:
Bue wiihin coe yeor

Compensoled absences AR 444 474,545 10173589 -
Eny I /350 = 27350 239,349
Crher Bobiies GTEBED : &7BBE2 -
Cument partion of long-term ekt 36,485,000 54700000 &£1,155.000 340,885
Dua In maora than one yeor:
Compemoted chienced 11,407,593 2w 1,534,752 =
Dher postermploymen banelits &4.258,793 E485 833 MA4626
Closure and postclosune kobiity = F.083.018 2.083.018 #
Wt pansion llobiily ARG Bb4 5849497 54874161
Other kobilties 3408347 = 5,408,347 £
Long-tenmm debt 452.473,430 ADL2N6TAS A9LEMI75 14,448,493
Tolal foillies SER058.670 BILET. 265 FA5.007.93% 15456, 644
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESCURCES
Reloled 1o OPER 39788 00874 3,498,732 .
Reloled {o TMRS peensicn 16815978 1,729.804 18745864 -
Totol deferred outlows of rescurces 01386 2,230,760 A2244.594 S
NET POSITION
Melinvastment in copilal assets 356,640,773 207.008 573 563449794 J 204G
Reskiched for:
Debd service 2112567 5.800,337 9504
Capital projecis 2472 B2 402,002 BE062 074 .
Suppor] Service 2440325 . 2440325 3
Pubic salaty BIBITS . BT =
Recreation and lelsure 25,387 474 = 25387474 =
Developman sarvicas 19,419,260 - 19,419,282 *
Oither specilic purposss 15785300 - 15,783,383 [163.817)
Facilily keose: = - 2774638
Replacement reserve = - . 144,272
Urwesiriclad | 16,482,733 12715651 (3767082 |1 510,33%
Tofol nel posifion 3 ﬂm $ 307,933,503 £ F24,434.431 3 A7.558.56%

The Nales lo the Bosic Finoncial Statements are an integral part of 1his stalement.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Staternent of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Program Revenues
Cperafing Caplial
Charges Grants and Granls and
Funcilons/Aciivity r for . ot &
Primary governmeant.
Governmental oclivifies:
Suppor! services ¥ 31880593 § 6341600 % 168781 &%
Public safety services 105,285,879 11814379 4,302.600 -
Recreafion ond lelsure services 35,162,022 13,532,065 465,655 -
Development services and ofher 107,073,042 19,138,584 40,461,204 &.F74.967
Interest on long-lerm debt 14,004,156 - - -
Total governmental ocfivities 295,405,692 50,828,628 45,398,240 LF74.967
Business-lype activilies:
water and wastewaler 81,889,759 82,449,178 12,433,621
Solid wasle 13,904,385 14941131 - -
Municlpal akport 2974466 108,498 -
Municipal golf course 3,141 B4ad 2,975,689 -
Storm water 2,573,380 7,927,729 3112091
Total business-lype activilias 104,485,216 110,402,425 15545712
Total primary government $  I0E9P08 § 161231053 % 45398240 § 22,520,679
Component unifs:
Grand Pralre Sporfs Faciliies Development 5 5820316 % 950095 § ¥ 786,554
Grand Prairie Housing Finonce Corparation 6,364,641 5941718 - -
Grand Praiie Local Government Carporation 239,369 10 5011073
Telal componeni unils 5 12424326 § 4500823 % 5011073 % TR, 584

Generol revenues:
Toxes
Property taxes
Sales laxes
Hotel/motel ond other toxes
Franchise fees jand fhose based an gross recaipls)
Investment income
Transfers
Tolal general revenues and ransfers
Change in net pasilion
Met pasition - beginning of year
Nel posifion - end of year

The Motes to the Basic Financial Slatements are an integral part of this statement,
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Met (Expense) Revenuve and
Changes in Net Pasifion

Primary G
Ty
YP
Achivifles Acfivilies Tolal C t Units
[25370.212) § - [25.370.212) § =
[89.166.900) % |89, 166,900} -
121,164,302) - (21,164,302 .
(42.498,287) . (42,498,287) -
(14,004,156) = 14,004,154)
(192,208,857 - (192,203.857) -
- 12,992,840 12,992,840 -
= 1.034.766 1,034,766 -
|B85.568) |B65,968) .
[168,157) [V64,157) =
8,466,440 8,455,440 -
- 21,461,921 21,461,921 =
{192.203,857) 21,461,921 | 170,741,938
[4,074,637)
(422,723)
4.771.714
274,154
113,824,809 =5 113,824,809
80,187,852 + BO,187.852
2,366,924 - 2,366,924 -
14,022,362 . 14,002,362 =
333.285 1116 334,401 2606
1,869.338 [1,889,538) . -
22,624,570 [1,888,222) 210,736,348 2,606
20,420,713 19,573,699 39,994,412 276,760
376,080,205 288,357 814 454,440,009 47,281,807
416500918 3 307,933,513 724,434,431 § 47,558,569
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2021

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investrments
Property tax receivable, net
Sales tax receivable
Franchise fees receivable
Other receivables, net
Intergovernmental receivables
Due from other funds
Inventory
Prepaids

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Retoinage payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Customer deposits
Unearned revenue

Total liabiiifies

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue

Total deferred inflows of resources
FUND BALANCES
Monspendable
Restricted
Commitied
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances

Nel (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Grand Frairie
Sports
Facilifies

Grand Fralie
Local

p i Tolal

- 4771714 4,771,714
4771714 AT
(4,086,730} : (4.084,730)
- (422923)
4,086,730} = 4.509,653)
(4,086,730} 4771714 262,061
12,093 14,699
12,093 B 14,699
(4.074,637) 4771714 276,760
48,295,006 = 47,281,807
44,220,369 4771714 47,558,569

Streets
General Section 8 CIP
2410868 % 2069115 2,603,020
192,067,383 533,109 12,360,381
2.047.547 - -
7,780,887 < -
2.371.762 - =
3,233,107 - =
72397 -
432,007 - -
210,415,940 2,602,224 14,963,401
4,265,643 55,859 1,402,174
- - 142,951
6,583,457 104,040 =
147,000,000 - -
514,825 - -
158,365,925 141,899 1,545,125
2,043,661 - -
2,043,661 - -
432,009 - =
594,280 2,440,325 5,843,860
- - 7.574.414
2412477 - -
46,567,628 - -
50,006,374 2,440,325 13,418,274
210,415,760 2602224 % 14,963,401

The Nates ta the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this staternent.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Statement of Activities

Discretely Presented Component Units
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Nonmajor Total
Debt Epic 2 G tal Gover tal
Program Revenues Grants Service CIP Funds Funds
Operaling Capital
Charges rantband Grarsand 3 4775709 % 1592767 % - % 47856075 §  B1307.554
Funciions/Activity Expenses for Services Conhibuti Canfribuli - 2,200,000 - 38,550,672 245,711,545
Component Unils - 724,981 - - 2,972,528
Govemmentdl activities: - - - 7763116 15,550,003
Grond Praire Local Govemment Corparation 3 239.369 % 10§ 5011073 % - % 2 i 0,026 2 431,788
Toldl gavernmental activities 239,369 10 5011.073 < 32,189 4.658 2 1813.034 5082990
452,319 - - - 524,716
Business-type activities: 28,000,000 - - 113,371.317 141,371,317
Grand Prairie Sporls Focilfies Development 5832407 PERLRS T 766,584 - - - 33,338 445,347
Grand Praiie Housing Finance Corporalion 4,344,841 5941718 = - % = 5 26,126 26,126
Total business-type activifies 12,197,050 6,500,813 - 786,584 33.260.217 4,722,406 _ 229,479,706 495,443,914
Total Companent Unils 3 12436417 & 6500823 % 5010073 % 766,584

P e e 744760 5997 s 7,567,736 14,042,169
Investment income 32617 - - 1,379,534 1,555,104
Telal general tevenues 136,110 - - 842,38% 7667996
Change In nef posifion ¥ - - 1,371,317 148,371,317
Met posifion - baginning of vear - - - 45,600 45,600
18,354,828 - - 2,651,522 21,523,175

Net posifion - end of year
19,268,315 5997 - 13,858,100 193.205.361
- 28,844 - - 2,972,505
728,844 = - 2,972,505
- - - 59,464 491,473
13,971,202 3,787,565 - 162,415,458 189,073,380
- £ - 53,144,674 40,721,070
- - - 4 2,412,477
- - - 46,567,628
13,991,902 3,787,565 - 215,621,606 299,266,048
5 33.260217 % 4,722,406 % - 3 229479706 % 495443514

The Moles to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of 1his stalement.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2021

Total fund balance - lolal govemmental funds

Amounts teporled for govemmental acliviies in the stalement of net posifion ore different
becouse:

Copital assels tsed in govemmental aclivifies are not financicl resources, and fheretore, are not
raparted in the funds [excluding intemal service funds” capital assets of $1.6493.167],

Cerlain revenues are nol avolable fo pay for curenl-period expenditures: therefore, these
revenues are defemed in fhe funds.

Cerlain assels and Kabilifies do nol provide or require fhe we of cument financiol resources:
{herefore, these assels and liobilifies are not reporied in the govermmental funds,

Aeeruad inlerest on long-term debl

Uniamorlized loss of bond refundings

Defered pension and CPEB confibuticns, and invesiment and actuarial experence [excluding
intemal service fund lotals of $33,109).

Infemal service funds are used by monogement fo charge cosl of cerdin aclivities, such as
employee haalth Insurance, sk management inswrance, and fleel services, fo individual furds,
The asels and fiobilifies of the intemal service funds are included in governmental acfivities in tha
govemment-wide statement of net postion [nef of amount allocoled fo business-ype aclivities of
$3.047,523),

Moncuren liabilifies are not due and payable in the curent period; therefore, they are not
repiorted In the govemmental fund balance sheet. These noncurent liobilifies are as foliows:

Long-ferm debd

ized bond premium/discount, net

Compensated absences [excluding intemal service fund totals of $53.774)

Other posl employment benefits [exchuding infemal service fund totals of $838.442)

Mel pendon lability excluding intemal service fund Totals of 3799.060)

Environmenial remedialion obligation

Ofner Babilifies

Met posifion of governmenial activifies

The Notes lo the Basic Financial Statements are an infegral part of this slaterment.
28

3 299,266,048
725,609,517
2,972,505
5 (2,603,842
2,196,319
{1.501,084) 11.908.507)
16,905,883
§ (462,155,000
[27.203,630)
[21.023,263)
163,420,351)
(48,427 605)
(27,350)
|4.087.229) [626,344,428)
§ 414500518
_—
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Statement of Net Paosition

Discretely Presented Component Units
September 30, 2021

Governmental
Business-Type Acfivilies Acliviies
Grand Frairle Grand Froide Grand Pralrle
Sports Housing Local
fres i ~ " Total
Development Corperalion Corporation Componenl Units
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 3 9.128,407 3 G576 1 75,752 3 9,857,928
Irwestments 2.011,638 - - 2,011,638 L]
Receivobles. net 1,255,332 - . 1,255,332
Prepaids - 41,07% = 41,079
Cosh and cosh equivalents - 1,452,092 - 1,452,092
Lease paymenis receivable 7AS7.016 - - 7457016
Eslimaled unguaranteed residud value 24,349 870 - - 24.367.870
Capital assels: +
Nondepreciokle - 1,412,851 4,935,331 6,548,162 T t x A S
Depreciable, net - 10,222,096 - 10,222,094
»
Tolal assefs 44,222 263 13,981,887 5.011,083 63,215,233 D ream B iB Pl ay 11 ot (I
LIABILITIES
Accounts poyable 1,894 232083 + 233927
Acecrued labililies - 257,300 - 257,300
Curren! liobillies payoble from restricled aossets:
Customer deposits - 94,847 - 54,867
Unearmed reveruve - 21,823 - 21,823
Nencurrent Babilfies:

Due within one year;

Enormenc el iton . , 236 —_— THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

. 340,685 = 360,885
Due in morte than one year;

Long-term dabf - 14,445,493 = 14,448,493
Tolal labililies 1.874 15,415,401 239,369 15,656,664

NET POSITION
Met Invastmen! in capital assefs - [1.444,382) 4,93533) 3,290,949

Resfricted for:
Faciiity lease: 32774634 - 32,774,634
Replacemenl reserve 146,272 - 146,272
Other specific purpases - - [163.617) (183.617)

Unresfricled 11,445,733 64,574 = 11,510,329 X

Tolal net position 3 44,720,369 3 (1,433,514) 3 4,771,714 ] 47 558,569

The Noles o the Basic Financial Slalements are an integral part of this statement,
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES
Property faxes
Soles toxes
Other taxes
Fronchise fees
Charges for goods and services
Licenses and permits
Fines and farfeitures
Intergov ernmental
General and administrafive
Rents and royalfies
Investment income
Contributions
Other

Total rev enues

EXPENDITURES
Current operafions:
Support services
Public safety services
Recreotion and letsure services
Development services and ofher
Capital outiay
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and olher charges

Total expendilures
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
aver under} expendiures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Tramsfers aut
Bonds issued
Premiurm on bonds issued
Proceeds from sole of assels

Total other financing scurces (uses}

et change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning of year

Fund balances - end of yeor

Streets
I Seclion 8 CIP
74535565 § - % 3
39760973 - N
335,472 i -
14,022,362 > -
6,067,457 H,4604,227 -
4,022,506 320,154 -
5,735,005 o
2,629,634 35,644 255 -
5,573,532 - =
131.667 - -
324206 = -
134,464 - 107,250
460,026 45,415 -
153,934,701 44,414,251 107,250
25,447,181 .
91,727.323 -
2,860,342 - -
12595116 45,365,461 5073197
622,879 - 7812323
F - 135,103
133,252,821 45,345,461 13,020,623
20,482,080 (751,210} [12.913.373)
133.150.754) [5.470.542)
= = 14,465,266
e - 1,559,354
1,826,620 8.250 =
131.324,134) 8,250 10,554,078
[10,442.058) (742,960} (2.359.295)
40,648,430 3,183,285 15,777 571
50006374 % 2440325 % 13,418,274

The Notes 1o the Basic Financial Stalements are an integral part of fhis statement.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Cash llows rom operaling acivifes

Cosh receipts from customens
(=l s from cily ond
G i sarvl Ided

Cesh raceipls Fom alber governments

Qe cparaling cosh receipt

Casth paymants 1o suppliers for goods and services
Corh payments |6 smpiayeos for services

Cosh payrrents for nlerund sarvica used

Oiher opsraling cosh payrrents

Mel eoih provided by |used in| oparating octivities
Cash [———
Teansters fromolber lunds

Tarsiers fo othes funds
Cantibulions fram oiher govemments.

Met cash d by [used in}

a aciivives

Cah llows Irom copllal and related nariclng ecliilies:
Capiol irpoct lees from devalopers

Froceed: ! canital asel
Actuisiion ond consiruchion of copilal ossels
Principol poid on debl

Irerest peidd on debl
Ofner facal lees poid

He coth pr fused inj copital achvifies

Cash Siows om Invesing activities:
Intermsd receivad on v estmants

Hiot smh previded by (used in] investing ociivilies

Hat inerecss incosh i
Cosh and cosh souvalents - beginring of yeor

Cosh and cash equivalents - and of year

o (losz) i
et cath fiom speraling aciies
Operaing income foss|
Acjueiments 1o operaling incorme foss| 1o red cah
From aperolirg cothities:
Depracialion
Pravisices lor uncolisciible occounls
Chorges in orsats and [obiifies:
[Increats] decioass In account recevoble
[increase] dacreass in olber recalvaoles
: 3

fincrense) decraose in prepaids

Irereore [decreas) b occounts payable
Increast |decrests] i relonage poyode
Increose [decrease| inacerad bobdikes
Increase [decrense) in customer deposits
Increces (decransef in unedarrad revenue

Increass |decracsa] in CPEN kabdily
Irerease [dacreme] in pergion kobly

Mel eosh provided by [used | operating octivilies

i, g i
Capi [t ogencies

o ending cash q
1 Stotement of Net Foulllon:
Urreshicind cosh ond cosh aguvalants - end ol year

Tolal cash and cash equivelents - end of year

Govemmenial

Businass-Type Actvilies - Enterprise Funds Aclivifles
Wl Solld alher Infamal
_ Wosewsler  __ Wae _ Mewwslor  _ leld _ Sedcefumds
§ ERE0T 3 MREIM AT A< S ki (R :
- - - . BB
i = - 15,424
. - 85,197 5,197 -
G 158353 734,368 1,186,190 LE
|47.353,059) 793323 (35762508 [56,282.632| 14,721,330
|9,689.850 13242717 |7B54, 804 [HSEET T 11786571
17,000,005 a 344048 7300 [F4524,047)
[5.310.427) (1272477 {144 78] (4727707 =
14758150 3005.555 51006578 22.777.483 2AT2OTI
216,000 . 57,988 4753458 0303
11,911,485 |3sB.084] [4,373,724) B398 a1 900
74,660 - - 4B -
AT [358.084) (5835747 (1814478 100,077
4501203 . - 490,30 -
266,290 194,063 26,350 488,711 (215581
|r2u7aan) [ZA1B. A48 - [/ 5.373.284] (75435
[5,1:20,0004 = 170000 IsaFaes 2
1,388,854} = 3830 (1,450 484)
0778 z - (ST
{1a38s T (2724385 (175472 {16764.434) 174591}
1116 - - 1116
1118 - Lils
ATTBBG 433084 (4263 4197287 2335008
FERALEAL] AL ) fleikrl] 13,063 257 3,504,499
3 WamEe % 75500 8 2718053 § I % 587 504
§ 13RS LT eMzLES § soms 3 1327748
1468739 187,75 [EEET 18431102 306092
- 122.572) - {22572 .
7.907 45,528 4,200 [24.885| -
(7000000 - - 7,000,000 .47
) [{ER (703§ 3
17464016 - . 1,784,008 81089
1210 g (125068 (04, 7de) 23868
411,004 - . 411,008 i
79048 438,476 {1.475] S15827 £5419
41,401 . 8T 664,273 -
3 - [1oR41} [1a.241] -
o5 4B 19475 154,393 430
19427 EHITT sl 319133 45,137
1543655 (83547 (174950 1304755 55475
3 13765150 B 3005588 § AO0ATTE 3 TS} 2,632,073
L3 T5i24le % - ) 209§ 0AAER §
k3 TAXAAIR % - 3 12081 3 10644508 4 -
3 msnsm % 7ABINE 8 L2803 3 de3mIM % G704
2958022 - . L0 -
3 WARRSM 3 255300 4 INE0ET § WS 3 4871504

The Notes fo the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Statement of Revenues, Expenses,

And Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

OPERATING REVENUES
Waler sales
Wastewater sarvices
Waler and wostewaler faas
Waslewaler surchonges.
Sofid waste fees
Chorges for services
Intergovermenlal revenus
Insirane pramiams
Micellonecus

Total operating ravenue

OPERATING EXPENSES

Soiaries and benefits

Supples ond miscellonsous purchioes

Purchased services

Imsurance costs

Waler pwchoses

Wailewaler reotment

Generd and adminkiralive cosls

Franchise fees

Mhcelanecus

Depreciolion

Total operafing experses
Operating incames

NONOPERATING REVENUES {EXPENSES)

I estment incame

Galn fioss) on progethy disposifion

Interes! expense

Talal nonoperoting rev enues jexpensss)
Income before conlributions and fansfers

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

Capital contibutions-impact fees

Capilal contributions

Transfars in
Transfers out

Totd confibutions and karslers

Change in net posifion
M1 posifion - baginning of year
Nei posifion - end of year

Buginess-Type Activifios - Enferprise Funds

tog el of
Tofal change in net pasition
ta refiect

Change in net posifion of business.lype activities

The Motes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this slaterment,
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Nonmajor Ackvifies
Woler Salid Enferprise Infermal
Washe Funds Tolal Service Funds
3 48,485.361 ¥ = % 45436341 %
0,735,459 - " 30735659 -
2103858 = 2103855 =
H29.771 = = 827791
- 14,782,778 ¥ 14.782.778 -
- 12,212,551 12212551 6,314,435
= 65,197 ARIFT =
: = ks f 27,822.301
248 158353 734,358 1.1B6.150 11354
52,849,178 14,941,031 13012116 110.402.425 34, 145,050
11,619,345 3347828 2755247 17,744,840 2948012
1.043.357 524952 1,126,472 2,675,991 2633573
6254924 487672 1953140 14,695,734 1,280.852
- =, . = 24,925,047
16,749, 538 - 14,749,529 -
HIF26.676 = e 0,926,674
A 577 BAT 543443 144,768 5,264,078
3408207 428818 344,068 4,180,173 -
1,502,140 843474 365,502 3011418 E96,708
14.64739% | BO3 757 1.979.944 16,431,102 Ha0ez
81.129.533 14004188 469,461 | D3804, 140 32.820.345
1,219,645 F36,955 4,342,655 6,599,265 1,327,745
L1& - - 1116 §
167,964 75439 13778 255428 121,556
(1.025.692) = (20,810 [1.057.502) -
|B35.812) 79.439 44,586 [BOC.7E1) 121,555
484,033 104,404 AIFE047 5,798,504 1,304, 187
4,901,203 - 4,901,203 =
7532418 11209 10,644,509 2
6,214,000 ) 537,958 6,753,955 40543
[1.711,485] 358.004] (6,373,724} B.E43. 795 [241.040]
16738136 [(356,084] [&.723.678) 13,456,374 [200.077]
17222149 856320 1,574,389 19,454,878 1,106,112
226,158,581 22349422 34812109 285431112 1B.847.294
1 243391750 § 23.000,742 Ja4es498 % 304.885.990  § 19,953,404
3 19,454,878
of infernal service lund ocfivilies reloled lo Enferprise Furds 11aaxn
3 19,573,695

Nonmajor Tatal
Debi Epic 2
Grants Service CIP Funds Funds

- ¥ 33995286 % - 5 5007152 % 113,538,003

- - + 40,266,083 B0,027.076

- - 2,031,452 2,366,924

- - - 14,022,362

anz - % 12,374,809 27,048,695

- * - 240,786 4,583,446

- - 512,408 6,247 413

6.287 676 - - 382,555 44,944,132
- - - - 5,573,532

- - 3.225486 335713

fex] = = 7,034 333285
103,764 % ] 4,500,264 4,845,742

- - 281478 987,119
4,391,675 33,995,286 = AB831 485 307,874,852
- - 287,453 25,734,614
3,802,429 - - 8382924 103.912.676
171,821 - = 23092103 26,124,266
3,198.225 \ - 18,188,480 84,420,479
8,556,197 - - 49,188,810 66,180,209
- 22,555,000 - 12,320,000 34,875,000

- 10,903,592 - 4,733835 15,772,%30
15.728.672 33,458,992 - 116,193,605 357,020,174
(9,336,997 538,294 % (47.362,118) {49.145,322)
16,373,299 50,000 - 72B4%.012 90,172,311
[309.427) [187.955) [37.693,951) {11,270.255) (B8,082.898]

= = = P2.629.734 107,095,000

- - 1.713.0M 3272425

- - 4,550 1,839,420

16,063,872 762,045 137.693.951) 155,926,102 114,294,260
6,726,875 1.298,337 (37,693,951} 108,563,986 45,150,938
7.265,027 2,487 226 37,693,951 107,057,620 234,115,110
13991902 § 3787565 % - 5 205621606 % 299,266,048
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of the
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Net change In fund balances - folal goveramental funds
Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of octivilies are different
because:

Governmental funds report copitol ouliay s expendilures. However, in the government-
wide stotemant of ocfivities, the cost of those assets s copitaiized ond allocated aver
their esfimated useful Ives os depreciation expenss. This s the omount of capital asels
recorded in the current period.

Depreciafion on copital ossets s reported in the govemmenl-wide stafement of acfivities
but dees not require the use of current financiol resources, Therefore, depreclation is not
reported as expendifures in the govemmental funds |except lor internal service fund
depreciafion of $306,072).

Gaoverpmantal funds do not report coplta! contributions.

The net elfect of various fransactions invelving copital assets (ie. disposals, sales, and
reassignmants) are net reportedin the governmental funds,

The issuance of long-term debt {ie. bonds) provides current financial resources lo the
governmental funds, while repayment of the principal on long-term debt consumes the
currert finoncial resources of govemmental funds. Meither transaction, however, has
any effect on net posifion. Alsa, govemmental funds repor! the effect of premiums,
discounts, and simiar ilers when debt s first issued, whereos the amounts ore deferred
and amarfized Tn the stotement of octivifies, This amount is the net affect of these
differences in fhe freciment of long-term debt and related items,

Bonds ksued

Bond principol refrement

Bond premium issued

amariization of bond premiums/discaunts
Amorfization of lass on refundings

some expense accruals reported in the statement of activiies do not require the use of
curent financiol resources ond, therefore, are nof reporied os expenditures In the
governmeantal funds.

Accrued interest

Compensated absences

Paliution remediation obligation

Posternployment benafll obligation

Pension liakillty

Deterred persion and OPER confributions, and inv estment

and actuarial experience

Other ligbilities
Cerfain revenues in the statement of activities thet do not provide currert financiol
resources are not reporled as revenues In the funds,

{ntermnal service funds are used by management lo charge fhe costs of certain octivities.
such as insurance and fleet maintenance, fo individual funds. The nei operating loss of the
internal service funds s reported with governmental aclivities (net of the armount
dliocaled o business-type activities of $118821).

Change in net pesiion of g

The Moles fo the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement,
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3

i 45,150,938
46,180,209

[46,258,454)

5,844,556

[2,138,794)
(107,095,000
34,875,000
{3.272,425)
2158415

[304,722) {73,638,732)
[71.957)
16,234)
16,450)
13,513,242
10,453,105
318,250

{2.947.862) 4,225.610

£8,089

987,271

$ 20,420,713

City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds

September 30, 2021

ASSETS

Cuiran! amets:
Cashand cash equivalents
1w ealrreants
Accounis sacslvoble, et
Due am afher funds
Irw @nhores ond suppliey
Frepais

Restricied omely
Cash anel cath squvalent:
Irveshments

Tolol cusrent cssats

Honcuerent ossels

Capted assels:
tord
Buikirgs
Equiprrent
Infrasinuchue
Cominciion in Groonass
Less: occumudaled degrecioian

Toloh nonCument el
Teddl ausels

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Detl redundings
Reloted o OFFR
Raloled o MRS pensan

ot defered oulficws ot resaurces

LUABILITIES
Cuirent liablities:
Accounts payobie
Retanoge payabie
Accrved nheres
Accroed bl
Compensaled absences
Ureornedrey erue
Currant porfian of lang-lerm datl
Currend liokilles poyobile from festicied awets:
Custormer ceposits

bl cumen) fobiffias

Moncurren! inbties:
Compensaled obsences
Cer postempioyment bisnallls
Ciaes ond poslchkaire fabTly
et persion Robilly
Leng-term el
Total noncurtent iokdlles
Total ficbiites
DEFZARED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Retaled o OPER
feinled to MRS pengon
Total defered nfiows of rescurces
HET POSRON
Het Inv esiment in coplal owats
Resirchad for:
Dbt sarvica
Copld projects
Urwaskictod
Tatal net posifion

tes redlach

Buginess-Type AsHyilios - Enterprise Funds

Wonmajor Achvibey
Water Sold Enlerprise intesral
Waoslowaber Wasle Funds Tolal Service Funds
b 20530552 4 7553307 % 228063 L ] ¥ SATIS04
00,000 11,924,538 187,471 17452027 21000000
SA€TAIB 50853 743,289 EalEt Bansn
7000000 . . 7.000000 :
14753 8057 fkry 130198
. - - Bl
2758002 r AT
64,120,119 7RI B4.176.447
108,871,844 0048 558 4,589,750 133910312 7611583
LA 1. 766508 FRI07 5123353 P56
LATREIT 1996417 18,871,862 2.541 958 TEESBES
1471561 12,575778 2.300.554 402875 2HETTE
160,001 815 12002660 ABL¥D0.450 AITIS -
2566015 1,281 040 297,187 34.514.261 +
[713,251 2504 Haniairy (F2.103.329] |59, 467353 [3327.041
199,706,756 15567448 705,430 253,307 557 1693147
FEAM M 35,614348 42023185 30147 9,304,450
P2 = ¥ 0263 .
(L] B2842 w278 204,781 18,550
1.027 422 P&k 3,810 |.6T0BAS 231
2003348 OTAN Jranes 2BTTERD 254673
A.668607 534777 188,355 537752 &49,887
514837 - b 514832 ¥
267508 ¥ 34 0975 -
58 260845 129,506 114879 L0179
315959 BT Fo.es A4S S8l
905,806 . 113414 1owzm -
55000 175,000 4470000
SAhAA4S Rl R PRI
18,531.514 EES 119 TIB 344 A2NAITT 551047
R.ara T2 2777 1219 12,093
ameses 1378333 Lx238 | £685833 a3 441
£ 9083018 - 7081018 -
147393 L1sz122 LA 5647497 799060
3 BITAS . 331000 40216745 -
47353547 116685677 2725068 41 764,292 1.650.098
45905080 12.570,7% 32412 81.977.269 300,342
AT baAaT £45,000 FEG4 853
1,184708 403817 37081 192685 R
1,355,158 470264 405341 2200780 304415
1549e2482 15557 480 3,478,433 207.008.523 1.483.167
5800357 - - A407.337 -
79844580 2455422 > BL407,000 A
LETSIN 4,784,672 20B06S 9408128 18,260,239
] 43391750 ] ZRL07. 742 3 38,458,458 304,805,590 i 19,953,408

et pogition of busness-lype ecl lies

resaled Yo Enterprive Funds

The Notes | the Basic Financial Statements are an infegral por! of this staternent.
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